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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

RAFHA  BXEZBMEN

“13th Five-Year Plan”

[+=H#HE]

"14th Metallurgical
New Material Company”

[+ s # R xR al ]

"2019 AGM”

[2019F ERERAF A

“Aggregate Company”

RZERE VNN

“Articles of Association”

KREZER)]

“associate(s)”

[EEEE A

“Baoshan Building Material”

R L2

“Board”

[E£g]

“business day(s)”

THRABRBATRE -

the 13th Five-Plan of China’s Five-Year Plans, a set of goals designed to strengthen
China’s economy between 2016 and 2020

[T=E & - BR20165F £2020F Eoah B4 & 6l E & — F5 B F

YCIH 14th Metallurgical Green New Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EHRRTHEREHMRERAR > BARRZHME AT

our Company’s 2019 annual general meeting or any adjournment thereof to be held on
June 29, 2020 or any other date determined by the Board

KAAIHR2020F6 A29R sk EMESSR TN H BERAM2019F ERRBF
AKeskETMED

YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EERRDAMBRLOR BRARBZHEBLRF

the articles of association of our Company

ARRZCRARER)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BEEFRLTAAUME THRE

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EMRERIULXKERMBRLOE  RAARZHMER A

the board of Directors of our Company

NS

any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong) on which banks
in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking business

[&%H] ERRIT - MRHEMEERBEERTESNEMNEF(TBELEP R ERNEXE
BRRRE)

“CBIRC” the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission

[ B SRR BE & | PERITRBREEEREZE®
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“China” or “PRC"

[FE] - [HRE] - T2E] -
A NI A N

“China Environmental Labeling
Product Certification”

[ BRI IR A6 a3 7

“Companies Ordinance”

KENGIEES/IDA

“Company Law”

[{RRE)]

“Company” or “our Company”
(ARSI ARF]
“connected person(s)”
[BAZEAL

“construction of Five Networks”

[AHEER

“Controlling Shareholder(s)"

2 BB 3R

“Corporate Governance Code”

== iU
“Director(s)”

=

Definitions

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

TEARANE  EREFRME - TEEEE  AMAREEBLR

the certification of environmentally-friendly products that can meet the requirements of
national environmental protection standards conducted by China Environmental United
Certification Center as the sole certification body designated by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the People’s Republic of China, through three stages including the
document review, on-site inspection and sample test

HPREARAMBEARRBAEENE -—REBBPREAS (LN REPLEBX
HEZ RERE  Fal ZERBEEM T LZERBEZFIRBRESENZRLD

RREMRBE

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(RBEHEDD) (BB EDIF6228)  BABEBE - #BRIAEMT A ER

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

(REAREMBRBE)  BTREF] - Wi A= AT N IER
YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
TEHERGESMERERTIKRHER AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
EREBELTRBME FHRE

a development strategy implemented by the Yunnan Provincial Government, including
the construction of the networks of road, aviation, energy security, water and Internet

EHABNERO—HEREE  BERSE MEH LRRES KBREHRE

=l
ax

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to YCIH and/or YOIC (as the case may be)

BREEBLTRUMBTOERE  BERXEZEMEN  EERRER BN
A RBRME)

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules

BB _E AR AR 8+ PO FTE A9 1 2 B R <7 Bl
the director(s) of our Company

KRABESE

EZHERgEeaHERRIBRMHDER R A 2
2019F B W&



Definitions

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RE B

“Double Ten”

%+ ]

“Four Hundred”

[ 7 — A&

“Green Building Materials

Star Rating”

AR EM R E R

“Group” or "we"

[ SENEAE A

“H Share(s)"”

[HA |

“H Share Registrar”

[HEXE 7 & AL kg

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi

AATBRATFREEARE1.00THEBK - AARERE LR

major infrastructure construction projects in Yunnan Province, including ten projects

under construction and ten newly-commenced projects

EHEAERRBEATEERER B HEAEREBER  +HEHMMAIER

four kinds of key projects in Yunnan Province for 2020, including 100 completed
projects in operation, 100 projects under construction, 100 newly-commenced projects
and 100 preliminary work projects

EREE2020FMPUBESZIER - B 2100l BB TIREEE ~ 100I8E2EE « 10018
B TEE M100EATH TEE B

the rating and labeling activities implemented by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development of the PRC and the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
of the PRC, which evaluate building materials according to the green technical

requirements

MAPBEESMMRABERBRPEATENESCBMETOFARRRES - BKIE
BERMERFERM

our Company and its subsidiaries

RARREME AT

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company,
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the Main Board

of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

ARABWRATFREEAREI100TTMHEII EHINE EBEBD - REBBR AL
RETRER

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

ERPRESFELBERATA
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"High-tech Enterprise(s)”

[ 1= 3 Sl 4 2

“Hong Kong”

[&E]

“Hong Kong dollars” or "HK$"”

sl

"Hong Kong Listing Rules”

(& LmRA

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ 7 78 B 32 A7

"IFRSs”

I % B 75 e o 2B A

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[BYE=7]

"KMEIC”

[k & E]

Definitions

the knowledge-intensive and technology-intensive economic entity that continuously
carries out research and development as well as transformation of technological
achievements within the scope of the New and High Technology Areas with the
Government’s Primary Support and forms core proprietary intellectual property rights of
the enterprise as the basis for business operation

FRREGA(BRRES I FNRNRMBEIEE R - 58T ERMK
REN WREEZLEBEXIEZVER WULEAERRARLLEHHMBETER
RiTZmENRBEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

FEEBR TR

Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT REN  BEREEEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EEBRZMES ETRR - EARERT - MR AR B
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARIMABRLIDF

International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the International
Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) and the International Accounting Standards
("1AS") including restated standards, amendments and interpretations issued

BiRgt RRAIEFES (BREH RARFES) MMHBERYHHRE E RER G
A (BEREFER)  BRCEMIEINEL BT RRE

persons or entities which, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, are not considered as connected persons of
the Company under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

REBEZEZREH—VERERARMARN AEELAEE  REFELTRISHR
READBZBEANLTOANLTRERE

Kunming Economic-Technological Development Zone Investment & Development
(Group) Co., Ltd.*

BRgERMAZREAERE(EE)BRAOA

EZHERgEeaHERRIBRMHDER R A 4
2019F B W&



Definitions

“Listing” the listing of the H Shares of our Company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

[ 7] RRAHBRRBEABB A ER £

“Listing Date” October 31, 2019, the date on which H Shares are listed on the Main Board and from
which dealings therein are permitted to take place on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

[ H & HIER E BB R ER LT REEETERN B - B12019F10831H

“m3" cubic meter

[m?3] VA S

“Main Board” the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

[ HEBBIAEENRED S (TBEBAETIS) BN E BB AGEMIE 81 A
T

“Model Code” the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

[Z 27 Al

Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BELTRAMSBEHK ETBETAZEFETESFRHNEESTAD

“mu” a Chinese unit of area, also spelled “mou”, approximately 0.066 hectares
[ PR T B BT - 495 700.066 A L
“Polymer Company” YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company
[@oFrall B ZTZEERERSHSTMHBERQR  BRAREZHE
“PricewaterhouseCoopers” PricewaterhouseCoopers (Hong Kong Certified Public Accountants)
[ Z& FC Rl oKk iE | B BEAKESFMEBA(EERESA)
“PricewaterhouseCoopers PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Zhong Tian”
[EEXBFKX] B OEEXKEPREAMEBAMERLBEE)
“Prospectus” our Company’s prospectus dated October 21, 2019
[fRR &7 ¥ AQFRBHA2019F10821A 2 BRER
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“Quijing Building Material”

[ ih 35 3 A1

“Reporting Period”

=gl

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

(AR

"SAT"

[BERBIEER ]

“SEQ”

[KEFH R HEERDD]

“Shares”

MR ]

“Shareholders”

[ R ]

“subsidiary(ies)”

)=l

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”

[E 2R

“Supervisor(s)”

[E=%]

“Supervisory Committee”

[EEg]

Definitions

YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company
TEHERBERMAERRAR  BREARAIZHMERR

for the year ended December 31, 2019

HZE2019F12A31HILFE

the lawful currency of China

PEEEEER

the State Taxation Administration of the People’s Republic of China
PEARAMBEER G2

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(BAENMBEFEID(BBEPESNE)  KARER - MAaIAEMTT N ER

ordinary shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in our Company’s share capital,
including H Shares and Domestic Shares

RARABRAFEREBEARK 100 EBER - BFEHRERAER
holders of Shares

ESUE:ES DN

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BEEEB LMARAME TR E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
ERBEBELTARRBME FHRE

the supervisor(s) of our Company

¥iN/NE]

el

E=E

the supervisory committee of our Company

FiN/NEC]

el
EHH

=3

S
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Definitions

"YCIH"

ELEEY

“YCIH Financial Company”

[EmERFBRF]

"YCIH Group”

[EEEREHE]

“YolIC”

[EoMEE

“Yunnan Province”

[E/E ]

“Yuxi Building Material”

[EEEM]

"op

[%]

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.*, a Controlling
Shareholder of our Company

EHEERREEBREEERAAF AR A ZEBRBR

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Financial Management Company
Limited*

EHEREEVBAERAA

YCIH and its subsidiaries

EHRERENE R

Yunnan Provincial Overseas Investment Co., Ltd.*, a Controlling Shareholder of our
Company

EEEBNMREBRAR  RARB ZERKE

Yunnan Province, China

hEEEE

YCIH Yuxi Building Material Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of our Company

EHRREEEMBRAF  RARBZHEB QR

per cent

Bt

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report have been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as

totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them. Any discrepancies in any table or chart

between the total shown and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

RERFEHNET2ERADEEFEEOABEIA - Filt - HETREFTOVEB AR BEZFIH T E WA - (F]EXE FA
FTE(ET S 2 BEARFIT{T - B II#E BAFTE -
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CORPORATE NAME

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 1847

REGISTERED OFFICE

YCIH Zhaotong Development Building
Zhaotong Avenue

Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong

Yunnan, PRC

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

5/F and 9/F, YCIH Development Building
188 Linxi Road

Information Industrial Base

Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Kunming

Yunnan, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F., Tower Two, Times Square
1 Matheson Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

https://www.ynhnt.com

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
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Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng
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Non-executive Directors
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Corporate Information
NGIE-§ S|

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wu Xinhe

Ms. Li Yan

Mr. Chang Hongbing
Ms. Li Na

Mr. Guo Huan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Hongkun (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Guangcan
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Ye
Mr. Li Hongkun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Minchao
Mr. Li Hongkun

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Mr. Ma Minchao (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Mr. Liu Guangcan

Mr. Li Hongkun

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Guangcan (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Minchao

Ms. Hu Zhurong

Mr. He Jiangiang

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas
Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Rao Ye
Ms. Wong Sau Ping

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Rao Ye
Ms. Wong Sau Ping (FCIS; FCS)

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Baker & McKenzie

14th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

As to PRC law

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
6/F, NCI Tower

A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
NGIE-§ S|

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Alliance Capital Partners Limited
Room 1502-03A, 15/F

Wing On House

71 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2019, the Company continued to unswervingly embark on the road of safe
production, intelligent manufacturing and green development, and continued to
deepen reform and promote high-quality leap-forward development. While striving
to ensure the stable and rapid development of the central task of production and
operation, it was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on October 31, 2019, becoming the first “Golden Seed” company listed
in Hong Kong since the implementation of the Yunnan Province’s Three-Year
Action Plan for Doubling the Number of Listed Enterprises (2019-2021). This fully
reflects the investors’ and capital market’s recognition of the Company’s value and
confidence in the future development prospects of the Company, and is also the
driving force for the sustainable development of the Company.

DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT

In 2019, facing the complex and severe international environment such as the
Sino-US trade friction and the downward pressure of the domestic economy,
the Chinese government has set the overall tone for making progress while
maintaining stability and adhered to the new development concept and the main
line of supply-side structural reform to solidly achieve the “six stabilities”, namely
the stability of employment, stability of finance, stability of foreign trade, stability
of foreign investment, stability of investment, and stability of expectations. Overall,
the economy of China operated steadily while making progress. According to
data released by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, in 2019, the GDP of
China grew at an annual rate of 6.1% to RMB99,086.5 billion, which was close
to RMB100 trillion; the annual growth rate of investment in fixed assets (excluding
agriculture) was 5.4%, amounting to RMB55,147.8 billion; the annual growth
rate of the total production value of national construction industry was 5.7%,
amounting to RMB24,844.6 billion; national infrastructure investment increased by
3.8%, and national real estate development investment increased by 9.9%.

In terms of regional economy, according to data released by the Statistics Bureau
of Yunnan Province, in 2019, Yunnan Province’s total GDP was RMB2,322.375
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%, and the growth rate was 2.0
percentage points higher than that of the nation (6.1%); fixed asset investment
(excluding agriculture) increased by 8.5% year-on-year, and the growth rate
was 3.1 percentage points higher than that of the nation (5.4%); infrastructure
investment of the whole province increased by 6.1% year-on-year, and the growth
rate was 2.3 percentage points higher than that of the nation (3.8%); real estate
development investment of the whole province increased by 27.8% year-on-year,
and the growth rate was 27.9 percentage points higher than that of the nation
(9.9%).

Chairman’s Statement
s ERYE

BEH) BRI ARR
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Chairman’s Statement
EE=ERYE

We can see that in 2019, both the national macro economy and the regional
economy of Yunnan Province achieved favorable results, in which infrastructure
construction and real estate development investment continued to grow. At the
same time, under the “One Belt and One Road” Initiative and the development
strategy of building a radiation center facing South Asia and Southeast Asia,
Yunnan Province is giving full play to its latecomer advantages, and the regional
economy is showing a vigorous development trend.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2019, we adhered to the original intention of “being professional, refined,
superior, strong and bigger”, and conducted concrete production and operation
around key projects, including Shangri-la-Lijiang Highway, Yuanman Highway,
Dakaimen-Gasa Highway, and Mengzi-Pingbian Highway. We provided a solid
concrete supply guarantee for the opening of a number of highways under "All
Connected Wherever Possible” project on schedule. At the same time, we also
completed the construction and commencement of operation of the batching plant
for the Qiaojia relocation project, laying a solid foundation for advancing the project
in 2020.

In 2019, we paid close attention to the cutting-edge technology of the industry,
continued to increase investment in technology research and development, and
have achieved fruitful results: Polymer Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, passed the national High-tech Enterprise certification with its research
and development strength in the field of concrete admixtures. In the year, the
Company was granted 2 invention patents and 17 utility model patents, applied
for 4 invention patents and 1 utility model patent, led the efforts to formulate 1
local standard, participated in formulating 1 local association standard, and won
multiple industry honors or awards.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

2020 is the final year of the 13th Five-Year Plan and building a moderately
well-off society in all aspects. The Chinese government will adhere to the new
development concept and adhere to the supply-side structural reform as the
main line to ensure a reasonable growth in the volume of economy and a steady
improvement of the quality of economy. The trend of stable economic growth and
long-term improvement remains unchanged.

In 2020, we will continue to fully integrate into the development strategies of
China and Yunnan Province. According to the 2020 Doing Business Report issued
by the World Bank, China’s business environment will be significantly improved
in 2020, ranking 31st and rising 15 places from 2019, and was among the ten
economies with the most notable improvement in business environment for two
consecutive years. Therefore, in the future, more and more foreign companies will
come to China to invest and start businesses to share China’s opportunities. At
the same time, with the comprehensive advancement of the “One Belt and One
Road” construction, South Asia and Southeast Asia present enormous development

13 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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potential and broad market prospects for Chinese companies. Capitalizing on
its unique geographical advantages, Yunnan Province will closely focus on the
green development of “green energy, green food and health lifestyle destination”
in 2020, speed up the implementation of a series of major strategic measures
such as complementing the shortcomings of infrastructure and advancing the
management of plateau and lakes to promote the economic development of

Yunnan Province.

In 2020, we will adhere to the general principle of making progress while
maintaining stability, adhere to the new development concept, and unswervingly
embark on the road of safe production, intelligent manufacturing and green
development, and focus on the requirements of “the year for improvement on
production, management and service” to further standardize the formulation
of management and control systems for the listed company. We will further
strengthen basic management, further prevent and control major risks,
further promote technological innovation, further strengthen human resource
management, promote the formation of a new situation for the development of
the listed company, and make every effort to build the Company into an industry
leader and domestically renowned company.

In 2020, the Company will consolidate its business in Yunnan Province, expand
the market in Southeast Asia and fully promote the Zhaotong Qiaojia County
Jinsha River Baihetan Hydropower Station immigrant relocation project. We will
closely follow the Double Ten major infrastructure project in Yunnan Province and
the Vientiane-Vang Vieng Expressway and Vientiane Saysettha Comprehensive
Development Zone in Laos, and focus on increasing market share and reward
Shareholders with better returns.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
Shareholders, investors and business partners for their enduring trust and support.
I would also like to express my sincere thanks to all the employees for their hard
work and efforts.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Ma Minchao

Chairman

March 27, 2020
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Financial Highlights
B 154 2

Revenue
WA
RMB'000 (AR#FT)

3,608,075
3,357,117
3,112,091

+1.9

Gross profit
EFI
RMB'000 (AR#F7T)

394,080 403,787 407,398
359,468

S
+13.3%

2016 2017 2018 2019

$

Profit before income tax
FR 4S5 A0 7
RMB'000 (AR#F7T)

+12.9.

2016 2017 2018 2019

$

EBITDA
BRAIS - IR - TERBHEANAN
RMB'000 (AR¥F7T)

+4.1-,

$

Profit for the year
FEFH
RMB'000 (AR®FIT)

+20.2-,

Return on shareholders’ equity
REREHR=E BRELFBR(ARY)

19.9:,

$

Basic earnings per Share (RMB)

+11.3-
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Financial Highlights
MM E

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME SHFBEBEREE
STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31,
HE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRr AREBTRT ARBTRT ARBTR
Revenue 'ON 3,608,075 3,357,117 3,112,091 2,404,585
Cost of sales $HE KA (3,200,677) (2,997,649)  (2,708,304)  (2,009,605)
Gross profit EF 407,398 359,468 403,787 394,980
Selling expenses niHE R (13,136) (14,407) (15,368) (7,975)
Administrative expenses THER (133,981) (114,553) (108,287) (90,025)
Net impairment losses PMEERBEELTHE
on financial assets (8,129) (11,870) (4,303) (16,356)
Other income H b Yz 2,257 5,221 2,604 9,401
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi(BX) 5 — F8 (1,210) 814 (1,821) (3,683)
Operating profit RERH 253,199 224,673 276,612 286,342
Finance income B 75 Uk 25 1,354 1,147 1,130 623
Finance costs W% E A (10,358) (8,738) (6,269) (24,213)
Finance costs — net MBER— F8 (9,004) (7,591) (5,139) (23,590)
Profit before income tax B PT 18 B A0 R B 244,195 217,082 271,473 262,752
Income tax expense Frisfi & A (28,509) (37,633) (52,379) (66,935)
Profit for the year FERHE 215,686 179,449 219,094 195,817
EEERGEEHERELROERAT 16
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Financial Highlights
B 75 48 2

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EHBBERRAERUE
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018 2017 2016
20195 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETT ARETE ARETR

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets B E E 241,096 294,277 332,665 333,945
Current assets REEE 3,300,694 2,865,083 2,461,938 1,907,475
Total assets wmEE 3,541,790 3,159,360 2,794,603 2,241,420
EQUITY Em

Total equity 4R 1,228,348 954,997 808,538 638,898
LIABILITIES a8&

Non-current liabilities FRBBEE 21,012 23,984 36,420 30,861
Current liabilities mEBAE 2,292,430 2,180,379 1,949,645 1,571,661
Total liabilities wEE 2,313,442 2,204,363 1,986,065 1,602,522
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEAE 3,541,790 3,159,360 2,794,603 2,241,420
17 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS

Financial Highlights
MM E

EHREREREE

Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
20195 20184 20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETRT AREBTR
Net cash generated from KREEHEEFRS
operating activities 376,978 96,525 27,130 246,300
Net cash used in investing activities BWEFHMAFRS (31,147) (44,247) (34,296) (45,243)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBELE(FTA)
financing activities FIR e 55,877 (144,053) 38,652 66,521
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BekBeEEYF
cash equivalents @, G 4) 401,708 (91,775) 31,486 267,578
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#H & RHRELZEEY
of the year 240,026 331,801 300,315 32,737
Exchange losses on cash and ReRBLEEWEREBE
cash equivalents (1,725) — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FHRBeRRSEED
of the year 640,009 240,026 331,801 300,315
THERGea R ERLIRHDERAA 18
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A am B AT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

As the economy continues to grow, China will continue to promote the
construction of a modernized infrastructure network and construction of the Five
Networks in Yunnan Province, accelerate urbanization construction and continue
to increase investment in infrastructure construction and real estate fixed assets
in the coming few years. Such growth will continue to serve as the driving force
for the stable development of the engineering and construction industry, which
will in turn bring about continuous increasing demands for ready-mixed concrete.
The Double Ten key infrastructure construction projects and Four Hundred key
construction projects initiated by the Yunnan Provincial Government in 2020 will

greatly stimulate the demands for concrete in the region.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Overview

The Company is a ready-mixed concrete producer located in Yunnan Province.
We boast powerful research and development capabilities and have introduced
modernized, scientific and environment-friendly manufacturing concepts into our
production. In 2019, the Company was again awarded the title of “China’s Top
Ten Ready-mixed Concrete Enterprise (FREITERE R T80 %)"
two consecutive years). The Group has a stable customer base in Yunnan Province

(ranking sixth for

and has built an extensive production and sales network covering the vast majority
of prefectures and cities in Yunnan Province which can ensure a massive and
stable supply of products. Our principal businesses include production and sales of
ready-mixed concrete, polycarboxylic admixtures and aggregates, and provision of

concrete-related quality and technology management services.

In 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB3,608 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.5%; a profit before tax of RMB244 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 12.5%; a net profit of RMB216 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 20.2%; and net profit attributable to equity holders of

the Company of RMB204 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.4%.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group had 55 concrete mixing plants and 93
production lines with an annual capacity of 22.3545 million m3. The Group
also had 158 concrete transport vehicles, 2 pump trucks and 277 sets of test

equipment.

19 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Results of Operation
The following table sets forth revenue, cost of sales, gross margin and percentage
change by business category for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019.

Year ended December 31,

BB &Y am B 0 AT

TREINIZBEBEAEZE2018F12A31H
IEFE F2019F12A31BIEFEHUA - 84
EXRAREFNRKANLREESE DL -

BZ12ANALEE
Percentage change (%)/
2019 (in RMB million) 2018 (in RMB million) percentage points
0195 (AR¥EER) 018F(ARBEET) EHESL(%)/BAH
Cost Gross Cost Gross Cost Gross
Revenue of sales margin Revenue of sales  margin (%) Revenue of sales margin

Business £% KA SHERE EH= WA HERAER EME(%) WA HERK EHE
Ready-mixed concrete EHERL 3,542 3,157 10.9% 3,294 2,949 10.5% 7.5% 7.1% 3.8%
Polycarboxylic admixtures % 3 B 5 M 36 2 13.0% 38 M 11.9% -5.4% -6.5% 9.2%
Aggregates WA 13 9 36.0% 15 12 213% -10.6% -27.2% 69.0%
Quality and technology & & M i

management services EERB 16 3 80.6% 9 3 64.5% 68.6% -8.0% 25.0%
Total @t 3,608 3,201 11.3% 3,357 2,998 10.7% 7.5% 6.8% 5.6%

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the majority of the Group’s revenue
derived from the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete. In 2019, the
Group's revenue generated from production and sales of ready-mixed concrete
was RMB3,542 million, accounting for 98.2% of the total revenue.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group’s operation was
RMB407 million (2018: RMB359 million), and the overall gross margins in
2019 and 2018 were 11.3% and 10.7%, respectively, which represents stable
improvement, of which, the gross margin was 10.9% for the production and sales
of ready-mixed concrete, 13.0% for the production and sales of polycarboxylic
admixtures, 36.0% for the production and sales of aggregates and 80.6% for the
provision of concrete-related quality and technology management services.

HE2019F12A31HEFE - ZEBHKA
BRIEDKAEHERT EEMEEES -
2019 - AEBEREEHERLIEEFNHEE
EBHBABARKEISLEET  HAEKA
#198.2% o

RBEHR  AEBRKEELEENAARE
407E B L(2018F « ARM3598 & L) -
2019F R2018F M EBEEMEH A A11.3%
M10.7% » EARERFZPIGENRES - A B
HRERTAEMHEEEFNEA109% - BHEE
SNINEIEEMEEEFER13.0%  BAERAE
EMEEENEA36.0%  EERTHABHD
AT E R RIS EF X £80.6% ©
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A am B AT

Long-term business model

The Group's existing businesses include the production and sales of ready-mixed
concrete, polycarboxylic admixtures and aggregates and the provision of concrete-
related quality and technology management services. In terms of the production
and sales of ready-mixed concrete, we are focusing on the development of ultra-
high performance concrete and related products. We plan to break the bottleneck
of the production and application of ultra-high performance concrete and establish
a complete ultra-high performance concrete industry chain. Therefore, we plan to
use the proceeds from the global offering to build a development center for ultra-
high performance concrete and related products and production bases for new
materials of recycled solid waste in the Kunming area, as well as production bases
for green and environmentally friendly new materials in Zhaotong and Yuxi. In
terms of the production of aggregates, we plan to obtain mining concessions of
aggregates with substantial reserves, long mining life and good quality aggregates
through public bidding and acquiring existing aggregates producers. We also plan
to participate in aggregates mine exploitation projects around Zhaotong, Kunming
and Yuxi as soon as possible, in order to speed up the integration of upstream
raw materials resources, thereby reducing the upstream raw material purchasing
cost.

BUSINESS STRATEGY AND MAJOR OPERATIONAL
MEASURES

Strengthen the Group’s leading market position by
expansion and optimization of production capacity

Our concrete production network covers the vast majority of prefectures and
cities in Yunnan Province. In order to enhance our market penetration in Yunnan
Province, we established concrete production lines in markets with considerable
demand and continued to extend our production network from prefecture-level
cities to county-level regions in Yunnan in 2019. We continuously participated in
the construction of large-scale infrastructure and projects connected to people’s
livelihood, such as highway and relocation projects, which continued to optimize
the layout of our production network and strengthened the Group’s leading
position in Southwest China through leveraging the efficiency of our large-scale
operations.

Enhancement of sales and marketing capabilities and
expansion of sales network

In 2019, the Group adopted a number of measures to continuously expand our
sales network, thereby enhancing our market position and market share. Such
measures included market research, customer visits and collection of clients’
feedback, analysis of competitors’ products and pricing models, establishment
of professional sales teams in each branch and subsidiary, improvement in
the technical training for sales personnel and appropriate assignment of sales
personnel in accordance with the particular circumstances of potential clients in
different regions. Furthermore, we have established a marketing department in the
Group's headquarters to specifically serve the large-scale and high-end projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Further reduction of production cost and optimization of
operational efficiency

In 2019, the Group made efforts to reduce the procurement costs of raw
materials such as aggregates and cement and adopted a centralized procurement
model by means of tendering and bidding, competitive negotiation and price
inquiries. The Group leveraged the efficiency created under its large-scale
operations through mass procurement and standardized procurement procedures
to enhance its bargaining power and further exert its influence on the prices
offered by its suppliers. At the same time, the Group vigorously promoted
research on the reuse of concrete waste and solid waste to further lower
production costs and promote resource saving and green development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group realized a revenue of
RMB3,608 million, which represents an increase of 7.5% as compared with
2018. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to our continuous efforts
to develop the market, as well as a favorable market environment and major
operating measures adopted by the Group. In the total revenue generated by the
Group in 2019, the total revenue from sales of concrete products was RMB3,542
million, representing an increase of 7.5% as compared with 2018. In addition to
the sales revenue of concrete products, the total revenue of the Group during the
Reporting Period also came from sales of polycarboxylic admixtures, aggregates,
and from provision of quality and technology management services. The following
table sets forth the breakdown of revenue of the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019:

Year ended December 31, 2019
BZ2019F12A31MBLLEE

BB &Y am B 0 AT

E-—SRELEENFALBLLEEN
#®

20194  AREETERRBER  BBE
BRRE  BFUERANALES RS NE
KB MO D AR AORZ R RRERA -
7 4k B ) PR K AR 15 4R B AR 00 0 SR B AR 7 25
R RIEC B BRI - RIBBaS - U8
—SRBHHEENRENLEN - AH
AEBANBEERRRLIREREREYE
RMAMHE E—SRELERLS  BHE
BHOAGERE -

Bt % [0 B

N

HE2019F12A31HIEFE ZEB TR
AANRME3,608H &0 * B2018F L KR7.5% -
WABRFZESEARMTEINAT SR
NE - AERREFOTISRBENANEENEZL
BN o NEE2019F BIR AW A R R
TEREERALEAAREIMEETT
E2018F HK7.5% - B LT EMRBEKRA
Sh R EBA - BRMOKRATRBHER
BEANNE DA RRRHEEMRIME R
R - TRHEIAEEEHZE2019F12A31H
IEFEREZE2018F12831H IEFEBHIRA
BH 48 -

Year ended December 31, 2018
HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

In millions Percentage In millions Percentage

of RMB of revenue of RMB of revenue

ARBBEER HRALE AREBRET HR AL E

Ready-mixed concrete TERERE - 3,542 98.2% 3,294 98.2%

Polycarboxylic admixtures BB S A 36 1.0% 38 1.1%

Aggregates WAk 13 0.4% 15 0.4%

Revenue from sales of products EmEERA 3,592 99.6% 3,348 99.7%
Revenue from quality and H & M E R

technology management services AR 7 U A 16 0.4% 9 0.3%

Total A&t 3,608 100.0% 3,357 100.0%
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
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Operating Expenses

In 2019, the Company continuously strengthened cost control and improved
operational efficiency to promote cost reduction and efficiency. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, operating expenses were RMB3,356 million, which represents
an increase of 6.9% from the year ended December 31, 2018. Operating expenses
accounted for 93.0% of revenue, which represents a decrease of 0.5 percentage

point from 2018.

Gross profit and gross margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit generated from operations of the
Group was RMB407 million (2018: RMB359 million). The overall gross margins
for 2019 and 2018 were 11.3% and 10.7%, respectively, which represents stable
improvement. The gross margin was 10.9% for production and sales of ready-
mixed concrete, 13.0% for production and sales of polycarboxylic admixtures,
36.0% for production and sales of aggregates, and 80.6% for provision of
concrete-related quality and technology management services.

Gross margin for production and sales of ready-mixed concrete increased slightly
as compared with 2018, which was mainly attributable to price adjustment of
certain projects and relocation projects with high gross profit. Gross margin for
production and sales of polycarboxylic admixtures increased slightly as compared
with 2018, mainly due to the continuous increase in the price of raw materials
between 2016 and 2018 followed by a decline of the same in 2019. Gross margin
for production and sales of aggregates increased significantly as compared with
2018. This was because with the improved market conditions in 2019, freight was
borne by the buyers as stipulated in sales terms.

Profitability

Profit before income tax

Benefiting from the good revenue growth and cost control, the Group recorded
a profit before income tax of RMB244 million for the year ended December 31,
2019, representing an increase of 12.5% as compared with that for the year
ended December 31, 2018.

Income tax
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the income tax was RMB28 million.

Profit for the year
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group realized a profit for the year
of RMB216 million, representing an increase of 20.2% as compared with that for

the year ended December 31, 2018. The basic earnings per Share was RMBO0.61.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administration Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the administration expenses were
RMB134 million (2018: RMB115 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 17.0%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in staff remuneration
and labor costs as a result of business expansion after the Listing and partially

expensed Listing fees.

General Information of Assets and Liabilities

As at December 31, 2019, the total assets were RMB3,542 million (December
31, 2018: RMB3,159 million), representing an increase of 12.1% as compared
with the end of 2018. The assets were mainly trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, and property, plant and equipment. Such assets accounted for 91.8%
of the total assets, of which trade receivables and other assets accounted for
68.2% and 23.6% of the total assets, respectively.

As at December 31, 2019, the total liabilities were RMB2,313 million (December
31, 2018: RMB2,204 million), representing an increase of 4.9% as compared with
the end of 2018.

Borrowings and Solvency

As at December 31, 2019, the total liabilities were RMB2,313 million (December
31, 2018: RMB2,204 million), of which 5.0% (December 31, 2018: 3.6%) were
bank borrowings and 83.0% (December 31, 2018: 73.3%) were trade payables.

As at December 31, 2019, the total borrowings were RMB115 million (December
31, 2018: RMB80 million), all of which were bank borrowings and must be repaid

within one year.

As at December 31, 2019, the weighted average effective interest rate for bank
borrowings was 5.655%.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the total finance costs were RMB10
million (2018: RMB9 million), earnings before interest and tax were RMB255
million (2018: RMB226 million), and the interest coverage ratio (earnings before
interest and tax divided by interest expenses) was 24.6 (2018: 25.8).

As at December 31, 2019, the gearing ratio (i.e. total liabilities divided by total
assets) was 65.3% (December 31, 2018: 69.8%).

BB &Y am B 0 AT

THEHR
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group focuses on maintaining a reasonable capital structure and continuously
improving its profitability in order to maintain a good credit standing and sound
financial position.

As at December 31, 2019, total current assets were RMB3,301 million (December
31, 2018: RMB2,865 million), including: (i) cash and cash equivalents of RMB640
million (December 31, 2018: RMB240 million), which accounted for 19.4% of
current assets (December 31, 2018: 8.4%); (ii) trade receivables of RMB2,417
million (December 31, 2018: RMB2,448 million), which accounted for 73.2%
of current assets (December 31, 2018: 85.5%); and (iii) prepayments and other
receivables of RMB39 million (December 31, 2018: RMB60 million), which
accounted for 1.2% of current assets (December 31, 2018: 2.1%).

As at December 31, 2019, the current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was 144.0% (December 31, 2018: 131.4%). The increase was mainly
due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents caused by fundraising through
the Listing.

During the Reporting Period, the net cash flow generated from operating
activities was approximately RMB377 million (2018: approximately RMB97 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 290.5%. The significant increase was
mainly due to better collection from the Group’s business activities in 2019, as
well as the increase in the Group’s revenue as compared to 2018 due to business

expansion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As at December 31, 2019, we employed a total of 1,175 employees (December
31, 2018: 1,059). The table below sets out a breakdown of the number of our
employees by role as at December 31, 2019:

%EEETHFFH /\/_\ﬁﬁr

ABER

2019612 A31H M EB1175%EE
(2018412 A31H :1,0594) » F& 7K
R2019F 12 A31 Bz s 8l D BB B A 85t

% -

Number
Role B BE AE
Management 1R 128
Production management EEER 306
Quality and technology =S54 356
Procurement E2 - 114
Marketing 35 # & 86
Administration and finance TH 181
Others EHAh 4
Total &t 1,175
We recruit employees in the open market. The remuneration of employees mainly BMEAAMS LEEEES - EEMNHME
includes fixed salary, statutory allowances and subsidies, performance-related salary ZEREEMEEIE - JEEERMN @&
and benefits. In accordance with PRC laws, the Group also makes contributions BIEMAmTE - BREBEFPEERE  X&5E
to pension, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury NAEEBEAMNEEZRE BERR  XER

insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund for employees. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, employee benefits and labor expenses were
RMB253.9 million and RMB274.4 million, respectively.

We consider employees to be our most valuable resource for our success. To
ensure the quality of employees at all levels, we set up in-house training programs
to provide training for employees.

The Company’s labor union represents the interests of employees and communicates
closely with management in relation to labor matters. During the Reporting Period,
we did not have any operation interruption due to major labor disputes, nor did we
have any complaints or claims from employees that were seriously adverse to our
business. The Directors believe that we maintain a good relationship with employees
and the Group did not have any major labor disputes that had a material impact on
its normal business management during the Reporting Period.
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Use of Proceeds from Global Offering

The Company received net proceeds of approximately HK$366.11 million from the
global offering, which will be gradually allocated for use in accordance with the
purposes set out in the Prospectus. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2019,
the details of use of the aforementioned net proceeds are set out as follows:

ERBUEFERERR

ARF B 2HEEWBAGEHIBFEL366.11
BEAL ZEFESRBRABRERMS
ZRESRELSER -8B LT HHEE2019
F12A318 - IS FIRFEECAFBEN
T

Percentage
of the net
proceeds
from
the global
offering Net proceeds from the global offering and their use
[ PHRBEMSRERERRARER
BERE
HIEFHE  Available Utilised  Unutilised Future use plan (HK$ million)
ZESL  AHBA EEA AEA AREAHE(EEER)
Remaining years of
2020
HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million 20205 2021 2022
BEET REERL  HEER HHREFEE 20215 2022%F
Construction of new materials MR EEENR
production bases and HHBHILN
project batching plants BR 35% 128.14 — 128.14 70.62 40.37 1.98
Integration of upstream raw BELREMEER -
material resources to further E-SEREBREL
consolidate industry chain of EEEXE
concrete production 35% 128.14 - 128.14 77.90 50.24 -
Improvement, integration and HECEAER
expansion of existing concrete EEEEN
production lines BRTEER 20% 73.22 — 73.22 24.26 48.96 —
For working capital and BfEgBEELR
general corporate purposes —BRATAE 10% 36.61 36.61 — — — —
Total &% 100% 366.11 36.61 329.50 172.78 139.57 1.98
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Material Acquisition, Disposal and Investments

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company did not make any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. As at
December 31, 2019, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

Charge on the Group’s Assets
As at December 31, 2019, no property, plant and equipment had been provided
as bank collaterals.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Although the Company operates in China and collects revenues and pays costs/
fees in RMB, the Company is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and has
raised net proceeds of approximately HK$366.11 million (less the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses paid and payable by the Company
for the global offering). Exchange rate fluctuations have certain influence on the
foreign currency that we hold. The Group has currently not entered into any

hedging arrangement against foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities
As at December 31, 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Material Investment Plan

The Company plans to accelerate the integration of upstream raw material
resources, including investment in the construction of aggregates mines
exploitation projects around Zhaotong, Kunming and Yuxi and obtaining the
mining concessions of aggregates with substantial reserves, long mining life and
good quality aggregates through public bidding and acquiring existing aggregates
producers that have high-quality mine resources, sound management, good
financial condition, relevant aggregates mining and production qualifications, and
good expected future earnings, so as to continuously improve and finally complete
the industry chain structure of the Company. If such investment projects are
carried out in 2020, their source of funding will be primarily from proceeds from
the global offering.

BB &Y am B 0 AT

ERAKE HERRE
HZE2019F12A831BIEFE - ARRIKRETT
BHEWNBAR BMEQRARALELENERXR
Ue g K B & - FA20196 128318 ANEE iR
BEEAMNEKRKE -

AEBEEERF
MR2019F 128318 - BEWE - BE LXE
B AERITEAE -

Sh BE /2 B

BERANRARFRBIEANRRER - WAARYE
WBRARIZMAKAEA " EBR BARARE
BEIH LT TESUBTHENEESD
366.11H &AL (EHBRAFEMAE KA QA
EHBEEESNRENNEMMAEAS) - EX
MEBEBEMBENNEEScE —TERE -
HEBATASEBEY KT MA@ L FEU S
SR SN [ B e

RAREE
M2019F 12 A318 - AL B I EA ] E KK
RBIE -

EXRERE
ARRBFIMREF RV HERNBEEE
BREAEZREE BEREEEEAENDA
HEBILFKIER BBARBEEREBEL
EEEEBILER EETE HBEHRRAR
o HAHBYAORRAREERYE  BFARK
WHERIFNDAHEELE  EFREXR -
AHRRERE PDOREERFND AR E
WEFIERIE - M A E AR R EXES
B RHRERMAS - BRRAEEABK2020
FARE HETEZREREREEME
FIA e

M
#
-
W5
S

SRR RMDER R A 28
2019F B W&



Management Discussion and Analysis
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OUTLOOK

According to the decisions made by Shareholders and the Board, the Company
will consider the Listing as a new starting point and rely on the international
capital markets to strengthen the listing platform structure and market
capitalization management. At the same time, the Company will make full use of
the proceeds from the Listing to accelerate the upgrading and transformation of
the batching plants and improve the production efficiency and standards of the
batching plants. The Company will continuously develop the market and ensure
improvement of the Company’s profitability to achieve business objectives, reward
Shareholders earnestly and demonstrate development vitality and a good capital

market image.

Industry Outlook

In a complex and constantly changing international environment, China plans to
promote stable growth and reform, adjust economic structure, promote people’s
livelihood and risk prevention. China has introduced a package of measures for
steady growth and it is hoped that there will continue to be stable development
in its economic operation. As there continues to be stable economic growth,
China will continue to promote the construction of a modernized infrastructure
network and optimize the housing supply structure, in hopes that investments in
infrastructure construction and real estate in China will continue to grow. Looking
back on 2019, China’s ready-mixed concrete industry has achieved steady growth
and change, with production achieving steady growth and prices reaching high
and stable levels. In the future, stable growth in investment in infrastructure
construction and real estate will continue to propel the steady development of the
engineering and construction industry in China and support and ensure a stable
growth in demand for ready-mixed concrete.

Market Prospects

Broad market prospects in Yunnan Province. Driven by the rapid economic
development in Yunnan Province, the size of investment in infrastructure
construction and real estate fixed assets in Yunnan Province has increased rapidly.
In the future, as the potential of economic development continues to be realized,
the construction of Five Networks in Yunnan Province will continue to advance,
urbanization construction will accelerate and maintain strong growth momentum,
which will promote rapid increase in the demand for ready-mixed concrete in
Yunnan Province. Recently, Yunnan Province has made it clear that it will continue
to promote the Double Ten key projects. In addition, Yunnan Province plans
to launch 525 key projects under the Four Hundred key projects in 2020. The
proportion of large-scale infrastructure projects (including several expressways and
railways) in these key projects will increase significantly as compared to previous
years. As a concrete producer with leading technology and the strongest and most
stable supply capability in Yunnan Province, the Company has extensive experience
in concrete supply for large-scale projects. Therefore, we will take advantage of
the opportunities to heavily participate in infrastructure construction projects in
Yunnan Province so as to continuously increase market share and profitability and

further consolidate our leading position.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Good market prospects in Southeast Asia. The infrastructure construction in
Southeast Asian countries such as Laos and Cambodia are relatively backward and
the “One Belt and One Road” Initiative and the domestic needs of those countries
have promoted the upgrading of their infrastructure construction. We will seize
this important opportunity and take maximum advantage of our geographical
advantage in this respect. We plan to expand our market coverage to neighboring
Southeast Asian countries such as Laos, Cambodia, Malaysia and Indonesia as
soon as possible. In the future, with the intensive promotion of projects such as
expressways, railways and airports, etc., Southeast Asian countries will continue
to increase their investments in infrastructure construction. Such infrastructure
investments and real estate construction will bring about good development
opportunities for the concrete industry and good market prospects for the
concrete market. For the year ended December 31, 2019, we actively participated
in the preparation for key projects of cooperation between China and Laos, such
as the “Laos-China Expressway Phase II” and “Saysettha Development Zone"”.

Future Focus

Continuously extend the concrete industry chain and strengthen technology
research and development and technological innovation

The Group will participate in sand and gravel mining projects in Zhaotong,
Kunming and Yuxi and surrounding areas in which expressways will be built as
soon as possible to accelerate the integration of upstream raw material resources,
reduce procurement costs of upstream raw materials and continuously optimize

the Group’s operating benefits.

The Group also focuses on the development of ultra-high performance concrete
and related products, with the aim to break the bottleneck in the production and
application of ultra-high performance concrete and establish a complete ultra-
high performance concrete industry chain covering research and development,
production and engineering application, with a special focus on the research and
development of carbon nanotube reinforced cement-based composite materials
and related products. We plan to use the proceeds from the global offering
to build a development center for ultra-high performance concrete and related
products and production bases for new materials of recycled solid waste in the
Kunming area, as well as production bases for green and environmentally friendly
new materials in Zhaotong and Yuxi. We will also continue to maintain close
cooperation with Chinese colleges and universities (research institutes), make full
use of the Group’s existing provincial research platform and continuously improve
our research and development and technological innovation capabilities.
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Continuously develop the market and strengthen listed company
management

We will take advantage of the good market opportunities and broad market
prospects to establish our position in Yunnan Province and enter the Southeast
Asian market as soon as possible, so as to continuously expand the marketing
network, develop the market and strengthen our leading market position. At
the same time, we will further strengthen internal management of the Company
to safeguard our objectives of continuous market development and realizing
business operation goals, which mainly include: (i) attaching greater importance
to safety in production, increasing safety education and training, implementing
the concept of safe production into the entire process of production, operation
and management, and continuously enhancing the Company’s risk prevention and
control capabilities; (ii) continuously and systematically promoting the construction
of the Company’s talent team, reforming and improving the salary incentive
mechanism, strengthening performance appraisal management and stimulating the
enthusiasm of employees; (iii) continuously assessing the operational procedures
and endeavoring to optimize our production processes, promoting the upgrade
of facilities and equipment, accelerating informatization upgrades, continuously
improving the efficiency of our production and delivery appliances, and ensuring
smooth coordination between all personnel and production equipment, thus
further improving operational and management efficiency; and (iv) continuously
improving the internal control management system, fully realizing the importance
of the internal control system in ensuring the overall operation of the Company,
fully developing and utilizing the Company’s information technology, improving
the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control related business processes
and ensuring that data is timely, complete and reliable, thus promoting the
standardization and effectiveness of the entire business process and continuously
improving the Company’s management standards.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
EF EFEMNAREEAEGHN

As at the date of this report, the profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are as follows:

DIRECTORS

(1) Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Minchao, aged 54, has been serving as the executive Director since
June 2007 when the Company was incorporated. Since December 2016, he has
been serving as the chairman and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of
the Company. Chairman Ma also serves as a director or chairman in various
subsidiaries of the Company: he has been serving as a director of Aggregate
Company since March 2007, as the chairman of Polymer Company since
September 2013, as a director of Qujing Building Material since November
2014, as a director of Baoshan Building Material since January 2015, and as the
chairman of Baoshan Building Material since May 2019, as the director of Yuxi
Building Material since July 2015 and as a director of 14th Metallurgical New
Material Company since January 2018. Chairman Ma previously served as the
general manager of the Company from June 2007 to April 2019.

From May 2005 to May 2010, Chairman Ma served successively as the deputy
general manager and general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering
Concrete Co., Ltd. From May 2010 to February 2017, he served as the general
manager of the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering
Group Co., Ltd. From November 2014 to February 2017, he served as the general
manager of Qujing Building Material. From November 2014 to May 2019, he
served as the chairman of Qujing Building Material. From July 2015 to September
2019, he served as the chairman of Yuxi Building Material. From January 2018
to May 2019, he served as the chairman of 14th Metallurgical New Material
Company. Since January 2013, Chairman Ma has also been serving as the
chairman of YNJG Yunling Cement Co., Ltd.

Prior to joining the Company, Chairman Ma served successively as the deputy
manager of the Development and Operation Department, business manager of
Zhaotong Resources Department (FB3@%#)& #B) and deputy general manager of
Yunnan Building Materials Supply Company (Ef & ZEMBHEEAF) during
the periods of February 1993 to March 1994, July 1994 to November 1995 and
February 2004 to February 2006.

In December 2014, Chairman Ma was appointed as the managing director and
vice chairman of the Yunnan Concrete Association, as well as an expert of the
Yunnan Concrete Industry Expert Committee. In August 2017, he was appointed
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as a standing member of the Concrete Quality Professional Committee of the
Concrete and Prestressed Concrete Branch of China Civil Engineering Society (&
BE+ARTEREBERRELREENRETI P ERETIEEERXEZEE). In December
2018, he was appointed as the vice president of the Ready-Mixed Concrete
Branch of China Concrete and Cement-based Products Association (/B R %%+ £
KEHmBERHERLHS).

Chairman Ma graduated from the Materials Department of Shaanxi University
of Finance and Economics (BREGEF&L2Fk) in July 1989, majoring in economic
management. In June 2006, he obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in business
administration from the Postgraduate School of Chinese Academy of Sciences (F
B £} 2p7). He also obtained a master’s degree in project management jointly
offered by the University of Management and Technology in the United States and
Kunming University of Science and Technology (E2F3# T K2%) in December 2006.
In September 2012, Chairman Ma was also appraised as a senior engineer by the
Urban Construction Environmental Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee
of Yunnan Province (EEEMBRRIESRATREAMFELZES). In December
2018, he was appraised as a professorate senior engineer by the Professorate
Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (Ef & Ik = & TIZATTE

ZE®)

Mr. Rao Ye, aged 33, is the vice chairman, executive Director, deputy general
manager, secretary of the Board, joint company secretary, and secretary of the
Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Rao also serves as a director or chairman
in various subsidiaries of the Company: he has been serving as a director of 14th
Metallurgical New Material Company since January 2018, as a director of Qujing
Building Material since March 2018 and as the chairman of Qujing Building
Material since May 2019, as a director of Polymer Company since October 2018,
as a director of Baoshan Building Material since May 2019, and as a director of
Yuxi Building Material since June 2019. Mr. Rao joined the Company in December
2016.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Rao successively served as a staff and the
deputy manager of the Legal Affairs Division (Z2ZE&E) and a member of
Administrative Party Branch (fTEUE X #Z &) of Yunnan Construction Engineering
Concrete Co., Ltd. from July 2009 to May 2012. From May 2012 to February
2017, he served successively as the manager of the Reform and Development
Division (M%&), deputy manager of the Legal Affairs Division, the assistant
general manager and the deputy general manager of the Commercial Concrete
Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. From February 2015
to April 2019, he served as the general manager of Polymer Company. From
January 2015 to May 2017, he served as the general manager of Aggregate
Company.
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Mr. Rao obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics (EFEHALKRE) in July 2009 and a master’s degree in law from
Yunnan University (ZFAZ) in June 2012. In January 2019, he obtained a
graduation certificate in engineering management (online education) from Sichuan
University. Mr. Rao also obtained the qualification certificate for secretary to
the board of directors granted by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in July 2018
and obtained the qualification certificate of independent directors granted by
the Shanghai Stock Exchange in November 2018. In August 2019, Mr. Rao was
granted the qualification for professional position of engineer by YCIH.

Mr. Lu Jianfeng, aged 45, is an executive Director, general manager and deputy
secretary of the Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Lu also serves as a
director or chairman in various subsidiaries of the Company: he has been serving
as a director of Polymer Company since September 2013, as a director of 14th
Metallurgical New Material Company since January 2018 and as the chairman
of 14th Metallurgical New Material Company since May 2019, as a director of
Baoshan Building Material since May 2018, and as a director of Qujing Building
Material since May 2019. Mr. Lu joined the Company in July 2013, and previously
served as the Director, deputy general manager and executive deputy general
manager of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lu served successively as chief engineer of East
Batching Plant (B#B#£1k), manager of the 2nd West Batching Plant (P8 — #££ufh),
manager of the 1st West Batching Plant (75 —#&#if), manager of Chenggong
Batching Plant (2 E##Uh), deputy manager of the New Airport Project
Management Department (¥i#158 B &2 &), manager of the New Airport Project
Management Department, manager of the New Airport Batching Plant (58 R
i), and assistant general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete
Co., Ltd. from August 1998 to January 2011. From January 2011 to December
2016, he served successively as the assistant general manager and the deputy
general manager of the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in construction materials from
Southeast University (BREAZ2) in June 1996 and a master's degree in business
administration from Yunnan University in December 2016. In August 2007, Mr.
Lu was appraised as a senior engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental
Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EEfE HMER
RIBERIEMIEELZES).

Ms. Hu Zhurong, aged 46, is an executive Director and employee Director. Since
joining the Company in August 2017, Ms. Hu has also been serving as the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee (2Z&|E52) as well as the chairwoman of the
Labor Union.
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Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hu was appointed as the director of the
Kunming Office (8 E##=E1F) of Fourth Construction and Installation Engineering
Company of Fourteenth Metallurgical Group of China Nonferrous Metal (¥ &
BHIMAEBEEMELEZFE TR AR in July 2002. From April 2008 to September
2016, she served successively as the deputy director of the Party Office (E##&I=
fE) as well as the secretary of the Communist Youth League (BlZ&72), deputy
director of the Women Worker Committee (Z T&|=E1E) as well as the secretary of
the Communist Youth League, and vice chairwoman of the Labor Union (L& &l
E /%) as well as the director of the Women Worker Committee (Z TZEE) of the
Fourteenth Metallurgical Construction Group Co., Ltd. (TIABREBAER A

From September 2016 to August 2017, she served as the vice chairwoman of the
Labor Union of YCIH.

Ms. Hu graduated from Guangzhou Nonferrous Metals Technical School (E/NA&
BEEBIEZR) in July 1992, majoring in automobile application and repair. In
July 2002, she graduated from Adult Education College of Yunnan University (&
BAERK AZ B EFt), majoring in economics management. In December 2003,
she graduated from Yunnan Provincial Party School (Ef4& Z £#) majoring in
accounting and auditing. In September 2012, Ms. Hu was also appraised as a
senior engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental Engineering Senior
Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EFEMERRSH TIRMMTEER
Ba)

(2) Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Guangcan, aged 48, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Liu served
successively as the Supervisor and Director of the Company from June 2007 to
July 2013, and rejoined the Company in December 2017.

Mr. Liu currently serves as a director of YNJG Urban Construction Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (EFFETHRREFMEERQF)
director of YOIC since August 2012, and as the secretary of the Party Committee

. He has been serving as a

(2Z £5) of the company since July 2016 and as the vice chairman of the
company since January 2018. Since January 2013, he has been serving as the
chairman of North Nongchan Complex Development Co., Ltd. (At & 44 %R
HBRZAA]). Since June 2017, he has been serving as the chairman of Ruili Cross-
border Economic Cooperation Zone Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (RE

BRESIERIEERBEERA

From March 1997 to June 2001, Mr. Liu served as the deputy manager of the
Finance Department of Yunnan Building Materials Supply Company (EF& 24
MR E R R

deputy manager of the Finance Department, manager of the Finance Department,

). From June 2001 to December 2011, he served successively as a

deputy chief accountant, chief accountant, deputy secretary of the general Party
branch (B g|&

Construction Engineering Concrete Co.,

70) and secretary of the Party branch (2# % £72) in Yunnan

Ltd. From December 2011 to January
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2018, he served successively as the secretary of the general Party branch and
deputy general manager of YOIC. From July 2014 to September 2017, he served
as the chairman of Laos-China Joint Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (EFEAIES

R R).

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor of economics degree in economics from Nanjing
Institute of Economics (B RAEZMT) in July 1994 and a master’s degree in
business administration for senior management from Yunnan University in
December 2015. Mr. Liu was also granted the qualification of certified public
accountant by the Certified Public Accountant Examination Committee of the
Ministry of Finance (A1 BiEpsEft 25 AIE & Z B &) of the PRC in December 2006,
and was appraised as a senior accountant by the Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Yunnan Province (EF%& A N EBRMEERERE) in March
2010.

Mr. He Jiangiang, aged 47, is a non-executive Director. Mr. He joined the
Company in December 2009 and served as the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. He has served successively as the deputy general manager, general manager
REBEEXBRAR)
from January 2014. Since December 2016, he has been serving as the chairman
of Kunming Daguanshan Investment Development Co., Ltd. (EBFREILZERF %
AR ETAR]), Kunming Tengbang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (ERAEHEE AR Q7))
and Kunming Tongfu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (RRARERMEFZHER
A7@)), as a director of Kunming Tongtai Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EFABRKEEAR L
A]), and successively as the deputy general manager and director of KMEIC. Since

and chairman of Kunming Jingbai Industrial Co., Ltd. (£

November 2018, he has been serving as the deputy general manager of Yunnan
Nengtou New Energy Investment Development Co., Ltd. (EFEHTEEREXE R
BEAREBRAR).

From September 2009 to December 2016, Mr. He served as the assistant general
manager of KMEIC. From April 2014 to June 2018, he served as a director in
Kunming Puzhao Water Purification Management Co., Ltd. (ERFER/KE FLEE
BIRAR].

Mr. He obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in environmental engineering
from Tongji University (BIEARZ2) in July 1998. In September 2014, Mr. He
was appraised as a senior engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental
Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EF& M
BRETIRSMIRAGFEZEL). In May 2016, he obtained the qualification
for associate constructor (construction engineering) approved by the Bureau of
Human Resources and Social Security and Bureau of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of Yunnan Province.

H2014FE7 A E2017F9OA EERBAKRER
RARIEEESEEK

Bl ER1994F 7 ARG R & E S &5t
BEEgamEBa4 B R2015F12 8BS
EHAESAERAEIBEEEER LTS
iz o B %% & TR R 2006 4 12 A 15 & B B B 5B
aAftestmERZ e e TERENEME:
FIER  WHR2010F3 A BBEMEANER
Mt eREEIERATCH R STAMBRTE -

MEBEEE 475 ERTES - WEER
2009F 12 AMMAARRE  BEAXQBE 2
IR o

AIEEBE2014F1AES  EEEEEEESR
RARIEGRETRGCE BERERRESEER
B2016F12RE5  HEBAABILIREME
EREARA EWREBHEXBRAR B
PREEHEREERARETESRK &
ERBRREELERAAETES  UREL
BREBEEREARBKEERES 0 §2018F
MAZES TEHERTEREXEREEE
FEARDAETELE -

Al 5% A B2009F 9 8 E2016 F 12 A E & ™ E
EEMACIEBIE 0 5201448 %£2018%F6
RERBERKEFLLEEBRAFEMLE
$ o

AR AER1998F 7 AMBREAZREIRS
ETEBE4 B4 o ML ETR2014F9 AR
EHEHBERRIESATIEMIELZES
AERTEN A TIZMMBETE - R2016F57 %
BEFEANBRMESRER Z@EEFR
M MEREM EN —REREM(EETR)
B8 -

EZHERgEeaHERRIBRMHDER R A 36
2019F B W&



Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE BEEkaREEABET

(3) Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas, aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wong joined the Company in September 2019.

Since March 2018, he has been serving as the managing director of Asset
Management Department of VPower Group International Holdings Limited (listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 01608). Since March 2019, he has
been serving as an independent non-executive director of Changsha Broad Homes
Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
02163).

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as an auditor at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants (f2#heBg =R 75 & 5TAM7T) from June 1995
to May 1997. From July 1997 to January 2004, he served as the chief financial
officer of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
stock code: 00295). From March 2004 to April 2008, he served as a consultant
at Pioneer International Enterprise Limited. From July 2008 to December 2017,
he served as a joint authorized representative and joint company secretary of
CRRC Corporation Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
01766). From November 2015 to December 2017, he served as a director, deputy
general manager and chief financial officer of CRRC (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from the
University of Wollongong in Australia in May 1995. He obtained a master’s degree
of science in financial analysis from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2011. Mr. Wong became a member of the CPA Australia
in March 1999 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in July 1999.

Mr. Yu Dingming, aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yu
joined the Company in December 2017.

Since July 2003, Mr. Yu has been teaching at Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics (EF I ARE), where he currently serves as a professor. Since
November 2011, he has been a part-time lawyer in Yunnan Yunyu Law Firm (£
EEEAMEHAT). Since July 2017, he has been serving as an independent director
in Yunnan Xiyi Industrial Co., Ltd. (EMARZELERMDERAF]) (listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002265). Since June 2019, he has been
serving as an independent director in Yunnan Copper Co., Ltd. (Ef %D HR
A 7A]) (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000878).

Mr. Yu was appointed as an invited expert of the Civil Execution Professional
Judges Meeting of the Higher People’s Court of Yunnan Province (E@E&mAAR
ERREHITEELEEE) in April 2017. Since June 2018, he has been serving
as one of the first batch of experts in the expert bank for the construction of the
law-based government in Yunnan Province (EFE X AMTEREREERER)
and as a member of sixth council (F/X/E¥EEIE=E) of the Institute of Ethnic

Law of China Law Society (FBIAE g RKABIARE).
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From January 2013 to August 2018, Mr. Yu served as an independent director of
Kunming Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ERTERNRLERR (5 BR A F)

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’s degree in international economic law from Yunnan
University in July 2000, a master’'s degree in economic law from Yunnan University
in July 2003, and a doctor’s degree in economic law from China University of
Political Science and Law (FREIBUEAZ) in June 2010. Mr. Yu also obtained the
certificate of legal professional qualification granted by the Ministry of Justice
of the People’s Republic of China (F# A R#&£FE 7%ES) in September 2002
and was appraised as a professor by Yunnan College Teachers, Professors and
Associate Professors Review Committee (ZFE mRYMAEBHETELZE D)
October 2014.

Mr. Li Hongkun, aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li joined
the Company in September 2019.

Since March 1995, Mr. Li has been teaching at Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics (Em B8 KE2), where he currently serves as a professor and master
tutor.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of economics degree in accounting from Yunnan
Finance and Trade College (Em B Z ZB7) in July 1990; a master of economics
degree in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics
(FAR B4 KEZ) in June 1994; and a doctor of management degree in financial
management from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in July 2009.
In October 2013, Mr. Li was appraised as a professor by Yunnan College Teachers,
Professors and Associate Professors Review Committee.

SUPERVISORS

(1) Chairman of the Supervisory Committee and non-employee
representative Supervisor

Mr. Wu Xinhe, aged 47, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee and a
non-employee representative Supervisor. Mr. Wu joined the Company in March
2019.

Since September 2013, Mr. Wu has been serving as a director and general
manager of Kunming Guoshun Asset Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (28
BlEEELLERERAR)

and general manager of Yunnan State-owned Asset Kunming Economic and

. Since January 2017, he has been serving as a director

Technological Development Zone Industry Development Co., Ltd. (EFE & RHKL
FREXREFRLA)
manager of KMEIC. From October 2018 to February 2020, he has been serving as
a director of Hong Kong Kunjing Capital Holdings Limited (B8R4 E RNIER AR
2 7)), Since February 2020, he has been serving as the chairman of Hong Kong

. Since April 2017, he has been serving as a deputy general

Kunjing Capital Holdings Limited.
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From April 2004 to February 2019, Mr. Wu served successively as the deputy
manager of Administration Department, manager of Project Department,
manager of Business Solicitation Department, deputy general manager, general
manager and the chairman of Kunming Innovation Park Science and Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (RRABIFTERIHEZER AR AT]).

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor of science degree in applied chemistry from
Yunnan University in July 1995 and a master of engineering degree in industrial
engineering from Kunming University of Science and Technology (ERFIE T X
) in June 2007. Mr. Wu also obtained the Professional Technical Qualification
Certificate of Speciality and Technology in Real Estate Economics (Intermediate)
conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FFEI A EEB) (currently known
as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FR AL E
TR E{RFEEE)) in November 2000 and the qualification of senior economist
granted by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security of Yunnan
Province in April 2011.

(2) Non-employee representative Supervisors
Ms. Li Yan, aged 37, is a non-employee representative Supervisor. Ms. Li joined
the Company in December 2016.

Since January 2015, she has been serving as a supervisor in YCIH Development
and Investment Co., Ltd. (EMEKRFAZEIREBR A F]). Since July 2017, she has
been serving as deputy secretary of the Discipline Inspection Commission (42 Z &l
£30), director of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision Office (42 1RESER=+
{F), and director of the Inspection Office (M(ERMHAZEE) of YCIH. Since August
2017, she has been serving as the chairwoman of the supervisory committee of
Yunnan Immigration Industry Investment and Financing Co., Ltd. (EFBREZX

BMEARAT).

From August 2006 to July 2016, Ms. Li served successively as the deputy director
of the Legal Consultant Office (ZZEERIEBIE &), director of Legal Consultant
Department (Z2EREEK) (previously known as Legal Affairs Department (J%
2= %56)), and director of Discipline Inspection and Supervision Office (A21RE5%2
ZE1E) of Southwest Communications Construction Group Co., Ltd. (FAF R @5E
REER ) AR AR]). From December 2014 to July 2018, Ms. Li has served as a
supervisor of Yunnan Haohan Mine Engineering Construction Co., Ltd. (Ef&#
WL T2 ABRAE]). From July 2016 to July 2017, she served successively as
a member of the Commission for Discipline Inspection (4% % &), director of the
Discipline Inspection and Supervision Office (A2#RES52 %= £ 1T) of YCIH.

Ms. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (EEBTZ EB%) in July 2004. Ms. Li also obtained the qualification
certificate for the board secretary granted by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in May
2014.
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Mr. Chang Hongbing, aged 40, is a non-employee representative Supervisor.
Mr. Chang joined the Company in December 2016 and has previously served as a
Director.

Since September 2015, Mr. Chang has been serving as the chief financial officer
of YOIC. and as the assistant senior business head (BIEEE A EKEE) of YCIH.
Since December 2016, he has been serving as a director of the Malaysian
Company of YCIH. Since March 2019, he has been serving as a director of
Yunnan Sanlian Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EF=BE £ AR A7)

From March 2007 to February 2011, Mr. Chang served successively as the chief
accountant of the Seventh Engineering Division (5t TI2E X &5 and the
assistant chief accountant of the Third Division of the Financial Engineering
Center (M T2ZEH L ZHEBEE TS HEN),
Audit Department (FzH#8&IEE) of Yunnan Engineering Construction General
Contracting Company (ErTi2EHRLAE A F]). From February 2011 to
September 2015, he served successively as deputy manager and manager of the

and the deputy director of the

finance department of YOIC.

Mr. Chang graduated from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (Ef 8 & &)
in July 2001, majoring in financial management. Mr. Chang also obtained the
qualification of senior accountant granted by the Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Yunnan Province in December 2016.

(3) Employee representative Supervisors

Ms. Li Na, aged 40, is the employee representative Supervisor and the vice
chairwoman of the Labor Union of the Company. Since April 2019, Ms. Li has
been serving as the executive supervisor of Polymer Company. Ms. Li joined the
Company in January 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Li served successively as the deputy director of
the General Party Branch Office (24 Z# AZER|EE), secretary of general youth
league branch (E# £:0)
the director of Female Worker Committee (Z =+ E), and the vice chairwoman

, executive secretary of party branch (TTH# X #fE&:0),

of the Labor Union of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete Co., Ltd. from
September 2008 to January 2016. From January 2016 to January 2017, she served
as the vice chairwoman of the Labor Union of the Commercial Concrete Division
of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

Ms. Li graduated from Kunming University of Science and Technology majoring in
computer information management (junior college) in July 2004. She graduated
from Kunming University of Science and Technology in January 2008, majoring in

law.
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Mr. Guo Huan, aged 31, is an employee representative Supervisor, assistant
general manager and director of the Corporate Management Department (%%
B ELERR) of the Company. Mr. Guo joined the Company in January 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guo served successively as a staff member, the
deputy manager and the manager of the Corporate Management Division ({2%
EIEED) of the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering
Group Co., Ltd. from August 2010 to January 2017.

Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in software engineering from
Yunnan University in July 2010 and a master of engineering degree in software
engineering from Yunnan University in June 2014. Mr. Guo was appraised
as a software designer (intermediate) issued by the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of Yunnan Province in May 2009. He obtained the
Qualification Certificate of Specialty and Technology in Business Management
(Intermediate) issued by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security
of Yunnan Province in June 2017, and the Qualification Certificate of Constructor
issued by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security and the
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC in September
2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Rao Ye is an executive Director, senior management and joint company
secretary of the Company, for biographical details please refer to “Directors”
above.

Mr. Lu Jianfeng is an executive Director and senior management of the
Company, for biographical details please refer to “Directors” above.

Ms. Ge Ting, aged 44, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Ms. Ge
joined the Company in December 2016 and has previously served as an employee
Director and the chairwoman of the Labor Union of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ge served successively as deputy director of the
General Office (7AW AERIFEL), director of the General Office $(RAWAEE
E), manager of the Corporate Development Department ({>22E f), director of
the Administrative Affair Department (TExE##0 % fF), manager of the General
Management Department (424 &2 #6), manager of the General Management
Office (frAEE P AZE), manager of the Human Resources Division (A1 &R
%) and deputy general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete
Co., Ltd. from November 2002 to May 2012. From May 2012 to December
2016, she served as the deputy general manager and manager of the Human
Resources Division of the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. From December 2016 to February 2017, she served as
a member of the Party Committee (2% % 8) and deputy general manager of the
Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.
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Ms. Ge obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in inorganic non-metallic
materials from Wuhan University of Technology (E/ZT%KX2) in June 1997 and
a master of engineering degree in materials engineering from Wuhan University
of Technology in July 2003. In August 2007, Ms. Ge was appraised as a senior
engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental Engineering Senior Engineer
Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EMAMBRAILIES R IEMIEEL
E2). In July 2009, she was appraised as a level-1 corporate human resource
specialist by the Occupational Skill Testing Center of Ministry of Human Resources

and Social Security (A 77 & R & (REE Z0HE S BB TE D).

Mr. Wu Kun, aged 50, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Wu
joined the Company in December 2016.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu served successively as deputy manager of
the Quality and Technology Department, deputy chief engineer, assistant general
manager and deputy general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering
Concrete Co., Ltd. from May 2000 to November 2010. From November 2010
to December 2016, he served as deputy general manager of the Commercial
Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in industrial automation
instrument from Kunming Engineering Institute (283 T25%) in July 1991 and
obtained a master’'s degree from Yunnan University in December 2013, majoring
in senior management business administration. In August 2003, Mr. Wu was
also appraised as a senior engineer by the Urban Construction Environmental
Engineering Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EEfE HMER
RIBERIEMIEELZES).

Mr. Zhang Wenhua, aged 52, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Zhang joined the Company in December 2009.

Mr. Zhang served as the deputy manager of the Production and Operation
Department (AEE# & &) of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete Co.,
Ltd. from July 2008 to January 2011. From January 2011 to December 2016, he
served successively in the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the assistant general manager, chief economist
and deputy general manager. From August 2013 to February 2015, he served as
the general manager of Polymer Company. From August 2013 to April 2019, he
served as the director of Polymer Company. From January 2015 to May 2018, he
served as the director of Baoshan Building Material.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Yunnan Materials School (EFA & E4) in July 1987,
majoring in materials operation and management. In December 1989, he graduated
from Yunnan University majoring in business and economic management. In August
2005, Mr. Zhang obtained the qualification of Professional Manager (Class Il)
granted by Yunnan Provincial Department of Labor and Social Security.
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Mr. Zhang Long, aged 34, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Zhang joined the Company in January 2017 and has worked as the assistant to
the general manager of the Company and manager of Yuanman Highway project
and Guangna Highway (Al R2AR) project in Wenshan.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang served successively as a senior staff
member, person in charge, and deputy manager of the new airport batching
plant (37#35 8+ ) of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete Co., Ltd.
from July 2008 to February 2012. From February 2012 to February 2017, he
served successively in the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the deputy manager of the Konggang Area Project
Department (Z=7[& 18 B #0) and manager of the Konggang Area Central Batching
Plant (Z=78 @ 0B HE L), deputy manager and batching plant manager of Pu’er
branch company, security director of the branch company (D R RIZ 24 E),
manager of the East Batching Plant (3R#8#uh), manager of the Jinning Branch,
manager of Honghe Autonomous Prefecture Highway and Rail Transportation
Department (ALA M & 3R K 8138 22 3818 B &), and assistant general manager.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in mechanical engineering
and automation from Kunming University of Science and Technology in July 2008.

Mr. Li Xiang, aged 38, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Li
joined the Company in January 2017 and worked as an assistant general manager
and deputy chief engineer of the Company as well as the chief engineer of the
Kunming branch.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served successively as the chief engineer of
Chenggong Batching Plant, the chief engineer of the Airport Project Department
(#3518 5 20 £ £ T2 E0), deputy manager of the Quality and Technology
Department (Z Z#1iT5B) as well as chief engineer of the New Airport Batching
Plant, and deputy manager of Project Management Department of Kunming
New Airport Project (E2ER¥TILISIE B EHE) as well as deputy chief engineer
from February 2007 to February 2012. From February 2012 to January 2017, he
served successively in the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the deputy chief engineer as well as the director
of the Central Lab (/L5 ZEF(F), deputy general manager, assistant general
manager and deputy chief engineer.

Mr. Li has been a member of the Concrete Quality Professional Committee of the
Concrete and Prestressed Concrete Branch of China Civil Engineering Society (4 Ed
TARTREGRELRBENEELT S EEHTEEHXEEE) since August 2017.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in civil engineering from
Kunming University of Science and Technology in July 2004. In August 2015, Mr.
Li was also appraised as a senior engineer by the Construction Engineering Senior
Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EEE R LTRSS R LIZMIES

&)
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Mr. Liu Renzhi, aged 44, is the chief economist of the Company. Mr. Liu has
also been serving as a director of Yuxi Building Material since July 2015 and as
the chairman of Yuxi Building Material since September 2019. Mr. Liu joined the
Company in February 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as the deputy manager and manager
of the Operation Department of Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete

0., Ltd. from January 2011 to February 2012. From February 2012 to February
2017, he served successively in the Commercial Concrete Division of Yunnan
Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the manager of the Operation
Department, assistant general manager as well as manager of the Operation
Department, and chief economist. From July 2015 to July 2017, he served as the

general manager of Yuxi Building Material.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the vice chief supervisor (8| % &) of Kunming Bulk
Cement and Commercial Concrete Association (BT EEEE TEETHE) in
July 2017.

Mr. Liu graduated from Yunnan Construction Engineering School (EFAEET
F2E2) in July 1996, majoring in industrial and civil architecture. He graduated
from Yunnan University in July 2007, majoring in marketing and e-commerce
(junior college). In January 2017, he graduated from Yunnan University majoring in
business administration. Mr. Liu obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty
and Technology in Business Management (Intermediate) issued by the Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of Yunnan Province in May 2014.

Ms. Liang Limin, aged 44, is the chief engineer of the Company. Ms. Liang
joined the Company in January 2017 and has previously served as deputy chief
engineer and director of the Technical Innovation Center of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Liang served successively in the Commercial
Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the
deputy director and director of the Technical Innovation Center, and deputy chief
engineer from January 2011 to January 2017.

Since August 2017, Ms. Liang has served as a member of the Concrete Quality
Professional Committee of the Concrete and Prestressed Concrete Branch of China
Civil Engineering Society (FRI T RTREGRE T REENREL»ERETESE
EXZED)

Ms. Liang obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in inorganic non-metallic
materials from Shenyang Institute of Civil Engineering (B EE TI2ET) in
July 2000, a master of engineering degree in materials science from Shenyang
Architecture University (&5 25 K2 in March 2005, and a doctor’s degree
in highway and railway engineering from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
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Astronautics (FREMZEMAAEZ) in June 2011. In November 2017, Ms. Liang
was also appraised as a professorate senior engineer (IE&#% T26M) by the

Professorate Senior Engineer Review Committee of Yunnan Province.

Ms. Xu Airong, aged 49, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Ms. Xu
joined the Company in December 2016 and had served as a Director.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Xu served successively as director of the finance
division of the Testing and Detection Center (F&4&8 LB EIEHR), accountant
in charge of the Electrical Instrument Branch, accountant in charge of the third
branch (=% 2&]) and director of the Audit Department in YNJG Installation
Co., Ltd. (EEEILERM AR AR from April 2002 to February 2013. From
February 2013 to February 2017, she served successively in the Commercial
Concrete Division of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. as the
deputy chief accountant, deputy financial director, senior business director and
chief accountant.

Ms. Xu graduated from Yunnan Radio and Television University (2 EEER
AZ) in July 1992, majoring in financial accounting. In December 2013, Ms. Xu
also was appraised as a senior accountant by the Accounting Profession Senior
Accountant Review Committee of Yunnan Province (EEE @it HES B SHAIT
HEED).

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Rao Ye is an executive Director, senior management and joint company
secretary of the Company, whose biographical details are set out in “Directors”

above.

Ms. Wong Sau Ping is a joint company secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong
currently serves as an associate director of the listing services department of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a global corporate services provider). Ms. Wong has over 19
years of experience in the field of company secretary. She is currently a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered

Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Board hereby presents the report of the Board and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2019.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on October 31, 2019,
and issued 133,882,000 H Shares with a par value of RMB1.00 at HK$3.36 per
Share. After completion of initial public offering, the Company had a total of
133,882,000 H Shares. As at December 31, 2019, the Company issued 446,272,000
Shares in total, including 312,390,000 Domestic Shares and 133,882,000 H Shares.
The Company raised a total of approximately HK$449.84 million, with net proceeds
of approximately HK$366.11 million (net of underwriting commission and other
issuance and listing expenses). As of December 31, 2019, the unutilised funds raised
by the Company amounted to HK$329.50 million.

Details about the purpose and use of the proceeds from the Global Offering are set
out in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

MAIN BUSINESSES

The Group’s main businesses include production and sale of ready-mixed concrete,
polycarboxylic admixtures and aggregates and provision of concrete-related quality
and technology management services. The analysis of the Group’s main businesses
for the year ended December 31, 2019 is set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended December 31, 2019 are set out in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of the consolidated financial statements pages 135 to 136 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND
Dividend policy

The Company’s dividend policy is set out in the section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

Proposed distribution of final dividend for 2019

In accordance with the Board resolution passed on March 27, 2020, the Board
proposed to pay a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 to the
Shareholders in cash at RMB0.1355 (including tax) for each Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend for 2019”), based on the current total number of Shares of
446,272,000 Shares, which came to a total amount of approximately RMB60.4728
million (including tax). If the Shareholders approve the proposal at the 2019 AGM,
the Proposed Final Dividend for 2019 is expected to be distributed on or before
August 26, 2020. The Proposed Final Dividend for 2019 to be distributed will be
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calculated and declared in RMB. In particular, the dividend on Domestic Shares will
be paid in RMB and the dividend on H Shares will be paid in Hong Kong dollars
(the exchange rate for conversion between RMB and HK$ will be the average of
the exchange rates announced by the People’s Bank of China for the five working
days before the date of the 2019 AGM).

To determine the list of Shareholders entitled to attend the 2019 AGM, the
Company will close the register of members from May 30, 2020 to June 29,
2020 (both days inclusive), during which no transfer of Shares will be affected.
To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfer documents shall
be delivered, no later than 4:30 p.m. on May 29, 2020, to the Company’s H
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (for holders of H Shares), or to the Board office of the Company, on the
5/F and 9/F, YCIH Development Building, 188 Linxi Road, Information Industrial
Base, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Kunming, Yunnan, the PRC
(for holders of Domestic Shares).

Dividend tax
Relevant tax arrangements concerning the distribution of dividend on H Shares are
as follows:

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
and implementation regulations thereof, the applicable tax rate for the enterprise
income tax paid by non-resident enterprises on their income acquired within
the PRC is 10%. Therefore, any H Shares registered under the names of HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other agents or trustees, or other organizations and groups
shall be deemed as Shares held by non-resident enterprise Shareholders, and the
Company shall pay final dividend to such non-resident enterprise Shareholders
after withholding 10% of the dividend as the enterprise income tax on behalf of
such Shareholders.

According to the relevant provisions of the Notice on the Issues Concerning
the Administration of Individual Income Tax Collection after the Annulment of
Document Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348): (1) For
individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong or Macau residents or persons
domiciled in a country or region which has entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of such individual holders of H Shares;
(2) For individual holders of H Shares domiciled in a country or region which has
entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a tax rate of less than 10%,
the Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of such individual holders of H Shares. If such Shareholders require
a refund of the amount in excess of the individual income tax payable under
the tax treaty, the Company may, on behalf of such Shareholder, apply for the
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preferential tax benefits pursuant to the relevant tax treaty, provided that the
Shareholder shall provide relevant documents and information in time according
to the Administrative Measures for Tax Convention Treatment for Non-resident
Taxpayers (SAT Announcement 2019 No. 35) and requirements of the relevant
tax treaty. Upon the approval of the aforesaid application by the competent tax
authority, the Company shall refund the excess amount withheld and paid on
behalf of the Shareholder; (3) For individual holders of H Shares domiciled in a
country or region which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
tax rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the applicable tax rate specified in the said tax treaty
on behalf of such individual holder of H Shares; and (4) For individual holders
of H Shares domiciled in a country or region which has entered into a tax treaty
with the PRC stipulating a tax rate of 20% or which has not entered into any tax
treaty with the PRC or in other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of such individual holders of H
Shares.

Shareholders should consult their tax advisers regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and
other tax implications arising from their holding and disposal of H Shares.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business, discussions and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year, material factors related to performance and financial
position, and the future development of the Group’s business are set out
in the chapters headed “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report, respectively.

MAJOR RISKS

Although the Group has established a risk management system to identify,
analyze, evaluate and address risks, our business remains exposed to a
certain number of risks which may affect the Group’s strategy, operation,
compliance and financial position. Major risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are as follows:

Macro-environmental risk

The Group's business and future growth may be affected by the macroeconomic
situation and the performance of the construction industry in the PRC and
Yunnan Province. Any slowdown or recession in the Chinese economy and/or the
construction industry may adversely affect the concrete industry, which will in turn
adversely impact the Group’s business, operating results and financial position. In
addition, the Group’s business is susceptible to adverse changes in government
policies related to the construction industry in the PRC and Yunnan Province,
including regulations affecting land supply for real estate development, project
financing and taxation, as well as local government budgets.
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Operational cost risk

The Group’s operations and growth prospects will be affected by transportation
costs, production capacity constraints and labor costs. The Group’s operations
depend on the capability to effectively optimize the allocation of raw materials,
human resources and equipment, improve management efficiency and reduce
management costs. If the Group fails to effectively control transportation costs,
labor costs or management costs, the Group’s business, operating results and
financial position may be adversely affected.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The
Group fulfills due obligations and maintains flexibility in funding mainly through
committed credit facilities to maintain sufficient cash. The management monitors
rolling forecasts for the Group’s liquidity reserves (including undrawn bank credit)
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. All borrowings
are in compliance with the relevant contractual terms (if any), and the Group
expects to be able to meet future cash flow requirements through internally
generated operating cash flows and borrowings from financial institutions.

The undrawn bank credit available to the Group is set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

In addition to the major risk categories above, there may be other risks and
uncertainties. Please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” of the Prospectus
for the relevant content.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group considers environmental protection as an important corporate
responsibility and attaches great importance to implementing environmental
protection measures in its daily operations. The Group chooses mixing,
transportation and testing equipment featuring advanced technology, low carbon
and energy saving, low noise, low emissions, and high production efficiency.
It adopts fully closed production lines, closed silos, spray systems and powder
recycling devices. Its dust control for production and noise control within the
factory boundary comply with the relevant requirements. The Group adopts
sand and gravel separation technology and recycling treatment equipment for
waste slurry and water to achieve zero discharge. The Group’s advanced ERP
concrete production control system is used to realize automatic control and data
management in the concrete production process, and the production energy
consumption quota and the comprehensive energy consumption quota have
reached advanced levels. The Group has assigned senior management personnel
responsible for safety, health and environmental protection, and set up a safety,
health and environmental protection monitoring department. The Group has
formulated the Administrative Measures for Environmental Factors, Administrative
Measures for Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety, Administrative
Measures for Solid Waste, Administrative Measures for Energy Conservation and
Resource Control and other systems to regulate the management of environmental
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factors involved in the production and operation of the Group as well as the
environmental and occupational health and safety management of the Group.
Although the Group’s main business does not belong to pollution-intensive or
hazardous industries, its production activities will still generate certain noise,
waste water and waste, for which the Group has taken control measures such as
installation of pollution prevention and control equipment.

Details of the Group’s environmental and social policies and performance are
discussed and disclosed in the “Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group shall comply with a number of laws and regulations, including the
Company Law, the Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations.

The Group ensures its compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and
standardization legal documents through multiple measures including internal
control, compliance management, business approval procedures and employee
training. The Group will notify relevant departments and employees from time
to time of any change in applicable laws, regulations, and standardization legal
documents related to the main business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has never failed to comply with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on it.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees, customers and business partners are crucial
for its continuous development. The Group has been committed to maintaining
close relationships with employees and providing customers with high-quality
products and services, and strengthening cooperation with business partners.

The Group provides employees with a good working environment to protect their
health and safety, and competitive remuneration and benefits and fair competition
and development opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also makes constant efforts to provide employees with adequate training and
development resources to keep them up to date with the latest developments in
the market and industry, and improve their work performance and promote their
self-actualization at the same time.

The Group adheres to the path of safe production, intelligent manufacturing
and green development, puts a premium on the environmental protection of its
products, is committed to providing customers with high-quality products, and
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continuously optimizes its service system to provide the best quality service for
customers. The Group has built multiple communication channels to learn about
the needs and opinions of customers, with an aim to fully protect their rights and
interests.

The Group maintains good business relationships with, and manages suppliers in a
fair, just and open manner, and achieves a win-win situation with them through
honest operation and timely performance of contracts.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The financial summary of the Group for the previous 4 financial years (i.e. 2016
to 2019) is set out in the section “Financial Highlights” of this annual report.
This summary does not constitute a part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major customers

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the volume of transactions with the
Group's top five customers accounted for 82.8% of the Group’s total revenue (for
the year ended December 31, 2018: 83.4%), and the volume of transactions with
the Group’s largest single customer (YCIH Group) accounted for 69.9% of the
Group's total revenue (for the year ended December 31, 2018: 73.3%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the volume of transactions with the
Group’s top five suppliers accounted for 14.2% of the Group’s total purchase
amount (for the year ended December 31, 2018: 13.3%), and the volume of
transactions with the Group's largest single supplier (YCIH Group) accounted for
5.3% of the Group’s total purchase amount (for the year ended December 31,
2018: 6.1%).

During the Reporting Period, to the knowledge of the Board, save for YCIH Group
(being a holder of more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company), none of
the Directors, any of their close associates or any of the Shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued Shares of the
Company) had any interest in any of the Group's top five customers or suppliers.

IMMOVABLE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2019 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2019 are set out in Note 39(a) to the financial statements
on page 247 and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 140
respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RETAINED EARNINGS

As at December 31, 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB154,033,000. As at December 31, 2018, the distributable
reserves of the Company amounted to approximately RMB214,127,000.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2019 are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date prior to the bulk

printing of this annual report, the Directors and Supervisors are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Minchao (chairman)
Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Ms. Hu Zhurong

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Guangcan
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

Supervisors:

Mr. Wu Xinhe

Ms. Li Yan

Mr. Chang Hongbing
Ms. Li Na

Mr. Guo Huan
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Details of the confirmation of independence of the independent non-executive
Directors are discussed and disclosed in the “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Such service contracts do not stipulate any compensation (other than
statutory compensation) payable by the Company if it terminates such contracts
within one year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

For the year ended December 31, 2019 and as of the Latest Practicable Date prior
to the bulk printing of this annual report, none of the Directors or Supervisors had
any material interest, directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had arranged appropriate liability
insurance for each of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date prior to the
bulk printing of this annual report, the Company did not sign or enter into any
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICIES

Directors, Supervisors and senior management members of the Company receive
remunerations from the Company in the form of salaries, Director’s fees, benefit
schemes, discretionary bonuses and other interests (allowances, subsidies, etc.).
Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and senior management are determined
with reference to the industry market standards and operations of the Company.

The Group’s employees’ remunerations mainly include fixed salary, statutory
allowances and subsidies, performance-related pay and achievement-related pay.
In accordance with PRC laws, the Group also makes contributions to pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing provident fund for employees.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details about the Group’s retirement and employee benefit schemes are set out in
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Changes in information of the Directors and the Supervisors required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules are set out as
follows:

Mr. Wu Xinhe has been serving as chairman of the board of directors of Hong
Kong Kunjing Capital Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of KMEIC) since
February 2020.

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Changsha Broad Homes Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 02163) since March 2019.

Save for the disclosure above, as of the Latest Practicable Date prior to the
bulk printing of this annual report, no other changes in the information of any
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive officer are required to be disclosed
according to paragraphs (a)-(e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2019, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which should be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which are taken or deemed to be
held under such provisions of the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein,
or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period did the Company or its subsidiaries enter
into any arrangement to enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits
through acquisition of the Shares or debentures of the Company or any other
corporation, nor had any Directors, Supervisors or their spouses or children
aged under 18 been granted any rights to acquire Shares or debentures of the
Company or any other corporation or exercised any of such rights.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2019, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following

parties (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company)

had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which is

required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and has been entered in the register kept by the Company according to

Section 336 of the SFO:
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RARARRAIRIE(ES KBGO )FE 336158
FTHEEzELZMAZERZIAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the
corresponding
class of issued

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Long/ Shares share capital
short LREER BT
Capacity/ Number of position ERTRG BB
Name Nature of interest  Class of Shares Shares BE/ HEZHA REZBH
#E 513 RELE R385l RHHAE KB Aol ERal1
YCIHMNote ) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 228,600,000  Long position 73.18% 51.22%
Interest held by Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
controlled
corporations (ete 2
Total: 280,050,000  Long position 89.65% 62.75%
ERgRHE BERBEAA WER 228,600,000 e 73.18% 51.22%
REEERAR AE K 51,450,000 e 16.47% 11.53%
fE2S ()
X 280,050,000 we 89.65% 62.75%
YOICMNote 2 Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
BHRE WD BREAA NE K 51,450,000 HA 16.47% 11.53%
KMEICMNete 3 Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 32,340,000  Long position 10.35% 7.25%
S SUILES BHEAA NE K 32,340,000 HE 10.35% 7.25%
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science Interest held by H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.0%
and Technology Co., Ltd. Mot 4 controlled
corporations®ete 4
FHERBRGHRAF 0 REEEEHEN Hi 13,388,000 ) 10.00% 3.0%
ﬁéﬁ (Hizza)
Zoomlion H.K. Holding Co., Interest held by H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.0%
Limited(ete4) controlled
corporations®ete 4
REER (FE)ER REEEREAR Hi& 13,388,000 HE 10.00% 3.0%

ﬁﬁE/L\\ Ej(MﬁEA\/

Eéf\?i (BizEa)
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the
corresponding
class of issued

EEHE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Long/ Shares share capital
short LR EER LB
Capacity/ Number of position ERITRG RAME
Name Nature of interest  Class of Shares Shares BE/ HEZHA REZBH
] B REELE R &5 ROEUE KB Rl Rl
Zoomlion International Trading Beneficial owner H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.0%
(H.K.) Co., Limited®ete
THENERES(FE) EnfEBA Hi% 13,388,000 HE 10.00% 3.0%
S IGED
China Resources Company Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
Limited®ete s) controlled
corporations®ete
REERFRARME REEEREN Hi% 40,164,000 HE 30.00% 9.0%
fE2g (s)
China Resources Inc.Mote %) Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
controlled
corporations®ete *
EHRMH AR AT W REEERAN HAR 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.0%
%ﬁ—ﬁ (Bf3Es)
CRC Bluesky Limited®te Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
controlled
corporations®ote 5
CRC Bluesky Limited */5) REEEBEN HI% 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.0%
fERg ms)
China Resources (Holdings) Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
Company Limited®ete controlled
corporations®ote %
EHKRE) AR R REEEREN Hi% 40,164,000 HE 30.00% 9.0%
fEk (Es)
CRH (Cement) Limited®te ) Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
controlled
corporations®ete
EREEOKE)BR AR M LB AR HE% 40,164,000 e 30.00% 9.0%
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5B % =
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding Approximate
in the percentage of
corresponding  shareholding in
class of issued  the total issued
Long/ Shares share capital
short 5B R BT
Capacity/ Number of position ERITRG RAME
Name Nature of interest  Class of Shares Shares BE/ HEZHA REZBH
#E B REELE R385l RHHAE KB Rl Rl
China Resources Cement Holdings Interest held by H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
Limited®ete®) controlled
corporations®ete 5
EBIORERBR D R TE R EERHAN HA% 40,164,000 =y 30.00% 9.0%
fEzg ns)
China Resources Cement Holdings Beneficial owner®t %) H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.0%
(Hong Kong) Limited®"ote
ERRRER(ER) ERERA W) Hi% 40,164,000 HE 30.00% 9.0%
NS
Kunming Iron & Steel Holdings Beneficial owner H Shares 12,360,300  Long position 9.23% 2.77%
Co. Ltd.
ERMHERERAF EHEEAA HIE 12,360,300 Ha 9.23% 2.77%
Hua An Fund Management Otherstot © H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Co., Ltd. Otherstote 6) H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Total: 20,487,000  Long position 15.30% 4.59%
ERESERERATA Hth (99 HE& 12,350,000 #e 9.22% 2.77%
Hy =0 Hi& 8,137,000 e 6.08% 1.82%
g 20,487,000 e 15.30% 4.59%
Hua An Fund — QDlII single Otherstote 7 H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
asset management plan of
YCIC Investment
ERHe —TERRKRE Hefy (07 Hi% 8,137,000 HE 6.08% 1.82%
QDIE—EEEEEE
Yunnan Communications Otherstote 7 H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Investment & Construction
Group Co., Ltd.Mote?
EHERBRARSRE Hiy (KD HR 8,137,000 R 6.08% 1.82%
BR A 7
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the
corresponding
class of issued

EEHE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Long/ Shares share capital
short LR EER LB
Capacity/ Number of position ERITRG RAME
Name Nature of interest  Class of Shares Shares BE/ HEZHA REZBH
] B REELE R &5 ROEUE KB Rl Rl
YCIC Investment Co., Ltd.Mete? Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000 Loanable shares 6.08% 1.82%
EHRREERERFRAATT  BREAA Hi 8,137,000 HE 6.08% 1.82%
EnEAA Hi% 8,137,000  AIHEHE 6.08% 1.82%
B 1n
Hua An Fund - QDII single asset Otherstote ® H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
management plan of Yunnan
State Farms
ERRES —ERPQDIE Hfty (o) HE% 12,350,000 e 9.22% 2.77%
—BEERE
Yunnan State Farms Group Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Co., Ltd.MNote®)
EHRBREEEREM AR BEmnlEBA HAR 12,350,000 5] 9.22% 2.77%
Yunnan Industrial Investment Beneficial owner H Shares 12,500,000  Long position 9.34% 2.80%
Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
EHATIERAEREE EREAA Hi% 12,500,000 HE 9.34% 2.80%
EREEAA
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL Interest held by H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
ENERGY INVESTMENT controlled
GROUP CO., LTDMNete9) corporations®ete
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL REEERAS Hi% 12,350,000 HE 9.22% 2.77%
ENERGY INVESTMENT Tz (o)
GROUP CO., LTD =2
Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Co. Limited®ete®
Yunnan Energy Investment BEnBEBA Hi& 12,350,000 e 9.22% 2.77%
(H K) Co. Limited *&
HWABAQ TRUST CO., LTDMte 1) Trustee (Note 10) H Shares 12,360,300  Long position 9.23% 2.77%
HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD#10) EEINE HIR 12,360,300 HE 9.23% 2.77%
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State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Yunnan Province holds
90.27% equity interest in YCIH and Yunnan Provincial Department of Finance (£7% Bf EEB)
holds 9.73% equity interest in YCIH.

YOIC is wholly owned by YCIH. By virtue of the SFO, YCIH is deemed to be interested in the
51,450,000 Domestic Shares held by YOIC.

KMEIC is wholly owned by State-owned Assets Administration Commission of Kunming
Economic and Technological Development Zone (EBA&ERMHZERHNEEEETEEZES).

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (FEtERIRMHBRRAF]) is the sole
shareholder of Zoomlion H.K. Holding Co., Limited (FE§ER (FH) 1ZIRAMRAF]), which in
turn is the sole shareholder of Zoomlion International Trading (H.K.) Co., Limited (B¢ ERIE
BES (58) ARAR).

China Resources Company Limited (FEIZEHAER A F]) is the beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of China Resources Inc. (ZEEMRMDAMRARF]), which in turn is the
beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of CRC Bluesky Limited, which in turn
is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (38 () HBRAF]), which in turn is the beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of CRH (Cement) Limited (ZEH%E (/KE) AMRZAR]) and Commotra
Company Limited (& B AR ZAR]). CRH (Cement) Limited CEMERE (JKJe) BRAR]) directly
held approximately 68.63% of the issued share capital of China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited ((£B7RIZER AR A R), whereas Commotra Company Limited (& & HRAA) directly
held approximately 0.09% of the issued share capital of China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited (ZEBACRIZRR AR A R]), which in turn is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of China Resources Cement Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (¥ERIZME (F
) BRAFE).

Hua An Fund Management Co., Ltd. CEZEEEIEHRRAR]) is the asset manager of (1) Hua
An Fund — QDI single asset management plan of Yunnan State Farms; and (2) Hua An Fund
— QDII single asset management plan of YCIC Investment.

YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. (ZFREEEKREARAF) is wholly owned by Yunnan
Communications Investment & Construction Group Co., Ltd. (Ef&EBIREZREBMERA
a]). YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. (EERXEEEIEEHRRAR]) invested in the underlying Shares
issued by the Company as client through Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan
of YCIC Investment. By virtue of the SFO, Yunnan Communications Investment & Construction
Group Co., Ltd. (EMEAXRBIREZZLEBMABMRAA) is deemed to be interested in the
8,137,000 H Shares held in the Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of YCIC
Investment.

Yunnan State Farms Group Co., Ltd. (EFRZEEEFRELARF) invested in the underlying
Shares issued by the Company as client through Hua An Fund — QDII single asset
management plan of Yunnan State Farms.

Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. Limited is wholly owned by YUNNAN PROVINCIAL
ENERGY INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD. By virtue of the SFO, YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD is deemed to be interested in the 12,350,000 H Shares held
by Yunnan Energy Investment (H K) Co. Limited.

By virtue of the SFO, HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD, as trustee, is deemed to be interested in
the 12,360,300 H Shares held by HWABAO OVERSEAS INVESTMENT SERIES 2 NO 42-8 QDII
SINGLE MONEY TRUST.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2019, the Directors were not aware
of any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of
the Company) having any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which are required to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or recorded in the register as specified in Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company did not enter into any
equity-linked agreement.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing Date to December 31,
2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and
PRC laws which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to its existing Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

YCIH has entered into a non-competition agreement with our Company, which
is dated September 25, 2019 (the “Non-Competition Agreement”), pursuant
to which, YCIH has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to our Company
(for the interests of our Company itself and other members of our Group) that
YCIH shall not, and shall procure that its associates (excluding our Group) will
not, directly or indirectly, whether on their own or jointly with another person
or company, own, invest in, participate in, develop, operate or engage in any
business or company which directly or indirectly competes or may compete with
any business of our Company. Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the

non-competition undertakings.

The Company has received the annual confirmation that YCIH has complied with
the Non-Competition Agreement during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the performance of
the Non-Competition Agreement during the Reporting Period according to the
information and confirmation provided or given by YCIH, and is satisfied that YCIH
has complied with the Non-Competition Agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2019, none of the Directors nor any of their associates had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2019, our Group has entered into the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Prospectus.

Continuing connected transactions subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from strict compliance with the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement

Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement
Our Company entered into the land and property leasing framework agreement
(the “Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement”) on September 25,
2019 with YCIH, pursuant to which the Company may lease land and property
lawfully owned by YCIH and/or its associates. During the Reporting Period, the
land and properties leased from YCIH and/or its associates included:

(i) two pieces of land in Kunming where two batching plants of our Group
are located to serve the regional market, covering an area of 16 mu and 42
mu, respectively;

(i)  one property in Kunming leased for use as the Company’s headquarters
office, with an aggregate GFA of 4,179.61 m?

(i) one property in Kunming leased for use as the Company’s staff canteen,
with an aggregate GFA of 565.84 m?; and

(iv)  one property in Zhaotong leased for use as the Company's office, with an
aggregate GFA of 2,075.26 m?.

The initial term of the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement
commenced on the Listing Date and will end on December 31, 2021, subject to
early termination by either party giving at least 30 business days’ prior written
notice to the other party.
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The main pricing principles stipulated in the Land and Property Leasing Framework
Agreement are as follows:

(i) both parties shall refer to the prevailing market rates of similar land and
properties in the neighboring area of the relevant land and properties, and
determine the rentals with reference to such market rates to ensure a fair

and reasonable rental level on normal commercial terms;

(i) both parties shall review and adjust (if applicable) rentals upon the renewal
of the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement by reference to the
prevailing market conditions, including factors like the geographical location,
the standard of construction and the surrounding area; and

(i) the Company shall bear all utility charges incurred in using the relevant
properties during the term of the lease, and also be responsible for costs
for maintenance and repair of the land and properties.

As of December 31, 2019, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of our
Company'’s issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of our Company.
Therefore, YCIH and its associates were connected persons of our Company and
the transactions under the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

For the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the annual cap
under the Land and Property Leasing Framework Agreement is RMB5.56 million.
The actual amount incurred during the Reporting Period is RMB5.16 million.

Continuing connected transactions subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements

Products Sales Framework Agreement

Our Company entered into the Products Sales Framework Agreement (“Products
Sales Framework Agreement for 2019") on September 25, 2019 with YCIH,
pursuant to which the Group will sell concrete, aggregates and other products
to YCIH and its associates. The initial term of the Products Sales Framework
Agreement for 2019 commenced on the Listing Date and will end on December
31, 2021, subject to early termination by either party giving at least 30 business
days’ prior written notice to the other party.
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Under the Products Sales Framework Agreement for 2019, the main pricing
principles are as follows:

(i) the price shall be determined in accordance with the pricing policy and
guidelines adopted and regularly reviewed by our Company for sales of
products to all customers with reference to upstream materials and products
prices and other costs, and be generally in line with the relevant market
prices at which the same type of products provided by our Company to
an Independent Third Party on normal commercial terms; to determine the
prevailing market prices, reference will be made to the price our Company
offers to the Independent Third Party customers for the same type of
products; the following factors will also be taken into account to determine
the market prices: payment terms, the specific requirements of the parties,
the quality of the products required and the geographical areas where our
products are provided, etc., to ensure the prices will be no less favorable to
our Company than those of same type of products our Company provides
to the Independent Third Party customers; and

(i) in the unlikely event that no comparable market price can be taken, experts
in our Group with sufficient industry experience could opine on the fairness
and reasonableness of the price by reference to the comparable price and/
or historical transaction price of the most similar items to ensure the price
would be fair and reasonable to our Company and no less favorable to our
Company than the price we offer to the Independent Third Party customers.

As of December 31, 2019, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of our
Company'’s issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of our Company.
Therefore, YCIH and its associates were connected persons of our Company and the
transactions under the Products Sales Framework Agreement for 2019 constituted
continuing connected transactions of our Company.

For the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the annual caps
under the Products Sales Framework Agreement for 2019 were RMB2,555 million,
RMB2,706 million and RMB2,872 million, respectively. The actual amount incurred
during the Reporting Period was RMB2,522 million.

In order to facilitate the management of existing non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, our Company has streamlined the validity periods of the
relevant framework agreements. Our Company and YCIH entered into a new
products sales framework agreement on March 27, 2020 to replace the Products
Sales Framework Agreement for 2019. For details, please refer to the continuing
connected transaction announcement dated March 27, 2020 published by our
Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and our Company.
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Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework
Agreement

Our Company entered into the raw materials, products and services procurement
framework agreement (“Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement
Framework Agreement for 2019”) on September 25, 2019 with YCIH, pursuant
to which the Group will procure raw materials, products and services from YCIH
and its associates. The raw materials, products and services to be procured
thereunder include, without limitation, the following:

(i) raw materials: cement, aggregates and others;

(i) products: production equipment and other products used in our Company’s
production operations; and

(iii)  services: construction services, property management services and

consultancy services, etc.

The initial term of the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement
Framework Agreement for 2019 commenced on the Listing Date and will end on
December 31, 2021, subject to early termination by either party giving at least 30

business days’ prior written notice to the other party.

Under the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework
Agreement for 2019, the main pricing principles are as follows:

With respect to raw materials:

(i) the price shall be generally in line with the relevant market price at which
the same type of raw materials provided to our Company by Independent
Third Party suppliers on normal commercial terms. The Group will conduct
market research and regularly contact its suppliers (including both YCIH and/
or its associates and Independent Third Party suppliers) to understand the
market conditions and determine the prevailing market rate of the relevant

type of raw materials; and

(i) where public tendering process is required for the procurement of the
relevant raw materials, the price shall be determined based on the results
of such process in accordance with our Company's internal regulations and
rules applicable to all suppliers of the same type of raw materials. Pursuant
to such regulations and rules, if YCIH and/or its associates win the bid, their
terms offered, including the price quoted, shall be no less favorable than
those offered by any Independent Third Party supplier that participates in
the tendering process.
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With respect to products:

@)

(ii)

the price shall be generally in line with the relevant market prices at which
the same type of products provided to our Company by an Independent
Third Party on normal commercial terms; to determine the prevailing market
prices, reference will be made to the historical prices of the same type of
products, where applicable, the guidance price published by authoritative
organizations and institutions, and costs for relevant products learned
through market research, to ensure the prices will be no less favorable
to our Company than those of same type of products provided to our
Company by the Independent Third Party suppliers; and

where public tendering process is required for the procurement of the
relevant product, the price shall be determined based on the results of such
process in accordance with our Company’s internal regulations and rules
applicable to all suppliers of the same type of product. Pursuant to such
regulations and rules, if YCIH and/or its associates win the bid, their terms
offered, including the price quoted, shall be no less favorable than those
offered by any Independent Third Party supplier that participates in the
tendering process.

With respect to services:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

the price of construction services shall be determined with reference to
the pricing guideline and method as set out in the Pricing Guidelines for
Construction and Engineering of Yunnan Province (2013 Edition) ( (EFE%
201 3pRERR TAZAEERHBKIR) ),

the price of the property management services shall be determined with
reference to the prevailing market rates and conditions in the neighboring
area of the same type of property, including factors like the geographical
location, the standard and quality of services and the condition of the
property; and

the price of consultancy services shall be determined with reference to the
prevailing market rates at which the same type of services provided to our
Company by an Independent Third Party on normal commercial terms.

As of December 31, 2019, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of our
Company's issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of our Company.

Therefore, YCIH and its associates were connected persons of our Company and

the transactions under the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement

Framework Agreement for 2019 constituted continuing connected transactions of

the Company.
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For the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the annual
caps under the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework
Agreement for 2019 were RMB200 million, RMB249 million and RMB244 million,
respectively. The actual amount incurred during the Reporting Period was RMB166

million.

In order to facilitate the management of existing non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, our Company has streamlined the validity periods of the
relevant framework agreements. Our Company and YCIH entered into a new raw
materials, products and services procurement framework agreement on March 27,
2020 to replace the Raw Materials, Products and Services Procurement Framework
Agreement for 2019. For details, please refer to the continuing connected
transaction announcement dated March 27, 2020 published by our Company on
the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and our Company.

Financial Services Framework Agreement

Our Company entered into the financial services framework agreement on October
15, 2019 (“Financial Services Framework Agreement for 2019”) with YCIH
Financial Company, pursuant to which YCIH Financial Company has agreed to
provide the following financial services and our Company has agreed to use some
or all of such financial services depending on our own requirements:

(i) deposits services;

(i) bills acceptance and discount;

(iii)  assistance in fund receipt and payment; and

(iv)  other business approved by the CBIRC.

The initial term (“initial term”) of the Financial Services Framework Agreement for
2019 commenced on the Listing Date and will end on the earlier of: (a) the day
which is one year after the Listing Date; and (b) the day on which our Company

holds its next annual general meeting, subject to early termination by either party
giving at least 30 business days’ prior written notice to the other party.

Under the Financial Services Framework Agreement for 2019, the main pricing
principles are as follows:

(i) deposits services: the interest rates shall not be lower than the interest rates
of the same type of deposits of major domestic commercial banks providing

such services to our Company in the same period.
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(i) bills acceptance and discount services: the service fees or interest rates shall
not be higher than those of the same type of services of major domestic
commercial banks providing such services to our Company in the same
period.

(i) other financial services (comprising assistance in fund receipt and payment
and other business approved by the CBIRC): the fees payable by our
Company to YCIH Financial Company shall not be higher than those of the
same type of services of major domestic commercial banks providing such
services to our Company in the same period.

As of December 31, 2019, YCIH directly and indirectly held 62.75% of our
Company'’s issued Shares and was the Controlling Shareholder of our Company.
YCIH Financial Company is a subsidiary of YCIH. Therefore, YCIH Financial
Company was a connected person of our Company and the transactions under
the Financial Services Framework Agreement for 2019 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

The following table sets forth the transaction caps for the initial term and the
actual amounts incurred for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the
Financial Services Framework Agreement for 2019.

(i)  BEARRBRBRS  REEBIMEA
SerEBRRRRREZSREHE
M 27 RTT R AR AR # BR 75 B A

& o

(i) HMAPFBHERE(SEHBES KN RF
BRRESHENEMER) : AQF]
RNEFEEUBRARANEATESR
REMAARAFRBZERBOBAN TR
BERTRABRBHER -

HZE2019F128310  EFEREELEE
BAERRT6275%D HITHRG - BARATH
ERBER  EZHERMBEARAZEERD
WEAT  BUEMERUB AR ALRRAA
WEAEAT  2019F S RRBIERBZEET
ZRGBHARBZHEBERS °

TREIN2019F SR MBER B E N8
HREANRZ S R R2019FEELENER S
oo

Actual amount
incurred for the

Transaction cap for year ended
the initial term December 31, 2019
(RMB million) (RMB million)
16 EAR A &Y 20195 %
RH5ER BENBERESHE
(AR EET) (AR EBEST)
Deposits services FHRRE
— maximum daily balance (including interest — BHEaHBE(RE
accrued thereon) EETFE) 280 262
Bills acceptance and discount BB EAN KRR 100 23
Assistance in fund receipt and payment % Bh & & YT 1.5 0.5
Other business approved by the CBIRC FERIREE g AR
HAb %7 2.3 0.8

As the Financial Services Framework Agreement for 2019 will expire on the date
of the 2019 AGM, and in order to continuously regulate related transactions,
our Company and YCIH Financial Company entered into a new Financial Services
Framework Agreement on March 27, 2020. For details, please refer to the
continuing connected transaction announcement dated March 27, 2020 published
by our Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and our
Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions have:

(i) been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) been conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) been conducted in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on the terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has performed certain
procedures and confirmed in writing to the Board with respect to the above
continuing connected transactions for the year ended December 31, 2019 that:

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

(i) for the transactions involving the provision of goods or service by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, conducted
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(iv)  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the amounts of the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap.

Please refer to Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements prepared under
the IFRSs for details of the significant related party transactions. Information
on connected transactions and continuing connected transactions required to
be disclosed by the Hong Kong Listing Rules is set out in this chapter. Save
as disclosed above, the related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company nor are they connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions exempt from disclosure
requirements. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules in
relation to the relevant transactions.
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CHARITY DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total charitable donations and other
donations amounted to RMB130,000.

MAJOR LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2019, our Company had no major legal
proceedings or arbitration. To the knowledge of the Directors, there were no
major legal actions or claims that had not been concluded or may threaten our
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

From the Listing Date to December 31, 2019, our Company had purchased liability
insurance for Directors and Supervisors to provide appropriate protection for
Directors and Supervisors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the Reporting Period are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), together with the
management and our Company’s external auditors, has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has been committed to improving its corporate governance
standards since its establishment. Pursuant to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code, it has established a modern corporate governance structure
under which the general meeting, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and
senior management of the Company effectively exercise checks and balances
on each other and operate independently. The Company adopts the Corporate
Governance Code as its corporate governance practice.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices. Information on the corporate governance practices and compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code adopted by our Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued Shares (being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and permitted under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules) was held by the public from the Listing Date and up to the Latest
Practicable Date prior to the bulk printing of this annual report.
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Our Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and Mazars Certified Public AARBEFREF KERTEFRRETMSE
Accountants LLP as our Company’s international auditor and domestic auditor B (ERETEAE)D B AKRDRIEZE2019

for the year ended December 31, 2019, respectively. PricewaterhouseCoopers F12A318 IEFE WO EIMZERD LB R ERT
has audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements prepared in Bl o B EROKED HHEMIRERM B REE
accordance with IFRSs. ARENE IS MRETTER -

Our Company will submit a resolution of intent at the forthcoming 2019 RRB R RITH2019F ERRABF K
AGM to renew the employment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as our Company’s @rHREERRAER BREEARKEAR
international auditor for the year ending December 31, 2020 and appoint NBEE2020F12 A31H IEF E A B IMIE
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian as our Company’s domestic auditor for the B0 BEE E E KB R RBARRARE E£20205F

year ending December 31, 2020. 12A31B IEFERIEBENFRAD -
By Order of the Board AEEEMm
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has been committed to improving corporate governance standards
since its establishment. It has established a modern corporate governance structure
comprising the general meeting, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the
senior management that effectively exercise checks and balances on each other,
operate independently, which emphasizes the corporate governance principles
of transparency, accountability and safeguarding the rights and interests of all
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2019, the
Company had complied with all applicable code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code.

THE BOARD

Duties of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, and monitors the
Group's strategic decisions as well as its business and performance. The Board has
delegated to the senior management members of the Company the powers and
duties of the daily management and operations of the Group. To monitor specific
areas of the Company'’s affairs, the Board has established five Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration and evaluation committee
(the “Remuneration and Evaluation Committee”), the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), the strategy committee (the “Strategy
Committee”) and the risk management and control committee (the “Risk
Management and Control Committee”) (collectively referred to as “Board
committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board committees the duties set
out in their respective terms of reference.

Each Director has the relevant qualifications and experience required for
performing his/her duties as a Director. All Directors shall ensure that they act
honestly and in good faith, comply with applicable laws and regulations, and at
all times perform their duties in a manner that is in the interests of the Company
and Shareholders.

From the Listing Date to December 31, 2019, the Company was not involved
in any material legal proceedings liable by any Directors. The Company has also
provided appropriate liability insurance for legal proceedings against Directors and
will review the insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board and the Management
The Articles of Association have clearly defined the respective terms of reference
of the Board and the management of the Company.

The Board, as the operation decision-making body of the Company, is accountable
to the general meeting. Its main duties and powers include implementing the
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resolutions of the general meeting, making decisions on the Company's business
plans and investment plans, determining the establishment of the Company’s
internal management bodies and the establishment or closing of the Company’s
branches or representative offices, and employing members of senior management.

The duties and powers delegated to the management by the Board include
presiding over the Company’s production and operation management, organizing
the implementation of Board resolutions and the Company’s annual operation
plans and investment plans, drawing up proposals for the establishment of
the Company’s internal management bodies, proposing the Company’s basic

management system and formulating the Company’s basic regulations.

To maintain the Company’s highly efficient operation, as well as flexibility and
swiftness in operational decision-making, the Board, when necessary, may delegate
its managing and administrative powers to the management, and provide clear
directions regarding such delegation so as to avoid impeding or undermining the

overall capabilities of the Board in exercising its powers.

Composition of the Board

From the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date prior to the bulk printing
of this annual report, the Board consisted of four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, as detailed

below:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Ma Minchao (chairman)
Mr. Rao Ye

Mr. Lu Jianfeng

Ms. Hu Zhurong

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Guangcan
Mr. He Jiangiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles

of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Save as disclosed in the biographical details of the Directors contained in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, no Director has any personal relationship with any other Director
or the Company’s chief executive (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships).

Independent non-executive Directors

From the Listing Date to December 31, 2019, the Company had complied
with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules regarding the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors, at least one of
whom shall have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or relevant
financial management expertise. Independent non-executive Directors represent
one-third of the Board, which is compliant with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmations of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules. Therefore, the Company is of the view that they are
independent persons.

Board Diversity Policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and maintain a high standard of
corporate governance, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
"Board Diversity Policy”) that sets out the aim and approach towards achieving
and maintaining diversity of the Board. According to the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy, the Company will take into consideration a number of factors
when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, culture, educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, in order to achieve board diversity. The ultimate
decision of appointment will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including knowledge
and skills in relation to the business of concrete production and manufacturing,
financial management, accounting and law. They have obtained professional
degrees in various majors, including business administration, law, construction
engineering materials, accounting and environmental engineering. The Company
has three independent non-executive Directors with different industry backgrounds,
representing one-third of the Board. In addition, the age range of the members of
the Board is wide, ranging from 33 to 54. The Company has also taken, and will
continue to take, measures to promote gender diversity on the Board. Currently,
there is one female executive Director. The Company recognizes that, as majority
of the Directors are male, the gender diversity of the Board can be improved, and
will continue to appoint Directors based on competence and with reference to
the overall diversity policy. The Board will also ensure that an appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to investors’ expectations as well as
international and local recommended best practices.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring a diverse Board. Since
the listing of the Company, the Nomination Committee has been responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing and
revising the policy when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness. The Company
will also disclose the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of its annual reports.

After consideration of the Company’s current business model and specific
demands and the different backgrounds and competence of the Directors, the
Directors are of the opinion that the composition of the Board complies with the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy.

All the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have brought
various valuable business experience, knowledge and professional skills to the
Board, to ensure efficient and effective operation of the Board. Independent
non-executive Directors are invited to hold positions in the Audit Committee,
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee, Nomination Committee, Strategy
Committee and Risk Management and Control Committee.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All newly appointed Directors are provided with the necessary induction training
and information to ensure they are adequately informed of the operations
and businesses of the Company and their responsibilities under relevant laws,
regulations, rules and ordinances. The Company also regularly arranges seminars
for Directors in order to provide them with updates on the latest developments
and changes regarding the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other relevant laws,
regulations and regulatory provisions. Directors are also regularly provided with
updated data about the Company’s performance, status and prospect, so that the
Board and all the Directors can fulfil their respective duties.

The Company encourages and supports the continuous professional development
of all the Directors to develop and update their knowledge and skills, so as
to ensure that they have comprehensive information to continue to make
contributions to the Board according to actual needs. The joint company secretary
of the Company updates and provides written training materials in relation to
Directors’ roles, functions and duties from time to time.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, the training received by all
the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2019 is summarized as follows:

BEESRHOER  HE2019F12A8318
IHFE 2REZEIHFIFROT -

Nature of continuous professional
development course

SEHEEER

Name of Director EE®E BRAE M E
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Ma Minchao BHBEE A/C/D
Mr. Rao Ye B A/B/C/D
Mr. Lu Jianfeng B Rleg kA4 A/C/D
Ms. Hu Zhurong AR £ A/C/D
Non-executive Directors: HHITESE :
Mr. Liu Guangcan Bl @EE A/C/D
Mr. He Jiangiang Al 3 58 5 A& A/C/D
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHNTESE -
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE A/C/D
Mr. Yu Dingming FEBREE A/C/D
Mr. Li Hongkun FMBALE A/C/D
Notes: B 5
A Attend seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefing sessions A HEMTE R,/ ReERSwER, KRS
B: Make a speech at seminars and/or meetings and/or forums B: R e &g E RSB B E
C: Attend trainings provided by the law firm and trainings in relation to the Company’s businesses C: 2 NEEMATIREMEI - BAREKE B
D: Read documents on various topics, including corporate governance, Directors’ duties, the D: MBZEHARZENME  SBEELEER

Hong Kong Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations and regulatory provisions EERE - %J:miﬂ%&ﬁﬂﬂﬁ BERERR

EERTE

Chairman and General Manager EERRAKE

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles
of chairman of the Board and the general manager should be distinguished and
assumed by different persons.

Mr. Ma Minchao and Mr. Lu Jianfeng currently serve as chairman of the Board
and the general manager (the “General Manager”) of the Company, respectively.
The two different positions are distinguished by functions and powers. The
chairman of the Board is mainly responsible for presiding over the work of the
Board and takes full responsibility for the Company’s administrative management
work which mainly includes major decision making, formulation of development
strategies, industrial structure adjustment, major market development, auditing,

market value management, resource integration and other important work.
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The General Manager is mainly responsible for the Company’s production
and operation management, convening and presiding over office meetings of
the General Manager of the Company, building of management systems and
organization and implementation of the Board resolutions.

Appointment of Directors

The term of office of a Director is generally three years. The term of office of
the incumbent Directors is from the effective date of appointment after the
said Directors were elected at the general meeting to the date of expiry of the
term of office of the first session of the Board (December 19, 2020). Upon the
expiry of the terms, the Directors may be re-elected. If, upon the expiry of his/
her term, a Director is not re-elected in a timely manner or if any Director resigns
during his/her term of office such that the membership of the Board falls short
of the quorum, the said Director shall continue to fulfil his/her duties pursuant to
relevant laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until a new
Director takes office.

The procedures and processes for appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-election and succession of
Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company will adopt the practice of regularly holding a Board meeting
according to the Corporate Governance Code and hold at least four regular Board
meetings every year, that is, about once every quarter. A notice will be sent to all
the Directors at least 14 days before the convening of a regular Board meeting, so
that all the Directors have the opportunity to attend regular meetings and discuss
the matters on the agenda.

Regarding other meetings of the Board and the Board committees, the Company
will send a notice containing the meeting agenda and the relevant Board
documents within the time specified by the Articles of Association, so as to
ensure the Directors have sufficient time to review the relevant documents and
adequately prepare for attending the meeting. If any Director or member of the
Board committees fails to attend the meeting, the said Director or member will be
informed of the matters to be discussed and have the opportunity to make their
views known to the chairman of the meeting before the meeting is convened.

The joint company secretary will keep minutes for each meeting. The minutes of
the meetings of the Board and the Board committees will record in detail the
matters considered and decisions made by the Board and the Board committees,
including any concerns or dissenting opinions raised by the Directors. The draft
version and final version of the minutes of the Board and the Board committees
meetings are/will be sent to all the Directors within a reasonable period after the
meetings. The draft version is for their consideration and the final version is for
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record keeping purposes. The minutes of the Board meetings are available for ECOERANHEBEER  ERAELEY
inspection by all the Directors. A-Ezgganeacuersmtmes
EEH -

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Board held 13 meetings and the REZE2019F12A3MBILFEAR g H

Company convened four general meetings. Directors’ attendance at the Board TBREFEEIREARABHRIRKREXR
meetings and the general meetings is set out as follows: g EESHFREFgeaURRE RN
BERAEN T :
Board Meeting General Meeting
Directors 2= EESY BEXE
Mr. Ma Minchao BEBELE 13/13 4/4
Mr. Rao Ye gAES A 13/13 4/4
Mr. Lu Jianfeng®ote » & & §% 5 & (ED 10/10 3/3
Ms. Hu Zhurong AR R 2 & 13/13 4/4
Mr. Liu Guangcan 2Bk & 13/13 4/4
Mr. He Jiangiang fa] 22 58 5¢ 4 13/13 4/4
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas®ete 2 T ERR o &£ HED 5/5 2/2
Mr. Yu Dingming FEBREE 13/13 4/4
Mr. Li Hongkun®ete 3 R 4T R o A (e 5/5 2/2
Notes: B aE -
1. Mr. Lu Jianfeng was appointed as executive Director on March 15, 2019. 1. BRIBEEB2019F3R1SHEBZERNITE
$ °
2. Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 2. FEMEEBE2019F9A25AREEZ(E RE L IE
September 25, 2019. WITES -
3. Mr. Li Hongkun was appointed as independent non-executive Director on September 20, 3. FATIR LA H20196 98208 EZ T AB I
2015 HTES -
s — A 32 Ao M
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ETREFERXINEESTA

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for all the RABERNFETR ERFMBESE &
Directors, Supervisors and relevant employees of the Company (as defined in the ERARFNEBEEE (FERZESTR)#E
Model Code) to conduct securities transactions of the Company. After specific TARRBEFR NI AT - REHA
inquiries were made to all the Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and EEREENARETHE EEREEHRE
Supervisors confirmed that they had strictly complied with the standards set out in RELETWHBEE219F12A310  BEH
the Model Code from the Listing Date to December 31, 2019. ERRETRETRIMZEE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board confirms that the Directors shall be jointly responsible for corporate

governance and their corporate governance functions include:

(a)

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with laws and regulatory provisions;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

formulating, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance

manual applicable to employees and Directors;

formulating and reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, and making suggestions and report relevant matters to the Board;
and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three members, including two independent non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Hongkun (chairman) and Mr. Wong Kai Yan

Thomas, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Guangcan.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

supervising and evaluating the work of the external auditor and proposing

the engagement or replacement of the external auditor;

supervising, evaluating and directing internal audit work;

reviewing and commenting on the Company’s financial reports;

supervising and evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s financial

reporting system and internal control;

coordinating the communication among the management, internal audit
department and other relevant departments, and the external auditor;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the applicable corporate
governance codes and the corporate governance reports required to be
disclosed under the listing rules of the listing place;
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©

ensuring the establishment of proper channels by the Company so that
employees can confidentially report or challenge possible misconduct in
financial reporting, internal control or other aspects, and reviewing relevant
arrangements from time to time to enable the Company to investigate such
matters in a fair and independent manner and take appropriate follow-up

measures,;

9. reporting its decisions or suggestions to the Board, except where it is
prohibited to do so under legal or other restrictions; and

10. handling other matters as required by applicable laws, regulations, the
Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Rules of Procedure for Board Meetings or
authorized by the Board.

The work rules for the Audit Committee are available for inspection on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

From the Listing Date to the date of publication of this annual report, the Audit
Committee held meetings on January 10, 2020, March 5, 2020 and March 27,
2020, respectively, and considered the self-evaluation report on internal control for
2019, the re-appointment and appointment of domestic and international auditors
in 2020, the framework agreements on continuing connected transactions and the
related annual caps, the profit distribution plan for 2019, the audited consolidated
financial statements and the independent auditor’s report for 2019 and other
matters. All members of the Audit Committee have each attended the three
meetings.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the meetings is set out as

follows:
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Number of meetings attended/
required to attend

BHERE
Name of Director BEERE EHERH
Mr. Li Hongkun (chairman) FUBGEE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Liu Guangcan 2 g S & 3/3
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE 3/3
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently consists of three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman) and Mr.

Li Hongkun, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ma Minchao.
The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

1. studying the criteria and procedures for the selection of Directors and senior
management of the Company, including but not limited to appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession plan of Directors, and making
recommendations to the Board;

2. extensively identifying candidates qualified to serve as Directors or senior
management of the Company, and selecting and nominating relevant
persons to serve as Directors or senior management of the Company or

advising the Board on such nomination;

3. examining the qualifications of the candidates for Directors and senior

management of the Company and making recommendations in respect thereof;
4. assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

5. advising the Board on the size and composition of the Board based on
the Company’s business activities, asset size and shareholding structure
of the Company, reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
diversification in skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
once every year, and making suggestions on any proposed change to the

Board in support of the Company’s strategies;

6. reporting its decisions or suggestions to the Board, except where it is

prohibited to do so under legal or regulatory restrictions; and

7. other duties and powers stipulated by applicable laws, regulations and the
Hong Kong Listing Rules or authorized by the Board.

The Nomination Committee evaluates candidates or incumbents based on
standards such as integrity, experience, skills, and time and efforts devoted to
performing responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee

will then be submitted to the Board for decision.

The work rules for Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

From the Listing Date to the date of publication of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee held a meeting on March 27, 2020, and considered the
matters concerning the assessment on the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and the review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board, etc. All members of the Nomination Committee attended the meeting.
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The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the meeting is set

out as follows:

HEBEEREHEZEEFNBREAR

Number of meetings attended/
required to attend

BHERE
Director ) EHERE
Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman) FTEBREE(EE) 11
Mr. Ma Minchao BEBEE 11
Mr. Li Hongkun EXARL 11

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee consists of three members, including

two

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman) and

Mr. Li Hongkun, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Rao Ye.

The

main responsibilities of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are as

follows:

81

studying the criteria for performance evaluation of Directors and senior
management of the Company, conducting evaluation and making

recommendations;

studying and reviewing the remuneration policy and scheme for Directors
and senior management of the Company;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management of the Company and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
a remuneration policy according to the main scope of work, duties and
importance of the Directors and senior management of the Company and

the remuneration levels of comparable companies;

studying the performance evaluation criteria and procedures, remuneration
and measures for rewards and punishments of Directors and senior
management of the Company and making suggestions;

assessing the performance of duties by the Directors and senior

management of the Company and evaluating their performance;

reviewing and approving the suggestions on remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Company with reference to the
Company’s business policies and objectives, and investment plans;

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the Company,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments
(including any compensation for loss or termination of their office or
appointment), and proposing to the Board with respect to the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors. The factors to be considered by the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee may include the remunerations
paid to relevant persons by comparable companies, time devoted by the
Directors or senior management of the Company for the performance
of their duties and the specific scope of duties of the Directors or senior
management of the Company, remunerations for persons holding other
positions in the Company, etc. In considering and determining the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management of the Company,
the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee shall ensure that no Director or
senior management of the Company or any of their associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remunerations;

supervising and inspecting the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration management system, and reporting to the Board;

considering and determining whether to make any compensation to
Directors and senior management of the Company for the loss or
termination of their office, and ensuring such compensation (if any)
conforms to relevant contract terms; in case of any inconformity, relevant

compensation shall be fair and reasonable;

considering and determining whether to make any compensation to
Directors for their dismissal or removal caused by their misconduct, and
ensuring such compensation (if any) conforms to relevant contract terms;
in case of any inconformity, relevant compensation shall be fair and
reasonable;

reviewing and supervising the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Company;

reporting its decisions or suggestions to the Board, except where it is
prohibited to do so under legal and other restrictions; and

other matters specified in the applicable laws, regulations and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules or authorized by the Board.

The work rules for the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are available for

inspection on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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From the Listing Date to the date of publication of this annual report, the

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee held a meeting on March 27, 2020,

and considered the remunerations of Directors and senior management of the

Company for 2019 and 2020. All members of the Remuneration and Evaluation

Committee attended the meeting.

The attendance of members of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee at

the meeting is set out as follows:

BErTmAYREAFERTIZEEE  FElE:
BEEBEMN2020F38278BHEH  Ba7T
BREBERARASREEAB219FE K
2020 £ % Mm%ﬁ FBEFHREZREZE
EREALRILLREH -

EFHEERZEEREHEZEEINE
RERTE :

Number of meetings attended/
required to attend

BHERE
Name of Director EEHE FEHRERE
Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman) FERLE(EE) 1”n
Mr. Rao Ye £ 8 O A 11
Mr. Li Hongkun EAR: S 11
Strategy Committee BHREES
The Strategy Committee consists of five members, including three executive BHREZEemAR/KEHK =T

Directors, namely Mr. Ma Minchao (chairman), Mr. Rao Ye and Mr. Lu Jianfeng;

one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Guangcan; and one independent non-

executive Director, namely Mr. Li Hongkun.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are as follows:

83

conducting researches and submitting proposals regarding strategic plans for
the long-term development of the Company;

issuing notices on formulating the Company’s strategic plans, organizing the
analysis and discussion of the strategic plans, and considering the strategic
plans and the adjustments thereto;

supervising the implementation of strategic plans and regularly assessing the

implementation thereof;

conducting research and making recommendations regarding the major
issues affecting the Company’s development strategies, such as company
transformation, restructuring, listing, major investment and financing, asset
acquisition, capital operation, and equity acquisition, which are subject
to consideration or approval by the Board as required by the Articles of

Association;

conducting researches and submitting proposals regarding other material
matters that may affect the Company’s development;
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6. carrying out examination on the implementation of items 4 and 5, and
reporting the results to the Board,;

7. submitting Board meeting proposals to the Board regarding the development
strategies of the Company; and

8. other matters specified in the applicable laws, regulations and Code of
Corporate Governance for Listed Companies or authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not hold any meeting as from the Listing Date to the
date of publication of this annual report.

Risk Management and Control Committee

The Risk Management and Control Committee consists of seven members,
including two non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Guangcan (chairman) and
Mr. He Jiangiang; two executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Minchao and Ms. Hu
Zhurong; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kai
Yan Thomas, Mr. Yu Dingming and Mr. Li Hongkun.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Management and Control Committee are as
follows:

1. organizing and carrying out preliminary risk assessment of the Company’s
strategic decisions, major investment decisions, major financing decisions,
major restructuring decisions, major asset disposal decisions, corporate
merger and division decisions, organizational structure decisions and other
risk-related matters, preparing minutes of the Risk Management and Control
Committee meeting and submitting such minutes together with relevant
opinions and proposals to the Board for deliberation;

2. organizing and formulating the Company’s risk management system
according to the basic regulations of the internal control, and supervising
the implementation and effectiveness thereof;

3. assisting the Board in conducting preliminary risk assessment of matters to
be considered by the Board, and preparing corresponding risk assessment
reports;

4. carrying out risk assessment and risk analysis, and studying important

investigation results related to risk management and the response of the
management to the investigation results, either on its own initiative or as
delegated or instructed by the Board;

5. supervising the establishment of the Company’s risk management system
and supervising the day-to-day risk management of the Company; and

6. performing other risk management duties as required by the Basic Standard
for Enterprise Internal Control and the Hong Kong Listing Rules from time
to time.
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The work rules for the Risk Management and Control Committee are available for
inspection on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

From the Listing Date to the date of publication of this annual report, the
Risk Management and Control Committee held a meeting on March 27, 2020,
and considered the audited consolidated financial statements and independent
auditor’s report in 2019, the amendments to the Articles of Association, 2019
annual results announcement and 2019 annual report, remunerations of Directors
and senior management of the Company for 2019 and 2020, the framework
agreements on continuing connected transactions and the related annual caps, the
profit distribution plan for 2019, etc. All members of the Risk Management and
Control Committee have attended the meeting.

R EzEZ 8 TEMENE B R
KRB M Al &R -

BELrTAHBREAFRTIZBE  ARER
ZE8ER2020F3A27BBHEH  FE7T
2019F FHEF|IZ A OF 01 75 3R % K 08 7 1% 2R AD
WA EBE(RARER) 019FFEEER
HER2019FFERE ESERARASHRE
B AB2019F E M2020F EH B - 58 E
RHERBZERMBEFE LR - 20196 E F
HMORTRENFTE -FERBREXEZES
REHEEEE -

The attendance of members of the Risk Management and Control Committee at ZRBREZEZECEKELFZETZNER
the meeting is set out as follows: AR T&
Number of meetings attended/
required to attend
BHERE
Name of Director EEpHE EHERH
Mr. Liu Guangcan (chairman) Bk BEE(EE) 11
Mr. Ma Minchao 55 EUER & 11
Ms. Hu Zhurong AR 2+ 11
Mr. He Jiangiang fo] 22 58 5% 4 11
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas FEMEE 11
Mr. Yu Dingming FRERLEE 1”1
Mr. Li Hongkun =3 11
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EEXg
As at December 31, 2019, the Supervisory Committee consists of five Supervisors, HZE2019F12A831H ExedmARESE4A
namely Mr. Wu Xinhe (Shareholder representative Supervisor), Ms. Li Yan K BESFHNEE(KRERKRES) T
(Shareholder representative Supervisor), Mr. Chang Honghing (Shareholder TH(RERKRES) BAEEERRERRK
representative Supervisor), Mr. Guo Huan (employee representative Supervisor) and BEE) FEEEBIRRESR) P L

Ms. Li Na (employee representative Supervisor), of which Mr. Wu Xinhe is the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The Supervisory Committee is the Company’s supervisory body which performs its
duties strictly in accordance with the Company Law, the Articles of Association
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. It is accountable to the general meeting and is
responsible for supervising the performance of duties by the Company’s financial
officers, the Board and members thereof, the General Manager and other senior
management and preventing the same from abusing their powers to infringe upon

the rights and interests of Shareholders.
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A Supervisor shall serve a term of three years, and may seek re-election upon
expiry of the said term. A Supervisor shall continue to perform his/her duties
in accordance with the laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association until a formally re-elected Supervisor takes office, if re-election is
not conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of office or if
resignation of the Supervisor results in the number of Supervisors being less than
the quorum.

REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors for the year ended
December 31, 2019 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

The range of remunerations for the year ended December 31, 2019 of other
senior management (other than those who serve concurrently as a Director) of the
Company are as follows:

Range of remunerations (RMB’000)
HWEER(ARBT )

/\\//\—/\—\

TEERRE

EEEETHA=F - ESTHER - EEA
MEEoH@$E% B RERBETE

R EERFHTEREREARL AT AR
H‘J EERARER TBUERACRARIEREIN
FTHEBTERE EEFANEZTEMNE
ELEEIAL -

EE CEERESHK
it A
EERNEEHE2019F12A3MHIEFENH
BB R AFREHM B REM T -

EEAEN

BETESUINNARAEMSREERAE
HZE2019F12A31B L FENME S HEHT
RN

Number of individuals

AB

0-1,000

8

POLICY FOR THE NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the work rules of the Nomination Committee, the Directors are
selected as per the following procedure:

The Nomination Committee shall:

1. carry out a comprehensive assessment and analysis on the existing Directors
of the Company, fully communicate with relevant departments of the
Company to learn about the Company’s needs for new Directors and senior
management of the Company, and form a written document;

2. based on job requirements and the Board Diversity Policy, look for
candidates for Directors and senior management of the Company through a
variety of channels such as from the Company or its subsidiaries, and from
the job market;

3. collect information about the occupation, education background, title,
detailed work experience, full and part-time jobs of primary candidates, and
put together a written document;
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»

in accordance with the laws and regulations, the Rules of Procedure for
Board Meetings and the Articles of Association, seek the consent of the
candidates to their nominations by relevant bodies or persons as Directors
and senior management of the Company before treating them as candidates
for Directors and senior management of the Company;

5. convene a meeting of the Nomination Committee to review the
qualifications of candidates as per the job requirements for Directors and
senior management of the Company;

6. form a resolution of the meeting of the Nomination Committee and submit
candidate recommendations and related material to the Board; and

7. proceed with other follow-up work based on the decisions and feedbacks of
the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their duties of preparing the consolidated financial
statements that are true and fair in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements to be free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

The Company’s management has provided the Board with the necessary
explanations and data to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements submitted to it for
approval.

The Directors are not aware of any significant uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast a shadow on the Company’s sustained operation.

The statement of the auditors regarding their obligation to report the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 128 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has established a complete and sound risk management and
internal control system and has formulated a series of rules to ensure the
institutionalization and systematization of the Company’s risk management and
internal control work. In terms of organizational structure, the Company has set
up different functional departments to be responsible for financial operations and
monitoring, risk management, internal audit, anti-fraud, etc. The Company has
established a Risk Management and Control Committee which is responsible for
reviewing the Company’s risk management system, conducting risk assessment
and risk analysis, and overseeing day-to-day risk management. The Company has
designated the Board office as the office of the Risk Management and Control
Committee and the legal affairs department as risk management department.
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Based on the progress of previous risk management and control work and the
work objectives of the current year, the Company formulates the risk management
and control work plan at the beginning of each year, analyzes the Company’s
risk profile on a monthly and quarterly basis, and pays special attention to risks
affecting the Company’s production and operation or relevant to economic
indicators and standardizes the countermeasures in respect thereof, so as to
reduce overall operational risks. The Company focuses on minimizing major risks,
makes active efforts in comprehensive risk management, establishing a sound
mechanism for regular risk assessment, and special risk assessment systems for
major domestic and overseas investments, major capital operation management
and other important matters to strengthen internal control. The Company has
formulated the “Information Disclosure Management Measures” to specify
the responsibilities and obligations of each department in handling internal
information, the disclosure procedures for periodic reports and interim reports, as
well as confidentiality measures and corresponding responsibilities.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an appropriate risk management and
internal control system to secure Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets, and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of
the system annually. The risk management and internal control system is designed
to identify, assess and report on potential risks and implement control measures
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing to achieve business objectives,
and provide reasonable rather than absolute guarantee that there will be no

material misrepresentation or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s financial monitoring, operational monitoring and
compliance monitoring and the risk management system and internal control
system, and no material issues or errors were found. The Board believes that the
current monitoring system of the Company is effective and adequate and that the
Company has sufficient experience and resources in relation to the qualifications
and experience of employees, performance of accounting and financial reporting
duties, training courses, and relevant budgets.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The profit distribution policy of the Company:

1. the Company gives full consideration to the returns to investors. Where
the earnings and accumulative undistributed profits of the current year are
positive and enough provision has been made to statutory reserve fund and
surplus reserve fund, the Board will propose a profit distribution plan taking
into consideration the Company’s overall business developments, operating
results, financial results, working capital, capital demands, future prospects,
cash flow and any other factors deemed relevant by it and submit the plan
to the general meeting for approval;
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2. the profit distribution policy of the Company shall be continuous and

stable and take into account the long-term interests of the Company, the
overall interests of all Shareholders and the sustainable development of the
Company;

the Company shall distribute profits by means of cash, shares, a
combination of cash and shares or other appropriate means in proportion
to the Shareholders’ shareholding. In principle, the Company shall distribute
profits once a year. The profits distributed shall be no less than one-third of
the distributable profits of the parent company realized in the current year
and shall be distributed within the following year;

the profit distribution policy can be adjusted upon proposal by the
Board and the deliberation and approval at the general meeting in case
of any force majeure such as war, natural disaster, or changes in the
Company’s external business environment that have a significant impact
on the Company’s production and operation, or significant changes in the
Company’s own business status; and

the plan for adjusting profit distribution policy shall be formulated by
the Board, and considered and approved by the general meeting. The
adjusted profit distribution policy shall not contravene laws and regulations,
departmental rules, normative documents and the relevant provisions of the

Articles of Association.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended December 31, 2019, Mazars Certified Public

Accountants LLP and PricewaterhouseCoopers have been appointed as the

domestic and international auditors of the Company.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-audit services

rendered to the Company is set out below:
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Amount (RMB’000)

Service type PR % %8 51 2BE(AR®BTR)
Audit service 1% 1R 7 3,990
About (issue PN730 report/PN740 report/ B (H BPN7303R 4 /i APN7405R &

verification of funds raised in foreign currencies BRLETINESEESRE)IEZBURE

via listing in Hong Kong) non-audit services 110
Total F 4,100
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Rao Ye (“Mr. Rao"”) is our joint company secretary, who is responsible
for making suggestions to the Board on corporate governance and ensuring
compliance with the policies and procedures of the Board, applicable laws,

regulations and rules.

To maintain good corporate governance and ensure compliance with the Hong
Kong Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws and regulations, the Company
has appointed Ms. Wong Sau Ping (“Ms. Wong"), an associate director of the
listing services department of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a global corporate services
provider), as another joint company secretary of the Company, to assist Mr. Rao
in performing his duties as the joint company secretary of the Company. Her main
contact in the Company is Mr. Rao.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, Mr. Rao and Ms. Wong had received
relevant professional trainings for no less than 15 hours in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

We believe that effective communication with Shareholders is important for
strengthening investor relations and enabling investors to understand the Group's
business, performance and strategy. We also firmly believe in the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of our information for Shareholders and

investors to make informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for direct communication
between Shareholders and Directors. The chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the respective Board committees will attend annual general meetings
to answer questions put forward by Shareholders. Our external auditors will
also attend annual general meetings and answer questions on audit work, the
preparation and content of auditor’s reports, accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

To promote effective communication, we adopt a shareholder communication
policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Shareholders and us, and also have a website (https://www.ynhnt.com)
where we publish the latest data, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information on our business operations and development for
public access.

/\\//1—/\—\

TEERRE

BMELARARE
BAKEHREEDARDRBER DR
& AEAOREASENEESRLEY
LREEEEFEORRRIES  EREE -
ER BRI

REFRIFNCEEATHRRTAETELD
RANEREBERER ARANTEEE
BEBERDB(—REREERBREMLS)
Lﬁ%%%%ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁiD
RARRFN S —IBEARME - BBYEL

ERITBIERARABEARMENRE
HERARBTEMMARELLE -

BHE2019F12A31HIEFE - BAEEREX
TEMNEEBLTRAUBI2HET IR
15/NEF R AR BT T -

ERRNEBERREEBRE

ARABRBERRNBERBEBENBRREE
MAEREREETBRASENER KBAKX
REFEER - AR IRE REFHEIEEE
M REARFEHAFEBRRLIREEFE D
ﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%%xﬁo

BRBEBFAGRUERREETFTREROY
T oBEERNREFCZEGIRSHEER
ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ§k$%ﬁ°$“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B REHERRBERE  TREAEEN
T ZEBEBENREEAR SFBE
RZHMBEIIENRER -

BAREBRNEB - AN AR AR R B

K BEEBUARFEREMNBERERRSE
i 0 3% A B vh(https://www.ynhnt.com) * 7K
ARABRAUTEEBREEBEERERD
BB MBER EERERAREM
ER o AHEARALEER -

THERGea R ERLIRHDERAA 90

2019F B W&



Corporate Governance Report
TEREARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To protect the interests and rights of Shareholders, the Company will submit
separate resolutions on various matters, including the election of individual
Directors, at the general meeting. Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, all
resolutions submitted at the general meeting will be voted on in accordance with
the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and the voting results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after the general meeting.

CONVENING OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING AND
PROPOSALS

Shareholders who request an extraordinary general meeting or a general meeting
of a class of Shareholders shall comply with the following procedures according to
the Articles of Association:

1. two or more Shareholders individually or collectively holding more than
10% of the voting Shares at the proposed meeting can request the Board
to convene a class meeting by signing one or several written request(s) with
the same content and in the same format, and stating the matters to be
considered at the meeting. The Board shall convene the class meeting as
specified in the request as soon as possible. The shareholdings referred to
above shall be calculated as at the date when the request is put forward by
the Shareholders;

2. If no notice of convening a general meeting is issued within 30 days after
the Board receiving the abovementioned written request(s), the Shareholders
making the request(s) can request the Supervisory Committee to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting;

3. If the Supervisory Committee fails to issue a notice on the convening of
meeting within 30 days after receiving the aforesaid written request, the
Shareholders individually or collectively holding more than 10% of the
Company’s voting Shares at the proposed meeting for at least consecutive
90 days may convene the meeting on their own within four months after
the Board receives the request. The convening procedures shall be the same

as the procedures for the convening of general meeting by the Board.

A general meeting convened by the Shareholders themselves shall be presided
over by a representative elected by the convener.
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders individually or collectively holding at least 3% of the Shares of the
Company may submit a temporary resolution in writing to the convener 10 days
prior to the convening of such meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary
notice of the general meeting to announce the contents of such temporary
resolution within two days after receipt of the resolution, and submit such
temporary resolution to the general meeting for consideration. The contents of
such temporary resolution shall fall within the scope of the functions and powers
of the general meeting, and clearly set out a topic to be discussed and specific
matters for resolution. The contact information set out in the section headed
“Enquiries to the Board” below may be used for the purpose of putting forward
proposals at the general meeting.

For the purpose of recommending a person to be a Director, please refer to the
relevant procedures on our website.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who wish to make inquiries to the Board about the Company may
contact the Company’s headquarters at 188 Linxi Road, Information Industrial
Base, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Kunming, Yunnan, the PRC
by mail, telephone (0871-63187896) or e-mail (GHPCO2@ynhnt.com).

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The current Articles of Association has been effective since the Listing Date. The
Company had not amended the Articles of Association from the Listing Date until
December 31, 2019.
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Supervisory Committee’s Report
EEERE

In 2019, the members of the Supervisory Committee strictly complied with the
relevant provisions of the Company Law and other relevant laws and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedures of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company, abided by the principle of good
faith, earnestly performed their supervisory duties, actively carried out their
work, participated in the meetings of the Supervisory Committee, attended the
Board meetings and general meetings of the Company, and performed effective
supervision on the legal operations, financial conditions and the performance
of the Directors and management of the Company with a responsible attitude
towards all Shareholders, which promoted the standardized operation of the
Company.

BASIC COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2019, the Supervisory Committee consisted of 5 Supervisors,
including Mr. Wu Xinhe, Ms. Li Yan, Mr. Chang Hongbing, Mr. Guo Huan
(employee representative Supervisor) and Ms. Li Na (employee representative
Supervisor), of which Mr. Wu Xinhe was the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. The term of office for Supervisors is 3 years.

OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee is the Company's supervisory body. It strictly performs
its duties in accordance with the Company Law, the Articles of Association and
Hong Kong Listing Rules, and is responsible for the general meetings of the
Company. It supervises the duty performance of the Company’s finance personnel,
the Board and its members, the general manager and other senior management,
preventing their abuse of power and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders.

OPERATIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As of the latest practicable date before the bulk printing of this annual report, the
Supervisory Committee has convened 4 meetings and reviewed 25 proposals, with

all Supervisors participating in the meetings in person:

(1) On March 7, 2019, the Company convened the third meeting of the first
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed
and approved various reports for the year of 2018, including the working
report of the Supervisory Committee, the audit report of the Company,
the final financial accounting report of the Company, etc. and proposal on
the adjustment of the members of the Supervisory Committee, proposal on
the amendments to the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company, and proposal on the relevant matters of the connected
transactions, which were in total of 9 proposals.
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Supervisory Committee’s Report

(I On March 15, 2019, the Company convened the 2019 first extraordinary
meeting of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting to elect
Mr. Wu Xinhe as the chairman of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee.

(I On December 23, 2019, the Company convened the fourth meeting
of the first session of the Supervisory Committee by way of document
countersignature. It reviewed and approved the proposal on preparation of
domestic audit report with the implementation of new domestic financial
instruments and new leasing standards from 2019.

(IV)  On March 26, 2020, the Company convened the fifth meeting of the first
session of the Supervisory Committee by way of on-site meeting. It reviewed
and approved various reports for the year of 2019 including the working
report of the Supervisory Committee, the annual report of the Company,
the annual results announcement of the Company, the audit report of
the Company, the final financial accounting report of the Company, the
remuneration report of Directors, Supervisors and senior management etc.
and proposal on the relevant matters of engagement of the independent
auditors, which are in total of 14 proposals.

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Supervisory Committee
attended the general meetings and the Board meetings of the Company, put
forward relevant opinions and suggestions with a serious and responsible
attitude, conducted supervision on the procedures and content of the meetings,
and effectively supervised the decision-making procedures, legal operations and
financial conditions of the Company’s business, as well as the duty performance
of the Directors and management in the daily operations of the Company.
The reasonable opinions and suggestions put forward were adopted by the
Company, which better safeguarded the legal interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S BASIC
EVALUATION ON THE OPERATIONS CONDUCTED
BY THE BOARD AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2019, through supervising the Directors
and senior management of the Company, the Supervisory Committee believed
that the Company’s major business decision-making procedures were legal and
effective; when performing their duties, the Directors and senior management of
the Company earnestly implemented the laws and regulations of the PRC, the
Articles of Association and the resolutions of the general meetings and the Board
meetings, and there was no behavior that harmed the interests of the Company
or the Shareholders and no violations committed by the Directors or senior
management of the Company were found during operations.
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Supervisory Committee’s Report
EEERE

INDEPENDENT OPINION TO THE RELEVANT
MATTERS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

()]

@

(1)

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on
the Company’s Legal Operation

In 2019, the Supervisory Committee supervised the convening procedures
and resolutions of the general meetings and the Board meetings of the
Company, the implementation of resolutions of the Company’s general
meetings by the Board, and the duty performance of the Company’s senior
management in accordance with the rights granted under the Company Law
and the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee believed that the Company’s decision-making
procedures complied with the relevant provisions of the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and the Board
has standardized operations, legal procedures, reasonable decisions, and
earnestly implemented each resolution of the Company’s general meetings.
The Directors and senior management of the Company were loyal and
diligent when they performed their duties, with no violation of laws,
regulations, the Articles of Association or damage to the interests of the
Company. Each resolution of the general meetings of the Company has
been implemented.

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on
the Company’s Financial Position

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Company’s finance and believed
that the Company’s financial system was sound, and its financial operations
were in good condition. The Company strictly met the requirements of the
accounting system and accounting standards for business enterprises and

other relevant financial regulations.

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee on
the Company’s Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee believed that the Company’s relevant connected
transactions were implemented in strict accordance with the relevant
systems and agreements of connected transactions and were in line with the
principles of fairness and reasonableness, without prejudice to the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders.

2020 ANNUAL WORK PLAN

o

95

The Supervisory Committee will carry out its daily work in accordance
with the requirements of the Articles of Association and the Rules of
Procedures of the Supervisory Committee and other relevant provisions
and will diligently and responsibly perform its duties. Meetings of the
Supervisory Committee will be convened according to the actual situation
of the Company. The Supervisory Committee will endeavor its best efforts
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Supervisory Committee’s Report

to review and consider various proposals. The financial position of the
Company will be examined and checked by regularly knowing and reviewing
the financial reports in order to conduct supervision on the financial
operation of the Company, prevent operational risks and further safeguard
the interests of the Company and Shareholders;

(I The Supervisory Committee will seriously study the relevant PRC laws and
regulations and relevant policies newly introduced by the PRC, continuously
enhance the efficiency of supervision and actively urge the construction
and effective operation of the internal control system, establish a long-term
effective mechanism of standardizing corporate governance of the Company
and facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of the Company. It
will give full play to its role as the Supervisory Committee by practicably
assuming the responsibility of protecting the interests of the Shareholders
and safeguarding a healthy and stable development of the Company;

(Il The Supervisory Committee will diligently, responsibly and actively participate
in the Board meetings, general meetings and other important meetings of
the Company, and participate in the decision-making process in relation
to some important matters and grasp the legality of decision-making
procedures in relation to some important decision-making matters in order
to better safeguard the interests of the Company and all Shareholders; and

(IV)  The Supervisory Committee will continue to strengthen its supervision
over the performance of duties, the implementation of resolutions and
the compliance of regulations and other aspects of the Directors and
senior management of the Company. In particular, it will strengthen the
supervision and correction over the violation, dereliction of duty, failure
to act of the senior management, for purposes of enabling the senior
management’s decision-making and operating activities to be more
standardized and legal.

In 2020, the Supervisory Committee will continue to seriously abide by the
relevant provisions of the Company Law and other relevant laws and regulations,
the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Articles of Association, perform supervisory
duties seriously, strengthen the supervision, effectively safeguard the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure the standardized and healthy
operation of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Wu Xinhe

Chairman

Kunming, China, March 27, 2020
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Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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1 ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW

1.1 About the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
1.1.1 Report preparation guidelines

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, of which
the contents are also defined and disclosed on the principles of importance,
quantification, balance and consistency.

1.1.2 Report scope

This report provides an overview of the annual performance on environment,
social and governance of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company
Limited for interested parties to better understand our Group’s sustainable
development philosophy, management methods, measures and performance.
This report sets forth the principles for our Group to implement Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR), as well as our Group's vision and commitment to CSR.
The time range covered by this report is January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

This report covers the Company and its subsidiaries. Unless otherwise stated, the
information involved in this report is derived from our Group’s documents and
statistical reports, and the currency involved is RMB.

1.1.3 Advice and feedback

The development of our Group also depends on the valuable advice from various
interested parties. If you have any questions or comments on this report, please
feel free to contact us by the following means: E-mail: ghpc1847esg@163.com.

1.2 About Us

1.2.1 Development history

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited’s predecessor, YNJG
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, was established as a limited
liability company in June 2007 by Yunnan Construction Engineering Concrete Co.,
Ltd., a state-owned wholly-owned subsidiary of the former Yunnan Construction
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. In 2016, according to the "Five in One Batch"
idea of YCIH, formerly known as Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co.,
Ltd., as an important professional segment of YCIH's collaborative development,
the Company moved its registered address to Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong City
and changed its name to YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Co., Ltd.
in December 2016, by stripping the assets of the concrete part and carrying
out the integration and reorganization of assets and businesses with the main
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concrete industry as the core. In December 2017, the Company completed joint
stock system transformation and set up YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete
Company Limited. On October 31, 2019, the Company was listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (GHPC, stock code: 01847).

After years of development, our Group has developed into a ready-mixed concrete
production enterprise with advanced equipment, leading technologies, standardized
management and in the largest scale and strong comprehensive strength in the
concrete industry of Yunnan Province, which is one of the first concrete enterprises
with a three-star green building materials label in Yunnan Province. Our Group is
mainly engaged in the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete, aggregates
and polycarboxylic admixtures, which has established an industry chain —
"technology research and development, resource processing, production and sales"
and passed the three-in-one management system certification of GB/T19001, GB/
T24001 and GB/T28001, China environmental labeling product certification, clean
production acceptance and energy management system evaluation. It has two
provincial research and development platforms, namely "Yunnan High-performance
Concrete Engineering Research Center" and "Yunnan Industrial Product (Ready-
mixed Concrete) Quality Control and Technology Evaluation Laboratory".

1.2.2 Corporate culture and social responsibility perspective

Enterprise Endless struggle, indomitable spirit
spirit Harmonious employees and flourish enterprises, pursuit of excellence

Cherish posts, devote wholeheartedly to work
Be honest and trustworthy, operate according to law

Enterprise’
core values

To be a first-class enterprise in the industry, to create a first-class brand
in the industry
Reward shareholders and create happiness for employees

Vision

Appoint people on their merits and pay attention to their comprehensive
quality

Employment
philosophy

Marketing

; Take the market-oriented approach; take the marketing as the leader
philosophy

Service

. Focus on customers, and create fine services
philosophy

Cost idea Cost decides survival; benefit decides development

Quality idea Quality and innovation

Safety

. Prevention first and comprehensive treatment
philosophy
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1.2.3 Product idea and product innovation

Product concept

Our Group adheres to the road of safe production, intelligent manufacturing
and green development, and pays attention to the green and environmental
protection of products. The Company passed China environmental labeling
product certification in 2006, and receives the supervision and audit of the
certification authority every year, and has maintained China Environmental Labeling
Product Certification Certificate. In 2019, our Group commissioned the National
Center for Quality Supervision and Test of Building Engineering to inspect the
concrete produced, and the results showed that the concrete indicators met the
requirements of Technical Requirement for Environmental Labeling Products —
Ready-mixed Concrete (HJIT412-2007).

In order to positively respond to the call of the national green building materials
evaluation, our Group focuses on the evaluation of green building materials, and
has become one of the first winners of the three-star green building materials
label for concrete in Yunnan Province. Six mixing stations of the five branches (the
Direct Division of Zhaotong, Dehong Branch, Baoshan Building Material, Qujing
Building Material and Kunming Branch) of our Company have obtained the three-
star green building materials label certificate and two mixing stations of a branch
(Kunming Branch) have obtained the two-star green building materials label
certificate.

With the aim of saving energy, reducing consumption and reducing emissions,
our Group adopts advanced environmental protection equipment, management
technology, monitoring means and advanced preparation technology to produce
high-performance concrete with excellent mixing properties, mechanical properties,
durability and long-term performance, and has passed China environmental
labeling product certification, clean production acceptance and energy
management system certification, as well as three-in-one management system
certification of GB/T19001, GB/T24001 and GB/T28001. Our Group selects the
mixing, transportation and test equipment with advanced technology, low carbon
and energy saving, low noise, low emission and high production efficiency, and
adopts fully closed production lines, closed silos, spray systems and powder
recovery devices. The dust control for production within the factory boundary
conforms to the provisions of Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Cement
Industry (GB4915-2013), and the noise control within the factory boundary
conforms to Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
(GB12348-2008). Our Group adopts sand and gravel separation technology and
recycling treatment equipment on waste slurry and waste water, to achieve zero
discharge. The advanced ERP concrete production control system is used to realize
the automation control and data management of concrete production process,
and the production energy consumption quota and the comprehensive energy
consumption quota have reached the advanced level. Moreover, concrete products
are stable in quality, low in strength dispersion and high in durability, which can

meet the requirements of 50-100 years’ durability of infrastructure projects.
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Product innovation

Our Group is committed to driving the development with scientific and
technological innovation, keeping up with the pace of industrial development,
focusing on improving the service life of concrete projects and the technical
requirements of green building energy conservation to carry out research on the
preparation and application of key technologies on high-performance concrete to
meet the needs of major projects. In 2019, our Group developed products and
applied technologies, including durable metakaolin concrete, ultra-high pumping
concrete, green high-strength high-performance pervious concrete, high-strength
lightweight aggregates concrete, C120 ultra-high performance concrete, ultra-deep
pile foundation underwater high-performance concrete, having solved the technical
problems of concrete with special structure, construction and function and realized
the green and high performance of the concrete industry.

—  Durable metakaolin concrete

By using low grade kaolin and metakaolin as active admixture to prepare
high-performance concrete, we have successfully realized the first application
of metakaolin concrete in projects in our province. Research on Key
Technologies of Metakaolin Concrete Preparation and the Engineering
Application won the third prize of technical innovation in the concrete and
cement products industry in 2019. Technical Specification of Metakaolin
Concrete Preparation and Application in Yunnan Province (DBJ53/T-99-2019),
the first technical specification of metakaolin concrete preparation and
application in China, was prepared and published.

—  Ultra-high pumping concrete

Based on Henglong Square Project, our Group carried out the research
on the key technology of ultra-high pumping concrete preparation, and
developed C30-C70 ultra-high pumping high-performance concrete with
300m vertical pumping and with the work performance, mechanical
performance, durability meeting the construction requirements, which has
broken through the key technical bottleneck of preparation and construction
of ultra-high pumping high-performance concrete in Yunnan Province, solved
a series of technical problems such as high concrete strength, high viscosity,
high pumping pressure and difficult pumping construction, provided
technical support for the construction of ultra-high buildings and led the
technological progress of Yunnan Province in this field. The project result of
Research and Application of Key Technologies for Construction of Ultra-high
Buildings was awarded the second prize of science and technology progress
award in 2019 by YCIH.

—  Green high-strength high-performance pervious concrete
Against the backdrop of the construction of “Sponge City”, our Group
carried out the research on green high-strength high-performance
pervious concrete to meet the construction demand of “Sponge City”,

and applied for the invention patent of Design Method of Proportion of
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Pervious Concrete based on Aggregate Characteristics and Slurry Thickness,
participated in compiling two national standards of building materials
industry: Pervious Concrete (JC/T 2558-2020) and Vegetation Concrete (JC/
T 2557-2020), and developed the previous concrete with the strength
grade of C10-C30, permeation coefficient larger than 1.0mm/s and 28d
compressive strength up to more than 35MPa. The technical achievements
have been applied in the relocation project for poverty alleviation in
inhospitable areas of Zhenxiong branch — Lujia Courtyard Phase | Project
and the pavement of Zhuyuan Road North of Chengjiang branch.

— High-strength lightweight aggregates concrete and C120 ultra-high
performance concrete
The LC60 high-strength lightweight aggregate concrete was prepared
by no-burning ceramsite coarse aggregate and ceramsite sand. The 28d
compressive strength can reach up to 65MPa and the dry apparent
density of concrete can reach 1800-1900, which met the requirements
of lightweight aggregate concrete in the standard specification. The
C120 ultra-high performance concrete was prepared by ordinary silicate
cement, machine-made sand, quartz sand, premium mineral admixture,
UHPC reinforced fiber and high-performance water-reducing agent. The
3d compressive strength of concrete can reach 90MPa and above, and the
28d compressive strength can reach up to 136MPa, with extremely high
mechanical properties.

—  Ultra-deep pile foundation underwater high-performance concrete
Based on the construction project of Kunming landmark — Chunzhiyan
commercial center, the application research of ultra-deep pile foundation
underwater high-performance concrete was conducted. By means of mixing
ratio optimization, mineral admixture optimization, high-performance
water reducer performance optimization and other technologies, the
C50 underwater high-performance concrete with working performance
meeting the requirements of 100m underwater perfusion construction and
durability guarantee up to 100 years was prepared, realizing the engineering
application of high-performance ultra-deep pile foundation concrete
with high bearing capacity and high durability. The project Research and
Application of Ultra-deep Pile Foundation Underwater High-performance
Concrete won the Second Prize of Science and Technology Progress of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited in 2019.

Green production

Our Group practices the green concept in the production activities and plays an
active role in exploring and developing the waste utilization. Our Group made
comprehensive use of the industrial waste residue, including the fine dust and
ash recycled from the flue gas of the thermal power plant, the solid waste and
blast furnace slag generated in the iron-making process of the blast furnace, the
industrial by-product phosphorus slag powder and the composite mineral admixture
generated in the preparation of yellow phosphorus by the electric furnace method,
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etc. to replace some cement, so as to produce green low-carbon concrete, which
reduced cement and energy consumption as well as carbon emissions. In 2019, the
accumulative comprehensive use of fly ash reached 311,101 tons, with slag powder
of 411,366 tons, composite admixture of 58,998 tons, phosphorus slag powder
of 4,100 tons. Meanwhile, our Group made comprehensive use of tailings sand,
waste stone debris with stone powder content of 10%—-20% and other solid waste
resources to prepare concrete, reducing the amount of sand and stone mining and
protecting the ecological environment. In 2019, our Group made comprehensive use
of 3,119 tons of iron aggregate tailings.

In order to promote the publicity and application of the clean production technology
of ready-mixed concrete, our Group has conducted the research on the key
technology of the comprehensive utilization of waste seriflux in concrete batching
plants, developed the control equipment and system for the recovery and utilization
of the concrete waste slurry, and the centralized dust removal system for the
powder in the batching plants, which realized the engineering application of waste
slurry and reduced the discharge of waste slurry and dust pollution from batching
plants, broke through the pressure of environment and resources, and realized the
sustainable development, such as green and clean production, energy conservation
and emission reduction, green and low-carbon production, for the batching plants,
making our Group's batching plants really become the zero-emission environmental-
protection green batching plants. Meanwhile, our Group gradually promoted the
environmental-protection and completely-closed concrete batching plants in each
batching plant, and conducted the closed packaging in the batching buildings. The
process of feeding, mixing and batching in batching buildings are all closed, which
met the requirements for noise reducing and dust emission.

In view of the major project works with complex structure and adverse use
environment, such as highways, ultra-high buildings, etc., our Group strongly
promoted the application of green high-performance concrete. Our Group has
realized energy conservation, consumption reduction, water saving, dust prevention
and noise reduction by means of research and development of green and high-
performance concrete, in order to make rational use of natural resources and
reduce the discharge of wastes and pollutants. Reducing the consumption of
cement and improving the durability and service life of concrete projects are of
great significance to reducing the comprehensive cost of the whole life cycle of
projects, developing the circular economy, promoting the technological progress
and the structural adjustment of concrete industry.

1.2.4 Overview of corporate honors

With the extensive experience accumulated from more than 1,000 projects, our
Group has established a leading market position in Yunnan Province, created a
good corporate image, and fulfilled the environmental and social responsibilities.
The Company has been awarded the honorary titles of “China Top 10 Commercial
Concrete Enterprises” and “China Top 10 Ready-mixed Concrete Enterprises”
for several times, and has been recognized as high technology enterprise. Our
products were awarded the title of “Yunnan Famous Brand” in 2016, and our
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credit rating was rated as “AAA” by Enterprise Credit Association of Yunnan
Province in 2017. Our Group has won more than 10 national or provincial science
and technology awards, including the Second Prize of Science and Technology
Progress and the Second Prize of Science and Technology Innovation Achievement
of China Association of Construction Enterprise Management.

The honors awarded to our Group in 2019 are as follows:
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The Company was awarded the honorary title of “China’s Top 10  The Company was awarded the honorary title of “China Top 10
Commercial Concrete Enterprises in 2018” by Chinaconcretes.com  Ready-mixed Concrete Enterprises in 2018” by China Concrete

in May 2019.

and Cement-based Products Association in May 2019.
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The Polymer Company successfully passed the national high-tech  The Listing of the Company was listed in the “Top 10 Economic
enterprise recognition and won the “High Technology Expertise”  Events in Yunnan in 2019” on Yunnan Economic Daily.

award in December 2019.
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The Company was awarded the honorary title of “Green
Demonstration Factory” by Ready-mixed Concrete Branch of
China Concrete and Cement-based Products Association in
December 2019.
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The results of Research and Application of Key Technologies for
Construction of Ultra-high Buildings were awarded the Second
Prize of Science and Technology Progress in 2019 of Yunnan
Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.
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The results of Research on Key Technologies of Metakaolin
Concrete Preparation and the Engineering Application were
awarded the Third Prize of Technical Innovation of Concrete and
Cement-based Products Industry in 2019.
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The Company continues to hold the China Environmental
Labeling Product Certification Certificate in 2019.
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1.2.5 Engagement of interested parties

1.2.5 F 25 #6 B8 7 2 52

Maintaining communication with interested parties plays an important role in HANZMAEAREERBEAEENBELXR
our Group's sustainable development. Our Group's interested parties include the HMEZIBE  c NEFEMNIZBEBE T S8EHT -
government, shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, partners, employees, the BREMEEE B HEGNMEEZLLE -

environment, communities and the public as well as the charitable organizations BT BRE HENAR AZH#EZE A&
etc. Our Group actively maintains communication with various interested parties @iﬁﬂ%ﬁ;‘%kﬁﬁéﬁi%ﬂ%m BHREE
through various channels to actively know about their opinions and expectations B THESABAIEANEEEERR

on our Group's sustainable development performance.
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Report the work regularly

Attend related meetings

Engage in information declaration
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Report the business situation regularly

Organize investor communication activities actively

Disclose announcements and periodic reports

TEHERE RN

BERERREEBRREY

REASNERRS

Set up multiple communication channels to understand
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Communicate Way
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2 ENTERPRISE ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
ANALYSIS

2.1 Correlation Analysis of Enterprise Emissions

Our Group adheres to the path of green development, conscientiously implements
various national environmental protection policies, and focuses on long-term
development to achieve sustainable business growth. Our Group strictly manages
its emissions to the environment and adopts new technologies and equipment to
achieve the goal of energy conservation and emission reduction. Our Group strictly
abides by the relevant laws, regulations, standards and provincial, municipal,
and local environmental protection management measures regarding air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, which may have a significant impact on
our Group, including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution, Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (GB8978-1996),
Environmental Noise Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises (GB12348-2008),
General Industrial Solid Waste Storage and Disposal Site Pollution Control Standard
(GB18599-2001), and Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage
(GB18597-2001).

2.1.1 Related indicator analysis of enterprise emissions

Total waste gas emissions and density of enterprises

The waste gas generated by our Group’s business from the combustion of fossil
fuels mainly includes nitrogen oxides (NO)), sulfur oxides (SO) and suspended
particulate matter (PM). In 2019, our Group emitted a total of about 22.31 tons
of waste gas, with an emission density of about 0.62 ton/RMB100 million.

The following table shows our Group’s emissions and density by type of waste gas
in 2019:
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Emission Density
(ton/RMB100 million)

Emission (ton) HREE
Type of Waste Gas BRER HrkE (M) (W AR%ERT)
Nitrous oxides (NO,) AL PNO) 20.51 0.57
Sulfur oxide (SO,) AL (S0 0.04 0.001
Suspended particulate matter (PM) $BOF FRLY(PM) 1.76 0.05
Total wEr 22.31 0.62
Note: Waste gas emissions mainly include waste gas generated by our Group's self-owned vehicles H: BRENEFIZEEAEEEBERANRERE

and equipment.
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Total greenhouse gas emissions and density of enterprises
Our Group's business results in direct and indirect emissions of greenhouse gases

due to fossil fuel consumption and the use of electricity and other resources. In

2019, our Group's total greenhouse gas emissions were approximately 33,232.76

tons of carbon dioxide equivalent, and its emission density was approximately
921.07 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent/RMB100 million.

The following table shows our Group’s emissions by greenhouse gas type and

source in 2019:
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Direct Greenhouse Gas Emissions BEREBEEER
Emission Density
(Tons of Carbon
Emissions Dioxide Equivalent/
(Tons of Carbon RMB100 million)
Dioxide Equivalent) HhEE
HHE (M-S{mE=2
Type of Greenhouse Gas BERBER (M_EtHmEE) ARBER)
Carbon dioxide (COZ) :%{bﬁﬁ(coz) 17,872.54 495.35
Methane (CH,) B (CH,) 10.13 0.28
Nitrous Oxide (N,O) SALFEAN,O) 157.66 4.37
Total et 18,040.33 500.00
Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions BERBBEEHEK
Emission Density
(Tons of Carbon
Emissions Dioxide Equivalent/
(Tons of Carbon RMB100 million)
Dioxide Equivalent) HHREE
BHE (M-sStnEE
Indirect Emissions Sources 3 3 BORR (W =& 1t ARBRER)
Use of power resources BEHEREHA 14,262.24 395.29
Other indirect emissions H h 5 5 BE AR 930.19 25.78
Total BEr 15,192.43 421.07

Note: Direct green gas emissions mainly include green gas generated by our Group’s self-owned
vehicles and equipment. Other indirect emissions include greenhouse gas emissions indirectly
generated by the use of water resources, paper consumption, and travel by employees.

i /iﬁ’émﬁ?ﬁifﬁﬁlzixaazﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%%ﬂ
REMELRERE - HMBEHERESHKE
IREVEER -~ AORIEFEM B T A R = S AR

EELNR

THRREE

= I BE R R £ IR

ERBIM -

BRRAF 108
2019F B W&



Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

IRIE - = LEIRESQ)HRSE

Total discharge and density of enterprise wastewater and solid
waste

Our Group attaches great importance to the management of sewage and solid
waste and minimizes the discharge of solid waste. Our Group advocates saving
water and recycling water, and the production assembly is equipped with a
sewage treatment system to recycle and reuse the production sewage, achieving
zero discharge of production sewage. In 2019, our Group discharged a total
of approximately 8,382.80 tons of solid waste, with a discharge density of
approximately 232.33 tons/RMB100 million. Among them, solid waste is mainly
construction waste, accounting for about 99.6% of total solid waste discharge.

The following table shows our Group’s discharge by type of waste in 2019:

IERBERREIRBERZYENE R
=E
$%E%F§ﬁﬁmﬂlmﬁ$%mﬁ@
WRATGER D EBEZWHEER - AEEE
ﬁ%%%% ﬁh%m EERILESKEIRE
Rip HAEESKETHERBANA BER4E
ESKEHER - 2019F B AL E XA HERE
BEREEY408,382.80M -+ HEpkH [E 49 /4232.33
W ARKEET -Hb BREEVUESE
NIRAE (HEREEMAENELN9.6% °

09F EREEMEENEEFREB AW
TR

Emission Density

(ton/

RMB100 million)

Discharge (ton) FREE

Type of Waste BEyER HHE() (M AR%ER)
Harmless solid waste BEEBEEYD 8,376.83 232.17
Harmful solid waste BEREEEY 5.97 0.17
Total et 8,382.80 232.33

All waste discharged by our Group shall be properly treated in accordance with
relevant national environmental protection policies and regulations. Our Group
purchases bulk cement from raw materials and avoids the use of packaging
materials in the logistics process. Our Group does not use packaging materials
for other types of raw materials required for the production of concrete, which
effectively avoids the discharge of solid waste from related packaging materials.

Measures that enterprise promotes to reduce discharge and its

achievements

—  Upgrading research and development and construction of seriflux
mixing station
Our Group completed the upgrading
research and development and
construction of the seriflux
mixing station in 2019, so that
the precipitated waste water is
completely reused, ensuring zero
discharge of production wastewater.

In the past, after the tertiary

7N S [ B B0 T B R 22 1019 4% B R AR B O 3R
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MERBEREKE BEEYRBREPER
BEMH AEBELEERRLMBOEME
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2EEMNA  BRTEES
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BRI SKE = N R
ExER‘IKATEERNA -
LB N R E R A R 15 B
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sedimentation of the seriflux in the
concrete batching plants only the
clarified water can be reused. The
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Real-time monitoring screen of seriflux recycling system
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sedimentary mud was not used, resulting in a large amount of waste, which
in turn caused large amounts of cleaning and clearing costs, and led to
ecological environmental protection pressure. Following the use of seriflux
recycling systems by Qujing Building Materials and the Direct Division of
Zhaotong, our Group will further optimize and update the seriflux recycling
system in 2019 in terms of overall layout, appearance, equipment quality,
production linkage, alarm mechanism, remote control, and software system.
Our Group developed and built a special complete set of automation
technology system to realize production linkage, real-time monitoring,
remote control and timely disposal of seriflux treatment, greatly improving
the system control accuracy and performance stability, and solving the
problem of slurry utilization.

Renovation and upgrading of dust reduction equipment and facilities
in the plant

Our Group renovated the dust
reduction equipment and facilities
in the plant in 2019. It set up spray
dust reduction systems in the sheds
of the yard and the main roads in
the plant, and deployed a movable
fog cannon to timely reduce the
dust in the plant to ensure the
detection of dust particles in the area
is within the standard requirements.
In order to prevent the generation HEEERRAEISIRE
of dust during material delivery in = ]
the production process, the batching
plants were equipped with centralized
dust removal equipment at each
link of material delivery to ensure
that dust does not spill. Our Group
strengthened the management of
dust production on the construction
site, and assigned a special person to
be responsible for the management
of dust production. Our Group

Road spraying system
B B O R AR

adopted effective measures such
as watering, covering or spraying
covering agents to suppress and reduce dust, and strove to ensure the

minimum dust at the work site.

Stockyard with spraying system
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Our Group’s method of processing hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, measures to reduce its production and the results

—  Comprehensive implementation of the Management Measures for — Z2EEE(ERBEEVEERZE)

M

Solid Waste

In 2019, our Group comprehensively
implemented the Management
Measures for Solid Waste of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete
Company Limited, and followed the
control principles of making the
solid waste minimizing, recycling and
harmless to reduce environmental
pollution. Our Group reasonably, legally
and compliantly disposed of the solid
waste generated during production,

Sand and gravel separator
WaoBEE

office and business activities, and supervised and inspected the qualifications

and completion of the parties involved in the disposal of waste. Each

department, branch company and all employees collected, disposed and

cleared solid waste separately according to requirements. At the same time,

our Group comprehensively reused the solid waste that could be recycled.

The solid waste in the production process was separated and recycled by a

sand and gravel separator.

Advocate paperless office and waste classification

Our Group's office system advocates
the use of OA systems for online
office work, and paper-saving tips in
the printing room, and advocates and
guides all employees to save paper. Our
Group encourages production units to
take the lead in implementing waste
classification, formulate and improve
corresponding waste classification
management methods, and equip
corresponding facilities to effectively
improve the environmental sanitation in
the production plant.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Annual Report 2019
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2.2 Correlation Analysis of Enterprise Resource Use

2.2.1 Enterprise’s main energy consumption structure

Our Group advocates saving resources and energy, reducing the consumption of
energy and raw materials, and strengthening energy management to improve the
level of reasonable energy use, thereby reducing energy consumption and raw
materials consumption of engineering projects, and enhancing the recycling of
energy and resources in the production process. In 2019, our Group consumed a
total of approximately 286,100 liters of gasoline, approximately 6,578,900 liters
of diesel, approximately 20.3746 million kWh of electricity, and approximately
2,134,500 tons of water.

The following table shows our Group’s various types of energy consumption in
2019:

22 tEERFERBER SN
221 REFTEHFREELE
KEBEBBEHHERER - BEKEERFRM
BHRERE  TmoakRERE R/ ERK
K EmBEIEEEREEMIEIER RME
B WREEBRRETAEREERNER
A - 2019F EAEEHLEFETMmL28.618
AT LM #657.898 A Ft - EAEHI2,037.46
EBTRE  KERL213.458 1 ©

2019F EAREE B AR ERERN T RAR

Consumption

Energy Type ERER Unit B HAER
Gasoline i Liter nF 286,102.00
Diesel fuel L5 Liter N 6,578,935.92
Electrical energy £ kWh T R & 20,374,629.70
Water 7K Ton L 2,134,485.02

The following table shows our Group’s various types of energy consumption
density in 2019:

20190 EAEEEBEREREREENTXR
INE

Consumption

Density
Energy Type BERER Unit B HEZRE
Gasoline i Liter/RMB1 million RIS ARBEET 79.29
Diesel fuel By Liter/RMB1 million RIS ARBEET 1,823.39
Electrical energy EA- kWh/RMB1 million FERKE/ AREBET 5,646.95
Water K Ton/RMB1 million W AREBET 591.59
Note: The consumption of gasoline and diesel mainly include the consumption of our Group’s self- e AR KHEREFZEREALEEAERHME

owned vehicles and equipment.

2.2.2 Effective energy use measures implemented by
enterprises and achievement

—  Successfully passed the annual audit of energy management system
certification

Our Group started the construction of the energy management system in
January 2018, set up an energy management system construction team,
established an energy management system covering the entire process of
energy utilization, and obtained an energy management system certification

in May of the same year, in compliance with GB/T23331-2012 idt ISO

BHEE -

222 PEBTHEMBERELE
RT3 R

— ENEREREERARBFESEK
RNEBR2018F1AEBERERE R
BRI HEBEREEBEBRESR
BBV TEBEERMNARBIEARE
BRERBER  UTHRRAFSABBERE
BEAREFEE  FAGB/MT23331-2012
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50001: 2011 and RB/T121-2016 energy
management system building materials

ﬁdf&ﬂfﬁﬂﬂ#

enterprises (excluding cement, glass,

ceramics) certification requirements. A R L
Our Group's energy management
system was operating well in 2019,
successfully completing the energy-
saving assessment indicators issued
by relevant national departments, and
successfully passing the annual external
audit to obtain an energy management ‘\
system certification. The establishment, = K_/

operation and certification of our .
Energy management system certificate

Group’s energy management system has N .
P 9 9 Y aglﬁﬁiﬁﬁignuufufg

become an important guarantee for our
Group's energy saving, efficiency and
rapid development, greatly promoting the realization of our Group’s energy
saving goals, and significantly optimizing our Group’s energy management

level.

Comprehensive implementation of the Management Measures for
Energy Conservation and Resource Control

In 2019, our Group fully implemented the Management Measures for
Energy Conservation and Resource Control of YCIH Green High-Performance
Concrete Company Limited to strengthen energy management, improve
the level of reasonable energy use, and reduce energy consumption in
order to achieve the reuse of production energy and resources and reach
the goal of energy saving and emission reduction. Each branch company
regularly collected statistics on water consumption produced, technically
transformed production links or processes that consume large amounts of
water, and strengthened the recycling of water resources. At the same time,
it strengthened water-saving publicity and education, enhanced employees’
awareness of water-saving, and regularly calculated the water consumption
of the project. Each branch company implemented fuel-saving management
of transportation vehicles and fuel oil machinery to prevent the occurrence
of “missing, spilling, leaking, and dripping” of transportation equipment,
and at the same time strengthened the repair and maintenance of motor
vehicles. Each branch preferentially chose production equipment and
tools with mature technology, reliable quality, high efficiency, low energy
consumption, and low environmental pollution, and minimized the no-load
operation time of the equipment when in use.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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2.2.3 Enterprises seeking methods of serviceable

water source, water efficiency improvement plans and

B 'q G s R B R

achievement

Our Group sought the serviceable water source
in accordance with the relevant national
environmental protection policies, laws and
regulations, without generating any issues in
seeking the serviceable water source.

In 2019, our Group's total water consumption
was 2,134,500 tons,
consumption density was 591.59 tons/RMB1

and the energy

million. While our Group's business scale has
grown steadily, the water density and water
efficiency have remained at a relatively stable
level to achieve water conservation and efficient water use. At the same time,
our Group's batching plants were equipped with tertiary sedimentation tanks, and
the production sewage from the batching plants must not be discharged to the
outside. The sedimentary and filtered production sewage was recycled.

2.2.4 The total amount of packaging materials used for
our Group’s finished products and the percentage of each
production unit

The concrete products produced by our Group are transported by special concrete
mixer trucks without packaging materials. Products such as polycarboxylic
admixtures and aggregates are also transported to the locations designated by
customers through corresponding transport vehicles, so no packaging materials are

involved. Thus, this article is not applicable to our Group.

2.3 Correlation Analysis of Enterprise Environment and
Natural Resources

2.3.1 Analysis of the significant impact of enterprise
business activities on the environment and natural resources
and related measures

Our Group conducts business operations in accordance with relevant national
environmental protection policies and emission requirements, and strictly treats
the emissions and pollutants generated. All produced emissions and pollutants
are recorded with detailed testing and records, which meet the requirements of
relevant national environmental protection regulations and emission regulations,

and have no significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

Sewage tertiary sedimentation tank
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2.3.2 Analysis of related indicators of enterprise
environment and natural resource protection

Dust and noise will be generated during
the production of concrete. Our Group
strengthens the control of dust and noise,
and strives to minimize the impact on the
environment. In terms of dust control, the first
is to install centralized dust removal devices at
various production links and locations where
dust may be generated, to effectively filter
and collect scattered dust and use them for
production; the second is to set up spray dust
removal devices in the plant sheds and main

232 TERBERAAREFRRELN
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roads. The fog cannons are used to remove Picture of an operating fog cannon BEAMER FNEEETAWN

BEEIEER

the dust at dead corners in the plant area at
the appropriate time. At the same time, the
sprinkler truck is used to timely spray the road
surface to reduce dust so as to realize the
effective control on the dust in sheds and on
the roads; the third is to equip the plant with
a movable fog cannon. When dust appears
in the plant, it sprays in time to effectively
prevent dust pollution within the area. When
the production site is around the residential
area, in addition to meeting the requirements
of local civilized production, our Group shall
arrange special personnel to be responsible for
cleaning the necessary site. The stacking site is
sealed in a greenhouse, and the dust shall be
controlled to a minimum degree.

In terms of noise control, the first is to

=1
purchase energy-saving and low-noise Picture of using water for dust suppression B

production equipment; the second is to S EKIMEEZE
upgrade existing equipment to reduce

noise; the third is to reasonably arrange the production operation time so as to
effectively prevent noise disturbance to the lives and working of people around
the plant. During transportation, our Group's vehicles comply with the local
government'’s regulations on prohibiting horn in the urban area, and reduce noise
through driving in speed limit and using mufflers in urban areas.

115 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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3 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ANALYSIS

3.1 Analysis of Current Employment Situation in Enterprises
3.1.1 Overview of employees and employment guidelines
Our Group strictly abide by various laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
and Labor Contract Law of the PRC. Our Group has developed an optimized
human resources management system, and clearly stipulates the rights and
obligations of employees in the employee manual. Our Group has formulated a
scientific and reasonable compensation system to effectively motivate employees
to work, and pay pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing provident fund for
employees in accordance with the law. The working hours of employees meet the
requirements of relevant national laws, and at the same time they also enjoy the
required rest and vacation in accordance with the law. Our Group has established
a labor union in accordance with relevant Chinese laws and regulations, actively
providing care and assistance to employees, organizing related activities, and
safeguarding the legitimate rights and interests of employees.

Our Group adheres to the principle of “openness, fairness and impartiality” at
recruiting, adopts two-way choice, selects the best candidates for employment,
and avoids any discrimination during the recruitment. In order to achieve the
common development of our Group and employees, each employee of our Group
enjoys the opportunity to receive training and promotion. At the same time, our
Group's employee dismissal process strictly follows various staffing related national
laws and regulations such as the Labor Law and the Labor Contract Law.

Working staff by key indicators
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Proportion of employees in our Group by main indicators in 2019
2019F AL EIZR X BIEFE D ERE T LI

B Male
B
B Female
i
Gender
MR FHEER

MW 25 years old and below
255 AT

m 26-35 years old
26-355%

W 36-45 years old
36-455%

11 46 years old and above
4657 A
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B Management
B2

m Production management
SEER

m Quality and technology
E 2R

i Procurement
&

W Marketing
M5 HE R

M Administration and finance

TE %

Function
BAE = Qthers B

As of December 31, 2019, the total number of in-service employees of our Group
was 1,175.

By gender, our Group's in-service employees are mostly male, accounting for a
significant portion of the production unit. In order to create a good working
environment for female employees, our Group implements the State’s Provisions
on Labor Protection for Female Employees and Special Provisions on Labor
Protection for Female Employees to ensure that female employees enjoy due
vacations and insurance in accordance with the law, and women workers enjoy
prenatal check-up leave during pregnancy. In addition, our Group actively carry
out various cultural activities to enrich the leisure life of female employees and
create a more harmonious working environment. By age group, our Group has
a reasonable distribution of in-service employees at all ages. While focusing on
injecting fresh energy into its workforce, our Group cherishes employees with
work experience. By function, our Group’s employees of production management
and quality technology account for nearly 60% of the total, providing talent
guarantee for our Group to export high-quality products. By education structure,
our Group's employees who have university degrees or above account for nearly
60% of all, showing a high scientific literacy and cultural level holistically.

Employment turnover by key indicators

As of December 31, 2019, our Group's total employee turnover during the
Reporting Period was 70, accounting for approximately 6.0% of the total number
of employees in service. Among them, the number of employees lost in the
quality and technology function was 25, the number of employees lost in the
administrative and financial function was 20, and the number of employees lost
in the production management function was 11, totaling about 80.0% of the
employee turnover.

117 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

| University degree and above

REFIAE

m College degree
A

m Technical school
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Employee caring activities

BETHEERY

3.1.2 Overview of employee health and security

Our Group pays great attention to the health and security of employees, and
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Occupational
Disease Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Regulations on Occupational Health Supervision and Management in the
Workplace, and the Work Injury Insurance Regulations, and strives to create
safety, health, and affinity workplace environment. On the basis of observing and
implementing relevant work safety regulations, systems, and standards such as the
Work Safety Law, the Fire Protection Law and the Labor Law, inspect and urge
managers and employees at all levels of our Group to consciously perform safety
duties in their work, regularly organize safety inspections to rectify any hidden
safety hazards in a timely manner.

Our Group regards occupational health and safety as one of the important social
responsibilities. Our Group’s business operations involve product processing,
power use, loading and transportation processes. As a result, our employees may
be at risk from work related injuries and accidents. Our Group attaches great
importance to safety control in order to minimize safety risks in the manufacturing
process. Our Group provides employees with protective equipment such as safety
helmet, dust masks, ear plugs, protective shoes, protective gloves, reflective
vests and safety ropes, and sets up Safety, Health and Environmental Supervision
Department to manage occupational health and production safety. Our Group
formulated the Management Measures for Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety and improved the occupational health and safety management system
to ensure the safety of employees’ operations and avoid occupational hazards. The
Company has passed GB/T28001 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certification since 2010. In the course of business engagement, it
strictly abides by the requirements of the system. It has maintained continuous
certification of the Occupational Health and Safety Management System over the
years, effectively ensuring continues standards-reaching and improvement of our

Group's various safety management and occupational health management.
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In strict accordance with the relevant safety management system and occupational
health and safety management system, our Group carefully organizes employees
to carry out occupational health examinations and occupational health and safety
education and training in order to improve the occupational health and safety
awareness of all employees. Our Group actively promotes various occupational
health and safety management work in place to provide employees with a safe

working environment and avoid occupational hazards.

The following are the main measures taken by our Group in 2019 to ensure the
health and safety of employees:

—  Occupational health knowledge training was conducted
Our Group invited professional lecturers
to carry out occupational health
knowledge training. The lectures covered
emergency rescue, mental health and
occupational health knowledge, and
the hazards and preventive measures
of various occupational diseases. The
lecturer used simulation props to conduct
live demonstration teaching, so that the
trainees could learn relevant knowledge

more intuitively, and improve self-

—  Grass-roots employees to conduct occupational health examination
was organized
Our Group organized front-line employees at the grassroots level, including
operators, loader drivers, material workers, mechanics, and assistant workers,
to conduct occupational health examination. Medical staff conducted
detailed screening of medical examination items based on Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases and Technical Specifications for Occupational Health Surveillance
(GBZ 188-2014), and selected examination categories based on industry
characteristics and job differences. The implementation of occupational
health examinations has been well received by employees, allowing
employees to improve their awareness of prevention of occupational
diseases while understanding their health status.

— The Management Measures for Environmental and Occupational
Health and Safety was formulated and implemented
In 2019, our Group formulated and implemented the Management
Measures for Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited to regulate the affairs
related to environmental and occupational health and safety management
and strengthen process control to achieve our Group’s environmental
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and occupational health and safety management objectives to ensure the
environment and occupational health and safety of employees in production
activities. Our Group detailed deployment of work procedures such as
the signing of safety responsibility certificates, labor protection control,
operator certification and safety training management, work and production
site design and layout, canteen service staff management, on-site safety
management, driver safety management control. The Safety, Health and
Environmental Supervision Department regularly inspected the work safety,
environmental protection, and prevention and control of occupational
diseases in the office, production and living areas of workers.

3.1.3 Employee development and training overview

Our Group formulates practical training plans every year according to development
needs of our Group, and conduct employee training according to job functions,
in order to help employees update their work knowledge and improve their work
skills. In 2019, our Group conducted party affairs training, safety production
management training, quality and technology management training, financial
management training, human resource management training, audit business
training, and middle-level managerial adaptive leadership training, etc. The
total number of participants of our Group’s training activities in 2019 was
approximately 2,900 and the total length of training was approximately 24,000
hours.

Employee training
8 T

3.1.4 Guidelines and measures to prevent child or forced
labor

Our Group strictly abides by relevant national legal requirements such as the
Protection Law for Minors and Prohibition on the Use of Child Labor, and avoids
any use of child labor or forced labor in its business operations and holds a
zero tolerance attitude and stance on any form of child labor and forced labor.
We also require that this phenomenon shall be eliminated in our audits of our
suppliers.
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3.2 Operational Management Status Analysis

3.2.1 Overview of supply chain management

Our Group makes clear regulations on the selection and management of suppliers
to ensure that supplier management practices and selection are appropriate. In the
selection of suppliers, our Group will fully consider the following factors: whether
the supplier has passed the legal production and operation of the enterprise
approved by the relevant departments of state and comply with national and local
laws and regulations; whether the supplier’'s products meet the quality, price and
related production qualification certification and passing relevant tests; whether
the supplier has appropriate technical capabilities, delivery capabilities, economic
capabilities and good social reputation; whether the supplier has relevant
environmental certifications to reduce the potential environment and social risks in

the supply chain.

Our Group formulates and implements the Administrative Measures for Tendering
of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited to strengthen the
management of the bidding process, to carry out the bidding work in a legal,
compliant, disciplined, efficient and transparent manner to ensure the selection
of the best contract, and to effectively control costs. Before bidding, each
bidding department shall prepare the bidding plan, bidding documents, etc. in
a timely manner, and after consulting the Legal Affairs Department, submit it to
bidding leading group for approval. The bid opening, bid evaluation, and bidding
procedures strictly follow the relevant provisions of the national laws, regulations
and rules. In competitive negotiations, our Group conducts a full investigation
on the price of materials, grasps the situation of resources, implements each
guotation and forms a price inquiry table, so as to purchase materials with
advantages such as price and quality. Our Group’s Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Department, Audit and Supervision Department exercise supervision
and inspection functions, and supervise the bidding activities and the relevant
parties throughout the process.

When signing a contract with a supplier, our Group signs an integrity agreement
or sets integrity rules to regulate business practices, enhance awareness of
discipline, integrity and self-discipline, and prevent illegal violations. During the
supply process, if the quality of the supplier's product fluctuates, our Group
sends a Rectification Notice to inform the supplier to adjust the product quality.
Our Group assesses its suppliers every year, and those suppliers that pass the
assessment are listed as qualified suppliers in the next year, and those that fail
the assessment are classified as unqualified suppliers and no longer engage in

cooperation.

In 2019, our Group cooperated with a total of 608 raw material suppliers and 91
logistics service providers.
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3.2.2 Product liability overview

Our Group adheres to the path of safe production, intelligent manufacturing
and green development, attaches importance to the environmental protection
of its products, is committed to providing customers with high-quality products,
and constantly optimizes its service system to provide customers with the best
quality service. Our Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations
on the health and safety, advertising, labeling and remedy of the products and
services provided, which may have a significant impact on our Group, including
but not limited to the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Safety Production Law of the People’s Republic of China, Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China.
During the Reporting Period, our Group did not have any lawsuits in violation of
the above laws and regulations related to the health and safety of products and
services, advertising, labels and remedies. Among the products sold by our Group
in 2019, there were no products that must be recalled due to safety and health

issues, and no complaints have been received regarding products or services.

Product quality management and identification

In order to ensure the quality and safety of the products, our Group formulated
and implemented the Measures for the Quality and Technology Management of
YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, Ex-factory Inspection
Rules for Mixture of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
and the Evaluation and Treatment Principles for Nonconforming Concrete Products
of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited, comprehensively
implementing the quality management responsibility system, strengthening process
quality management, and ensuring that our Group's concrete, cement, admixtures,
and aggregates meet the standard specifications, owners and design requirements,

and preventing the quality accidents.

Our Group has established a comprehensive quality technology system, which
monitors and manages product quality from the aspects of raw material
management, laboratory management, product design and planning, mix
ratio management, production management, product inspection and testing,
transportation management, concrete delivery management, quality inspection on
construction site and technical services. Before the delivery of concrete from the
factory, the factory inspectors of the batching plants under the jurisdiction of each
branch were required to be responsible for the performance test of the mixtures
and filled in the test records. In case of abnormal performance of the mixture, it
was required to be reported to the tester of the batching plant under each branch
in time. The tester of the batching plant under branches was required to inspect
the mixtures and handle the abnormalities, and feed back the handling results
to the chief engineer of the branch or of the project. The chief engineer of the
branch or of the project was required to evaluate the performance of the concrete
mixture, and effectively adjust and track it in time. After the product delivery,
the nonconforming concrete found by customers was required to be confirmed
and identified by the Quality & Technology Division of each branch, and then the
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Division will report it to the Quality and Technology Department. According to the
review comments, the Quality and Technology Department and each branch will
handle the non-conforming concrete in time by means of rework, degradation,
transferring to other points or scrapping.

In order to ensure the quality of raw materials and products, our Group has
formulated and released the Management Measures for Raw Materials of YCIH
Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited to carry out the tight
management on raw materials including aggregates, cement, coal ash and
admixtures. The Material Management Division is required to carry out the
visual inspection, sampling and recording of the raw materials according to the
Management Measures for Raw Materials before raw materials enter the site, and
handle the materials with quality disputes timely.
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Organization Chart for Quality and Technology System of our Group
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In order to ensure the implementation of the product quality systems of our
Group, the Company has signed the 2079 Quality Management Responsibility
of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited with branches and
has set the quality responsibility objectives for products in 2019: There shall
be no major accident or above due to poor quality in the whole year. The first
acceptance rate of products shall not be less than 99.9% and the final acceptance
rate shall be 100%. There shall be no major quality complaint, and the process
management shall be good through assessment. Meanwhile, our Group has
actively carried out the quality and technology training, special inspection on
quality and technology management regularly, and activities in “quality month” in
September 2019, and conducted activities for the publicity and education in forms
of skill competition, warning education, quality and technical training, knowledge
competition, team building, etc., so as to create a management atmosphere in
which everyone attaches importance to quality, and advocates and pursues quality,
and improve the subjective initiative of employees to participate in quality and
technology management.
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Activities in “Quality Month” of 2019
2009FEERIEY

Managing Intellectual Property

Our Group has implemented the intellectual property strategy, paid attention to
the research and development of intellectual property rights and the cultivation
of major technological achievements. Moreover, we have applied for 11 invention
patents and 36 utility model patents, with 7 invention patents and 36 utility
model patents authorized. Our Group has also participated in the preparation of
6 national standards, 7 industrial standards, 2 association standards and 7 local
standards for concrete, and obtained 2 software copyrights.

In order to ensure the implementation of the technology development strategy
of our Group, standardize the intellectual property management of our Group,
improve the intellectual property development, and promote the transformation
and application of intellectual property, our Group has formulated a series of
technology management methods to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our Group, including the Management Measures for Scientific and
Technological Innovation of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company
Limited, Management Measures for Intellectual Property of YCIH Green High-
Performance Concrete Company Limited and Organization and Implementation
of Transformation of Scientific and Technological Achievements & Incentive and
Reward Methods of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited,
so as to strengthen the management on scientific and technological innovation
such as technology development, technical innovation and popularization and
application of new technologies and achievements management of our Group,
standardize the intellectual property management, enhance the science and
technology innovation management and motivate the enthusiasm and creativity
of technical personnel, promote the capacity for independent innovation
and technological progress, and speed up the transformation of scientific
and technological achievements into productivity, thus to build the core
competitiveness of our Group.
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3.2.3 Brief analysis of anti-corruption measures in enterprises
Our Group has formulated the rules of conduct and management system through
the Employee Manual to encourage employees to be honest and self-disciplined,
and handle affairs impartially, keeping away from the abuse of power for personal
gain and bribery. Furthermore, it is strictly forbidden for leaders to abuse their
powers, use their power for personal gain, bribery or kickbacks. It is prohibited
for employees to ask for property from cooperative units, material (equipment)
suppliers, engineering sub-contractors, embezzle, work in collusion with others, or
conduct black box operation to damage the Company’s interests. In addition, it
is strictly prohibited for employees to report false figures, fill in documents with
false information, make false accounts, deceive superiors and delude subordinates,
or provide false information to our Group. Our Group has imposed administrative
sanctions and economic penalties on those who steal the enterprise’s property,
embezzle money, offer and accept bribes, collude with others, deceive superiors
and delude subordinates, causing serious influence on the enterprise or illegal
behaviors.

Our Group has signed agreements with suppliers to regulate business practices
and prevent corruption. Our Group has agreed with suppliers not to accept
or seek bribes in any forms, not to give or accept benefits such as gifts, cash,
securities, pay orders, discount fee, agency fee, kickbacks, commissions or cash
gifts, borrow or lend money, withhold or misappropriate payment for goods,
engage in black box operation or private transactions. Our Group's Discipline
Inspection and Supervision Department has set the informants’ hotline telephone
and E-mail to accept real-name reporting, anonymous reporting or the reporting
by external third parties. The Discipline Inspection and Supervision Department has
also handled the case according to the procedures, in case of violation of relevant

regulations on integrity in business activities.

Our Group has formulated and implemented the Management System for Anti-
Money Laundering of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
in accordance with relevant laws and administrative regulations such as the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of People’s Republic of China, Regulations on the Anti-
money Laundering of Financial Institutions issued by the People’s Bank of China
and Guidelines against Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing through Payment
and Clearing Organizations, established a risk control system for money laundering
in three aspects: risk responsibility of each department, risk responsibility of
senior management, and risk responsibility of internal audit. Our Group has
organized the establishment and improvement of systems for customer identity
identification, customer identity information and transaction record keeping,
customer classification on money laundering risk, large transaction and suspicious
transaction report, submitted large transactions and suspicious transaction reports
in accordance with the laws, and organized to implement the audit of anti-money
laundering on a regular basis.
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During the Reporting Period, such cases as corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering did not occur in our Group.

3.3 Investment Overview of Business Community

Our Group has actively promoted the construction of a harmonious society, and
always takes it as an important mission to pay back the society and fulfill social
responsibilities. As improving the business operation, our Group has avoided
causing disturbance to the nearby community during the operation activities. We
also tried our best to pay back to the society, extend our care to the community
and practice social responsibilities. Each unit of our Group has formed a good tie
with the relevant departments of local sub-districts, communities and governments,
and has given a strong support to the relevant departments in works such as
employment arrangement, tax payment and poverty alleviation.

Our Group earnestly implemented the important instructions on poverty alleviation
of the central government, and performed its corporate social responsibility in
accordance with the work requirements of poverty alleviation. On November
21, 2019, in order to implement the poverty alleviation, our Group participated
in the 60-day countdown activity in 2019 organized by the leading groups of
“Guabaobang” (an activity that the superiors connect and link with poverty
alleviation areas, relevant department supports corresponding villages and leaders
supports corresponding households to alleviate poverty) and “Interview & Visits”
formed by YCIH. In this way, our Group visited the 4 registered households
supported by our Group in Xuanweidelu Township to know their real situations,
and completed interview records and interview questionnaires. The representatives
of our Group have visited four households to further understand the changes and
actual conditions from 2013, and carried out support activities.
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Poverty Alleviation Activities and Visits
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Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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Appendix
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Terms
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Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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Reporting period/2019
WEH, 201956
Company/our Company
NI /N

Our Group/we

TEB/ BN

YCIH

EEER

Baoshan Building Material
RLEM

Quijing Building Material
ih 5 2 it

Polymer Company

= F QA

Employee Manual

B ITFm

Integrity Agreement
BRI 175 7%

& kERESG)HRE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEBMERIMERD

Accounting period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019

20191 A1HZE2019F 12 A31H &5

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
EHERZESMERRETIRMDERAD A

Our Company and its subsidiaries

RARREMERF

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., the controlling Shareholder of the
Company

EHAERREZEREBDERDF - BEARAAIMERKRR

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company
EHERRUKERBMBERAR  REARAHNMERQA

YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company
EEERHBEREMERIA  BEAAFNNEB QA

YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company
EEERSSFMHARAAF - BARXAHIMNER A

Employee Manual of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
EHERgZea M RETIRNMERA RS IFMH

Integrity Agreement of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

EHRRARERURRRIRNDAR R BRKGH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_n
pwc

To the Shareholders of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company
Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 135 to 247, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019;

3 the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary

of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N %2 BLRD i

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics

Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables was identified as a Key Audit Matter in our
audit as follows:

Key Audit Matter

REETER

bt VAR S
RIZBERR & 5B E R
CEIFR & 5t B0 B 3 B 13 T
MR Y (AT B EE
R ERE YEETE
XEBEREME -

FRESTSE

MRESHFRELRERMOTEAE  BRY
FHEHMBBRRNEAR/EENTA -
BLERITERMEBFERSHYBTRERL
HABREETREEN HMATEHELE
FRHEBHNER o

QR EEEME
A(BEEBRBEL
SR - BB
27 Bl e A EL B

HMERFPRNOBERESFFTHEIHNE
Usg B S B AT [ 4t

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEANTEERRESEE

Recoverability of trade receivables

FE W B X B FT = U

Refer to Note 3.1(b) (Financial risk factors-Credit risk), Note 4 (Critical
accounting estimates and judgements — Recoverability of trade receivables)
and Note 22 (Trade receivables) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
BOR2HBEMMBRERMII N 0) (MERBRER — ERRER) - MFd4(E
EE At R AIE — B URR FRA AT B ) R Bt sE22 (PR IR 30D o

As at December 31, 2019, the Group’s gross trade receivables were approximately
RMB2,472 million, provision for impairment of trade receivables was approximately
RMB55 million, and net trade receivables of approximately RMB2,417 represented
approximately 68% of the Group’s total assets.

M2019%F12A318 - EXEESREREEEBNRARK 247258 T -
ERERFUREEBHRBO/SARESSAE L BRRFFENR/ARK2,417
BET HNE E5EBEEGSY -

The Group applied the simplified approach to assess expected credit loss by
grouping trade receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics, and ageing
days. Under this approach, expected lifetime losses were recognised from initial
recognition of the trade receivables.
FEEEFEAEAETRRERNERRRSEMERR REHERERS A
NFHATERERELX - REZS A VEBIAEBUIRRENER 2 HIEX -

We performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

B EERETFERT T RBARFE
B

(i) Understood, evaluated and validated
the key internal controls over
collection of trade receivables, credit
control, determination and approval
of provision for impairment of trade
receivables.

(M TH® FERBREEEABIEGEE
JE W BR UK~ B B ROR (B B B
ZHEE R o

(i) Circulated confirmations of trade
receivables on a sample basis. For
those confirmations without reply,
we performed alternative procedures
by inspecting the relevant documents
supporting the trade receivable
balances.

(2) HBEDWEHARE - BRWAE
BARER - F PRSI FMTEX
HABMITERERRF -
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Key Audit Matter

HEESEE

BN % BAm RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEANOTEEREETEE

Recoverability of trade receivables (Continued)

FE Wi BR XY T [ Uk ()

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance is determined based on past
settlement profiles and the observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and is adjusted
with current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors that
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

2 EATEEHE R B i E R H B o0 B A T FOR R B OUE P R B R B R AR
BHBRIMENE  BZBAXRBYETPNRENEBEN LB L E
REHRE RATEEEREBE -

In assessing forward-looking information, the Group considered factors including
economic policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in
customers’ conditions.

EREEATELEERE X BEEZTENRZCELBEK RBELEBEER 17

We focused on this area as the balance of trade receivables was material to the
consolidated financial statements and the assessment of expected credit loss on
trade receivables involved significant judgement and estimates by management.
BHMEINZBEEDHRENRERBREE S B ®REREAL BT HEKE
REBMERBRIRERNEIEE HIE &G -

(iii)

For trade receivables for which
provision for impairment was
assessed individually, we reviewed
management’s assessment of the
financial position and creditworthiness
of customers, historical payment
records and forecasted future
economic conditions. We also
corroborated management’s
assessment by searching for
customers’ background, reviewing
the Group’s historical transactions
with the customers and collection
patterns, and examined the data
supporting determination of forward-
looking factors and checked the data
sources. We validated the accuracy
of expected credit loss rates and
expected credit loss allowance by
performing recalculation;
HPNIRREIB S ET L BUERR
BREBEENTPNHMBMKATE
EEM - JE SRR A SR A I 3 R 2R A
BB FER o A th 5 E IR E BV AT
REFEMESTBIETRENERE
BE EESHTPNEREA WU
T/ EEENXZELMERE
o REWETE AT E BRI AR
BHHBBERR  RMBRAENTER
EREBMEABRERIRBEREHE
Ke BN

For trade receivables for which
provision for impairment was assessed
collectively, we performed the
following procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the grouping of
trade receivables and validated the
expected credit loss:
HEIRRB AT EEEERR - FKM
B NAESAREREERE
EREBERTEARERAEEREN
BHERABAENEEMY -
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MEERTEE EMHESFNAEERRFTFS R

We examined the grouping of
trade receivables by checking
evidence supporting the credit risk
characteristics of these receivables on
a sample basis;
HEAS S ENEEN - WIERK
AR IR AE P B A B RORI R
AEREM

We validated the calculation of
historical credit loss by testing the
accuracy of trade receivable ageing
on a sample basis, and recalculating
migration rates and historical default
rates;

HHELERELS RM2BELE
FTACER B BV AR B BR iR B0 4 A
M WERAEHEEENMELELD
&

We examined the data supporting
determination of forward looking
factors and checked the data sources;
HERFMATEERZE - BMTEATE
MEMEE 2 ER W REELERRIR

We checked the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the
expected credit loss allowance.
HEEHEREL  RMAREHEE
DR EERNL -

(v)  We tested the cash collections
subsequent to year end on a sample
basis.

(5) BEREAREHRZORER -

Based on our work, we found the
judgement and estimates made by
management in determining the
recoverability of trade receivables
were supported by available evidence.
ERERF  BRMERTIERRE
MERMNBEFTEREYE Lt
JEW R FIEBRAT IR M B M E R 5l
FTANHE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

B 3% B R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

133

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lam Siu Wing, Benny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 27, 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

a FHFER

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MBLLEE

Note 2019 2018
B 5 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETT
Revenue WA 3,608,075 3,357,117
Cost of sales 5 & AR (3.200,677) (2,997,649)
Gross profit EX 407,398 359,468
Selling expenses DHER 7 (13,136) (14,407)
Administrative expenses THRER 7 (133,981) (114,553)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CRMEERBEEELFHE 7 (8,129) (11,870)
Other income & 5 2,257 5,221
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi(BKR)FIE — F8 6 (1,210) 814
Operating profit KRB 253,199 224,673
Finance income B 75 5 2 10 1,354 1,147
Finance costs B%ER 10 (10,358) (8,738)
Finance costs — net VMBEBEH — 38 10 (9,004) (7,591)
Profit before income tax F A 15 Bt A0 78 244,195 217,082
Income tax expense g8 &R 11 (28,509) (37,633)
Profit for the year FERH 215,686 179,449
Profit attributable to: FEEBER
— The equity holders of the Company — AREBFEE 203,685 163,748
— Non-controlling interests — FEPEHIME RS 12,001 15,701
215,686 179,449
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FABRUEFEBEREIAT
the equity holders of the Company during FEE(UAEBRARYES)
the year (expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted earnings per share — EARgRKE R
wES R K 12 0.61 0.52

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

/\\/

It AR & W et

3R

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

Year ended December 31,

Note BZ12A3MBLEE
B 5 2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARKETT
Profit for the year FEFE 215,686 179,449
Other comprehensive loss HitiraE %
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss R eE S HEBm i)
HH
— Changes in the fair value of debt instruments at NARBEFEAE
fair value through other comprehensive income BE AHEMES KR
MEBITARAREEBEES (2,171) —
— Income tax relating to the item — HEZEEBEAMAMEN 351 —
Other comprehensive loss for the year, AEEHMEEEX
net of tax HKkHE (1,820) —
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERFE KRR 213,866 179,449
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THGEHARERBRN
— The equity holders of the Company e WGP 201,942 163,748
— Non-controlling interests — JEPEHI S 11,924 15,701

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ot B R

As at December 31, 2019

R2019 1231 H
As at December 31,
Note MR12A31H
BT 5% 2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AR T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Land use rights + {55 A A& 13 20,102 20,602
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THREKZE 14 194,502 258,105
Investment properties KEEFE 15 2,821 3,011
Intangible assets EREE 16 930 20
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 17 7,950 =
Deferred income tax assets BIEMSMEE 18 14,791 12,539
241,096 294,277
Current assets REBEE
Inventories VeSS 20 47,474 45,704
Financial assets at fair value through NAnEBEFEEE
other comprehensive income BHAAHE MRS RS
TREE 21 137,202 55,637
Trade receivables JE Wt BR X 22 2,416,622 2,448,270
Prepayments and other receivables TE 1 AR 3R % H A FE WK 23 38,615 59,766
Restricted cash Z R HIIR e 24 20,772 15,680
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 25 640,009 240,026
3,300,694 2,865,083
Total assets BEE 3,541,790 3,159,360
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& OB B O 3R
As at December 31, 2019
R2019F 12531 H

As at December 31,

Note M12A31H
k=2 2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKET T

EQUITY Em
Share capital & A< 26 446,272 312,390
Reserves & & 27 458,658 245,799
Retained earnings B 17 s 28 262,937 321,464
Total equity attributable to equity RERAATMEE

holders of the Company 1,167,867 879,653
Non-controlling interests FE 1 Il 1R AR 60,481 75,344
Total equity HmER 1,228,348 954,997
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 15,601 15,565
Provision for close down, restoration and FAE - 1B IR AR E

environmental cost 30 5,411 8,419

21,012 23,984
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ot B &

As at December 31, 2019

R2019%F12431H
As at December 31,
Note M12A31H
B 5 2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 Kk H A FE~ IE 31 2,128,626 2,002,587
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 13,132 21,655
Provision for close down, restoration and AR - B RIRRKAEE
environmental cost 30 6,454 3,234
Contract liabilities ERAE 5 14,130 48,146
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 15,470 24,757
Borrowings & & 32 114,618 80,000
2,292,430 2,180,379
Total liabilities wme s 2,313,442 2,204,363
Total equity and liabilities EnRkB8EEE 3,541,790 3,159,360

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in S O B 7 AR R 3R FE B B MY 2 B — B Y

conjunction with the accompanying notes. =

The consolidated financial statements on page 135 to 247 were approved by the F135BEFE2TE ENAEHPBRRERZ
Board of Directors on March 27, 2020 and were signed on its behalf. T ZE=A T HHEESGHE - WA
TEEREREE -

Chairman / Ma Minchao Director / Rao Ye

B5RFRE B g
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN [ KHE =% 424
= T M m & @J %%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZR2019F 12H31HIFFZF

Attributable to equity holders of

the Company
ARARREMN
Non-
controlling
Share Retained interests Total
Note Capital ~ Reserves  earnings Total — F#EHIH equity
k3 LA H#E EEka @ x  AER
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTn AR%Tn ARETR AR®TT AR%®Tn
As at January 1, 2018 20181818 &8 312,390 247,595 174,135 734,120 74,418 808,538
Comprehensive Income: REWE
Profit for the year EEFE — — 163748 163,748 15701 179,449
Transactions with owners: EERMEENERBEN
FRETHRS
Dividends to non-controlling RIEEHEEETTRE
interests — — — — (14,775) (14,775)
Business combination under R—Es THEER K
common control — (18,215) — (18,215) — (18,215)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BB A F [ 5 27,28 = 16,419 (16,419) = = =
As at December 31, 2018 201812831 A &8 312,390 245,799 321,464 879,653 75,344 954,997
As at January 1, 2019 201951818 &8 312,390 245,799 321,464 879,653 75,344 954,997
Comprehensive Income: e
Profit for the year EEFE — — 203685 203,685 12,001 215,686
Other comprehensive loss Hinkz 68K — (1,743) — (1,743) (77) (1,820)
Transactions with owners: HEZMEENH
FREENSHETH
x5
Proceeds of H share issued BATHR AR 2 P15 3% 133,882 195,615 — 329,497 — 329,497
Dividends to equity holders of the ~ RARAFREELHKE
Company 33 - — (243,225) (243,225) — (243,225)
Dividends to non-controlling mIEEH RS ARE
interests — — — — (26,787) (26,787)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BB A F [ 5 27,28 — 18,987 (18,987) — — —
As at December 31, 2019 201912831 A &8 446,272 458,658 262,937 1,167,867 60,481 1,228,348

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt & O s B R R B BE P 2 P — B B

.
= e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN Gt AN =i —1
aFReTR=E

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

Year ended December 31,

Note BZ12A31MBLEE
B 5 2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNEESRE
Cash generated from operations IREELENIES 34(a) 421,240 148,870
Interest received 2 WA B 10 1,354 1,147
Interest paid EEREESS 10, 32 (5,919) (5,099)
Income tax paid B (39,697) (48,393)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELEFERS 376,978 96,525
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BETHE TREKZE (31,784) (45,081)
Purchase of intangible assets EERLAE (1,004) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HETRHE  ITHARE
equipment Ffr 1% 3% 1,641 834
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFMAFES (31,147) (44,247)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRESRE
Proceeds from issue of H shares BITHRR AR 19 AT 15 3k 26(d) 377,312 —
Contribution from non-controlling interests of FTBARISEIEREZRFE
the subsidiaries 874 =
Proceeds from borrowings & P15 3K 34(b) 147,368 81,489
Repayments of bank borrowings BEER 34(b) (80,000) (80,000)
Payment for listing expenses T ETEA (38,496) (8,351)
Payment for leases liabilities THBEERE 34(b) (31,266) (42,450)
Dividends paid to the Company’s equity holders M A AR R X RS 33 (273,313) (21,287)
Net cash outflow arising from consideration paid AAREWKER—IZH TFT
to the controlling shareholder of the Company NS E A
for acquisition of entities under common 7Y ¥ (8 3%
control — (70,577)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of A F A &) FE4% il 1 A 2 2 AT
the subsidiaries % & (46,602) (2,877)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing MEZTHELE (FA)
activities FRE 55,877 (144,053)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HERBSEEYFHM
equivalents (R 2) 401,708 (91,775)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FONHReRBESEEY
the year 25 240,026 331,801
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ReERREZEVEXREEH (1,725) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREBEERRELZEY 25 640,009 240,026

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

YNJG Green High-Performance Concrete Co., Ltd. was incorporated in
Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") on June 19,
2007 as a limited liability company under the Company law of the PRC. On
December 22, 2017, the Company was converted into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB312,390,000 and changed
its name to YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
(the “Company”). The address of its registered office is YCIH Zhaotong
Development Building, Zhaotong Road, Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

The parent company of the Group was Yunnan Construction Engineering
Group Co., Ltd ("YNJG") ("EmEIEEERAF") before March of
2017 and Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.
("YCIH") ("EMERERICEEREBEFRARF") since March of 2017. Both
YNJG and YCIH are operating under the supervision and regulation of the
State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Yunnan
Province (“Yunnan SASAC").

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research, development, production, sales, transportation
and pumping of ready-mixed concrete as well as providing quality and
technology management service in the PRC.

The Company completed its global initial public offering (“IPO”) and listed
its H shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEX") on October 31, 2019.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi thousand
(RMB’000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on March 27, 2020.

The financial position of the Group was particularly affected by the initial
public offering on October 31, 2019 (Note 26) during the reporting period.

A zir =+ EVa
& OF B 15 R R MY A
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

B ZR2019F 12H31HIFFZF

—RER
EHEIKERMRERERTIARAAT
RIECPEARLFME A BE )R 200746
6A9ERFEARXMBA(FE]E
A MK 2 BR AT - B2017412
A228  ARRHRFHARBERAF
EftE AR A AR312,390,0007T ¢+ I
BEHELBATERERGER R
TROGERAR ([RAT]) o HaEmy
FERbIATEEFEABETREG RS
BAEEMERBRERAE -

R201763 88 AEB B AR AEM
BEISEERAR(IBIE®])  r@mAE
017F3ARAEHEAERRELRRKRE
EERAR([ZEEEER]) - EI&EER
EHERHXEMEBHEEAEEEER
ZES([ZEAREZ)EBRRE -

ARBREFRB(SEAIAERR
TRETENERHERLIME LAEN
HE BRERZX  YRHEEREM
EER -

ARBBETKEZRERAFETH
Pg - AR R 201910 A31 B ERE
BEaRSABERAFERLT °

BREBEHIN REHTBEREAAR
BTTITHER - AEHMERREERE
E2R2020F3 827 A #HE A& T E -

AEE  AEBUFBRTERNZIR
2019 10A3TEHM B R AR EITRE
I & (M 5E26) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A i + 2
& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHREME

POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements of the Group. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

EMNBOAEFENERER -

21 REEE

REREHPBHRERANEEGETR
RERTX BB ABBI  LWEFEEEK

2.1.1 Compliance with IFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

2.1.1 B FEBE B #HEE
B F1 & & 2 gk pl
RATMA HHBRELR
BB SR s R ((E
BB BREER ) REE
(CRAVEDIY(£6228) K57

2.1.2 Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the certain financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value.

2.1.3 New and amended standards adopted by the

2.1.2F & B &%

=

Group F B 1% 24 19 & A
The following new and amended accounting standards and VAT T2 R~ 2R 2 &2k

interpretations become applicable for annual reporting periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2019, and have been
adopted by the Group in current period and also early adopted
in prior period for the purpose of IPO of the Company:

IFRS 16
Bl R B 75 R 5 E B 85 1655%
IFRIC 23

B ANEF23R

Amendments to IAS 19

BB & st AE B SE 1958 (£ 3T)

Amendments to IFRS 9

B % B 75 R & R RSB 95% (2 5T)

Amendments to IAS 28

BIRR g 5t 2 B 52858 (5 5T)

Annual improvements IFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle

20152017 F BRI B s R FE LR R
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Leases

HE

Uncertainty over income tax treatments

s REN T EE

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
HElER - HIR S EE

Prepayment features with negative compensation
2 1a) 85 5 ) £2 Bl 3& U R

Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
HBERRREEEENRAER
Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23

BRI mRE R E35 B EREEAE115R
Re s ERIE125% BB S ERIFE23M 2 BT A

B 0TI IS 3R R IR IR A S B A
ERE  RUAAREEE
B EEREEMTHE

2.1.37 55 B E FRA 59 ¥ T

AFRIEN20196F1A18%
RN EEHRER A5
EERARESHAMEA T
AT MBS ER - W
AR EHRERARAEITR
B R AR HAR IR ATER A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B B 7S ) R B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHTHERBMEHE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEE(E)
2.1.4 New standards and amendments of IFRS 2.1.4 75 55 [& 27 K 12 BT FR AR
issued effective for the financial periods #920204F 15 1H #
beginning on and after January 1, 2020 and B %6 19 81 75 Bf [ £ 3%
have not been early adopted by the Group BIFTETER ~ 2R 2
15 &7 75 7l i #E

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

MEAT BH#Isk 2 & F i HY

FEHHEEA
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts January 1, 2022
B0 % B 7 o o R R 551 7 5% Rz &R 20221 H1H
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material January 1, 2020
BERest EE 1R REREER ERNER 2020661 RA1H
FE85 (1&85])
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of Business January 1, 2020
B (% B 75 R o AR R SB35 EBHER 202051 A 1H
Revised conceptual framework Revised conceptual framework for January 1, 2020
financial reporting
KASET I HE 52 KEETH M E M ESR 202061 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between  To be determined
an investor and its associate or joint
venture
B B B 75 3R 5 2E B SR 1058 [ BREEHRHBENRNEGEREZHE T
BB & 5t A B 52858 (8 RT) MEELEHHE
The Group is assessing the full impact of these new standards, REEIFF(HZEHER -
amendments and interpretations. According to the preliminary EBEIFREBHNEAETE - 1B
assessment, these standards, amendments and interpretations BOLSHE  SEETEY
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the 2. ATAKAgeeYAER
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future RESKRKRAHEEELE o
transactions.
THERZESHREERLIKROBMRAR 144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PA LY <ZAr =+ 2
& OF B 75 ¥ 3R B 7E
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2 F2019F 12431 H 1 FJZ

2

145

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(@) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial information
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

B 0F B 5 HR R MY R

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

B FE2019F 12531 H 1 FJE

2 FEETHRERBEAE)

2.2 FTE(#&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

147

4 AT L =3

B 7% 3 2% BT =7
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE2019F 1231 H 1F F /&

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

24

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as executive directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") throughout the year,
which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

income statement within “finance costs — net”

consolidated income statement within “other (losses)/gains-net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B B 7S ) R B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

TEETHRERBE(A)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 TBE -IRRFZ®E
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, TEE THESE(EEIEZR
are stated at historical cost less depreciation and provision for HN) 3% FE Sb AR AN Rk 3T B N ORU B ES 1R
impairment loss, if any. Historical cost includes the expenditure that is BE(WE)AER - FEL KA HE
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. BEZZSBEEERLHNAX -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or BEKEAKREERAEANER
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is HIREZIBE A BR R KEER
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will W M EB KRR SR 2
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. B IeEEEENKRBESE
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other RE—EHEBEEMKRER) -
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income EEBRTHNREMED KR ILRE
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. Re-MBEEMBEEREELN

BB RNIEBERS I -
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate WrE R A AT 85T AT {E B F 5
their costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as BERANZERED BE LT %
follows: BENE :
Years
FE
Right-of-use assets — building and facilities 1to 15 years
TREEE —BFERiE 12154
Right-of-use assets — machinery and equipment 1 to 15 years
EREEE — BENRE 12154
Buildings and facilities 2 to 30 years
BF KRR 2E30%
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
e K a6 3E104F
Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years
k) S5ZE8F
Electronic equipment 3 years
BEFEE 3F
Other equipment 2 to 5 years
H iR 2E5%
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 148
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& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

2

149

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
provision for impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition as well as interest expenses during the
periods of construction and installation. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated

above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other
(losses)/gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned and no
individual land ownership exists. Land use rights are recognised
as right-of-use assets (see Note 2.22). The consideration paid for
such rights are stated at cost less accumulative amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use rights are amortised
over the lease period of 50 years using straight-line method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represented the purchased computer software which
are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the
specific software. These costs are amortised over periods ranging from
3 to 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.8

Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.

The Group's investment properties comprise buildings located in the
PRC, which is measured initially at their costs, including the related
transaction costs and borrowing costs, where appropriate.

After initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the properties. The building portion of investment
properties is depreciated over their estimate useful lives of 25 or 30
years.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An investment property shall be derecognised on disposal or when
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Gains or losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of an investment property shall
be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and shall be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period of the retirement or
disposal.

B 0F B 5 HR R MY R

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

151

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI"”), or through
profit or loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d) 210 MEE (&)
2.10.1 Classification (Cont’d) 2101 7 2 (48)
See Note 19 for details of each type of financial assets. EHRSENEMEENT

15 w2 EME19-

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its EEEEREEEMNERE
business model for managing those assets changes. NEEF R  AEESH

BRKREETESR -

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition 21028 R RAR UL BER
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are BHAABERLIENSR
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group BERXHBER - X5H
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are RENEEALEEERHE
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the EEMBE - ZHBMERE
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the ERSREMNENE 2 85
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of PEE BASEELER
ownership. TEMEEMBELETH

BORBRIRMN - SREE
BIAR IEHERR -

2.10.3 Measurement 21035 £
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its HR I BERAAREE
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value STEEEEFHTABZNS
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly MEE  AEEUHEARE
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction BENLrEZERBRERSZ
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit HEMEENRZFERET
or loss. TIAHER - AR BERT

EREEHFABENSH
BEMRBNRZERFAR

Ny
ZS o
m

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in HRBERARNITELAR
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are CREE  AEBHEES
solely payment of principal and interest. REZEHEBEeRESLER
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THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 152
2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A <ZAr =+ 2
& OF B 75 ¥ 3R B 7E
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2 F2019F 12431 H 1 FJZ

2

153

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.10.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
(losses)/gains — net together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.10.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other (losses)/gains — net” and “net impairment losses
on financial assets”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.10.3 Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont’d)

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in the consolidated income statement within “other
(losses)/gains-net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other (losses)/gains in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREHME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d) 210 MEE (&)
2.10.4 Impairment 2.10.4 & 15

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires to recognise the lifetime
expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to its recognised amount is recognised in profit
or loss, as an impairment loss or a reversal of an impairment
loss.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the trade receivables.
Expected credit losses on trade receivables are calculated
by using the provision matrix approach. Trade receivables
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms, and assessed
collectively or individually for likelihood of recovery. The
provision matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are also
subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified

impairment loss was immaterial.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.10.4 Impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

Trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are written off (either partially or in full) when

there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

2.11 Financial liabilities
(a) Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
amortised cost. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference
between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
other financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end

of the reporting period.

See Note 19 for details of each type of financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.11 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
(b) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See Note 2.10.3 for further information about the Group’s accounting
policies for trade and other receivables.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statements, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and financial
institutions and readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods, construction or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.11 for further information about the
Group's accounting policies for trade and other payables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.18 Borrowings

TEETHRERBE(A)

2188 ®

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

See Note 2.11 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for borrowings.

2.19 Borrowings cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, which will be capitalised, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that

it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement
of financial position date in the areas where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if deferred income
tax liabilities arise from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligation

The full-time employees of the Group in the PRC are covered
by the government-sponsored defined contribution pension
plans under which the employees are entitled to a monthly
pension based on certain formulas. The relevant government
agencies are responsible for the pension liability to these retired
employees. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
pension plans. Under these plans, the Group has no obligation
for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made and
contributions to these plans are included in profit or loss as
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Housing fund, medical insurance and other

social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing fund, medical
insurance and other employee social insurance plans. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited

to the contributions payable in each period.

(c) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present contractual or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimation of the obligation can be made.

2.22 Leases

The Group leases various property, plant and equipment and land use
rights for the production of ready-mixed concrete. Properties, plants
and equipment and land use rights leases are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 15 years and 50 years respectively. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants,

but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Property, plant and equipment and land use right leases are
recognised as right-of-use assets and the corresponding liabilities at
the date of which the respective leased asset is available for use by
the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

163 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

2

TEETHRERBE(A)

221ETIEA(E)

(b) EEAEE  BRIR
B2 R R b #t & 1R B2
AEBERENEEEES
HERERHEEAES -
BERRBRRAESLS
(REQE 8 - AEEEAER
BETAM—ELHI (TR
BEB)AZERSHR -
AEBRREESRBNE
ERRAE G — HRIfEH

4,
A °

(c) TEAL#ER
EAREEERRERIET
EERBARERAETE
B BREBEAR FS
5B - RUTESRTEAT M AR
RIgHERA—HARE -

2221 €&

AEBAEAERHBERLTER
HETZEBEAHE ITK R
AR+ 4 8 R DA R EE TR PR B
T TEBE  IHRREZHE UK
THERENEERBED RS
E15FERS0OFZEEHR - HE
GROBIGE LBEEETR
AR R AR - TH & 15 3 3 OR h0
ERGER REEEETERE
fE R o

RERAEEERNHAELEER
BWE#RAR TBE ITHRER
BAR L EREEERERR
HEERBEEENHERAE &
FSHENKBEEABMRER N
ZHETHE BMEBREMRE
At AR ARRETE B
NS X BEE EREFE
B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.22 Leases (Cont’d)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

3 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

3 amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees,

3 the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREHME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Leases (Cont’d) 2220 & (&)

165

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

3 where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of less than 12

months.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREHME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Leases (Cont’d) 2220 & (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

3 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

3 any initial direct costs, and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
properties and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in other income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term (Note 5.3). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of
financial position based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

EREEERKRAGE B

e HEAEBENVNKIESR

o  HEHEHMIE AR ZAT A
WA E MR U R WA
ERE

s VIHREKER UK

o ERHEA -

EREEE-—REEENERS
mEAEHRERENRERNR
BERERFRITE - WAKESE
BEETEBERE  AESENE
ENERSaHARANEEREE
EFHRTE -

BREBEBREEZEHHEEMM
EREBEEEZHENMNR &
NEREREEANERRER -
RHMAEAEN T EE121E A
WEE - EEEEERRBITREM
ANCR N

AEBEREBEAKIHEEHE
ERACEHERANRERERER
AEMUYA (FF5E5.3) - BERE
EHEMBENNIRER E R
ABHMBEENREESE  WAEMR
EHNRRERERABRNE
RERLSER MEEERAEMN
BHEEEBERTITR - AKE
RETHOBEELER B EF
HEREBAARAENEEN S
B TR MR -

HesStEREREIRGBRAR 166
2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A <ZAr =+ 2
& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

2

167

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as finance costs.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and its existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the Group’s
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

2

TEETHRERBE(A)

23EBRAEERE

EAEEEEHANEMHMEL
BEMNERAHEE - RAT8E
FERERNRENGEEER
REeRERAEMTR - E5R
BER BEHEHERMERZREE
HER BHEFSEHERL
SIRMBTHENR -BETEH
ARG 2 R TER L -

WMEZBRBUEY  EFE2ES
HRBERREO AN - BIA]
RIFBEENRDERE R - &
ER—EBERNMESMEMN—
1875 B 18 B8 & B IR B9 A B
BAK - DA RERAE

EHRBHAAN RIZRIFRF A
HEEHEBHNXHRETE %
MR BRE B 5 5 R R(E
MEREBEKESRROFMG -5
& I ] 3 2 1M 48 00 A9 A FE AR S
MBER -

ZERBEBIDRBESHMEEDN
BEEME HEEMURAEE R
HEZIBEFAEE L T2 EHNHT
ABAARRE M 2B EET
E-SARBETANEERNBE
EHMEENBREEME Bl
B B BIREY R REIE AR
BEAUSEHMAEEANSRE &
bt T HER ©

FERBIARERERERAE
B BHRERD - BEEERRH
AREMELEZBUBRHEKR AT
BECRXBRERERER SR
e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B B 7S ) R B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H 1k F /2

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESHHREHME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Revenue recognition

224 W AFERR

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the goods or services
is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods

and services may be transferred overtime or at a point in time.

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring control of the promised goods or services to a customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be collected
in exchange for those goods or services. The revenue recognition of
the Group is determined through the following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

(i) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

(i) Determination of the transaction price;

(iv)  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract;

(v)  Recognition of revenue when, or as, a performance obligation is
satisfied.

At contract inception, it is performed that the assessment and the
identification of a performance obligation for each promise to transfer
to the customer a product or a service (or bundle of products or
services) that is distinct. To identify the performance obligations, the
Group consider all the products and services promised in the contract
with the customer based on the Group's customary business practices,
published policies, or specific statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

The Group determines whether control of a product or a service is
transferred to a customer over time or at a point in time based on
the analysis of the following three criteria. Revenue is recognised over
time if any of such criteria are met that the Group:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

3 creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group perform; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use of the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to request the
customer for payment for performance completed to date.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time if none of the
above criteria for satisfying a performance obligation over time are

met.

The Group recognises costs incurred in obtaining contracts with
customers that are directly associated with the contracts as contract
costs if those costs are expected to be recoverable. The contract costs
are amortised on a basis consistent with the pattern of the transfer
of the goods or services to which the asset relates. As a practical
expedient, the Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract as profit or loss when incurred as the amortisation period of
the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year

or less.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to render the services to
a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
The application of the Group’s revenue recognition policies and a

description of the principal activities, organized by segment, from

which the Group generate its revenue, are presented below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells ready-mixed concrete,
aggregates, and polycarboxylic admixtures to customers in the
Yunnan Province of the PRC. Customers include distributors,
constructors and property development companies. Revenue
from sales of goods is recognised when control of the products
are transferred at a point in time to its customers, that is when
the products are delivered and accepted by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

All of the revenue is recognised at the point in time when the
control of goods is transferred to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Quality and technology management services
The Group provides quality and technology management
services to other ready-mixed concrete manufacturers. Revenue
from quality and technology management services is recognised
based on the units of ready-mixed concrete produced by the
customers at a point in time.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grants from the government
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income
and are credited to consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets. Note 5.3 provides
further information on the accounting policies of the Group for
government grants.

2.26 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.

When the future economic benefits become apparent as a project
progresses into the development stage the costs incurred on
development projects which satisfy the criteria of capitalisation
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved products) are
capitalised as intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled
and tests for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria of capitalisation are
recognised as expenses as incurred.

Development costs previously recognised as expenses are not
recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised development
costs are amortised from the point at which the assets are ready for
use on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognised
as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity
holders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, commodity price risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group currently does
not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk

exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk relates
principally to its cash and cash equivalents denominated
primarily in Hong Kong dollar (“"HKD").

As at December 31, 2019, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against HKD with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year ended
December 31, 2019 would have been approximately
RMB28,101,000 higher/lower (2018: Nil) respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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FINANCIAL

3.1 Financial

RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
risk factors (Cont’d)

(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its
cash and cash equivalents, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial
assets and liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents and bank borrowings have been
disclosed in Note 25 and Note 32 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2019, if interest rates on cash and
cash equivalents and bank borrowings had been 10%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit after income tax for the year would have been
approximately RMB285,000 (December 31, 2018:
RMB336,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower net interest income/expense being recognised/
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

R ERE (&)
31 WXRAKREZE (&)
(b) 1=/ E

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash balances, trade receivables, and other receivables included
in the consolidated financial statements represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The objective of the Group’s measures to manage credit
risk is to control potential exposure to recoverability problem.

The majority of the cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash balances, were deposited in the banks in the PRC and
Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Financial
Management Company Limited (“YCIH Financial Company”),
a related company of the Group, which the directors of the
Company believe are of high credit quality. Management
believes these financial institutions are reputable and there is no
significant credit risk of losses on such assets.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macro economic data including the growth rate of
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP") and the growth rate of
China’s construction industry.

(i)  Trade receivables

ERRBRRAZ LRSS
BY  ZXRHRSERRE
W BR KA B B UL SR © AN
SEEREARRNE R
B &2 B PR A] [m 45 1 P R Y
BERR -

BABDBESRASFTEY
VA Ko 52 PR ) 3R & 45 R T0 17 TR
ERRPEORITARE
MEREEVBAERAA
(M2EBHAE])(BERE
BB AR BEARFE
ERRHEGFEERRR) -
EEERE  ZESREE
EERY  REEEBEN
ERRBRILTEX -

AEE BB RE ARG
PR S 183 2 R R R R 2R A P
HERRR - St EREMER
BEEXR  AEEREER
RBFERI2EELBERE
I 3 A BE M R A B B
HEREETEBENEERLE
ERXRPEERERER

200 % -

() [EW IR

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide NE B R B
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits LRI FEIRM
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all {EF AT E2EHER
trade receivables from third parties and related parties. BX AEMEE=

77 K B EE 77 8 FE WUAR

RERBEFEDRD
TEHR R B -

Rixem Mt RRELIROBRAR 174

2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A <ZAr =+ 2
& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

3

175

FINANCIAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

To measure the expected credit losses of trade
receivables, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing days,
and assessed collectively or individually for likelihood
of recovery. The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macro economic factors affecting
the ability of the debtors to settle the receivables. As
at December 31, 2019, the expected loss rate for trade
receivables from YCIH Group is around 0.5%, with a
carrying amount of RMB1,602,221,000 (December 31,
2018: RMB1,727,083,000) and the allowance provision of
RMB8,012,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB8,635,000). The
expected loss rate for the remaining trade receivables as
at December 31, 2019 is determined as follows:
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables (Cont’d)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 0 B 75 ok MY T
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

3 BXEEKREREE)
31 WXRAKREZE (&)
(b) =B (&)
() JFEWERZ (&)

Upto1 1t02 2t03 3tod 4to5 Over 5
year years years years years years Total
December 31, 2019 R20195128318 -EHR  -EZE ZEZf ZEQME MERE EENE @3
Collectively assessed: CLEa
Expected loss rate ]k 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 5%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAEARETT) 651,101 125,404 60,366 16,594 8,332 4421 866,218
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BEEB(ARETT) (6511)  (12,540)  (12073)  (4978)  (4166)  (3,537)  (43,805)
644,590 112,864 48,293 11,616 4,166 884 822,413
Individually assessed: BB
Expected loss rate BHER% - - - - 100% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ERAENRE ) - - - - 2,500 917 3417
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BEEE(ARETT) - - - - (2,500) (017) (3417
644,590 112,864 48,293 11,616 4,166 884 822,413
Upto 1 Tto2 2103 3to4 4105 Over 5
year years years years years years Tota
December 31, 2018 R2018%12A31R —EHR -Z-F ZEZf ZZMF MWERE RENE &5t
Collectively assessed: AT
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 5%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EREENRET) 597,83 101,818 38,112 12,48 13436 2405 765,855
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BEEBE(ARETT) (5978)  (10,182) (7,622) (3,609) (6,718) (1924)  (36,033)
591,858 91,636 30,490 8,639 6,718 431 729,822
Individually assessed: A
Expected loss rate EHEEX = = = 100% 100% = 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEEE(ARETT) = = = 2,500 917 — 3417
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BEEEARETT) = = (2,500 (917) = (3417)
591,858 91,636 30,490 8,639 6,718 481 729,822
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Trade receivables (Cont’d)
The provision for trade receivables as at De
2019, and reconciles to the opening loss all
that provision as follows:

tements

3 BXERARKRE

(&)

31 WXRAKREZE (&)

(b) 1=
(1)

cember 31,
owance for

FE Bz (AF)

JEWBR (&)
7N £ [ 5 e Uk AR FR
2019412 A 31 B &
HARBABEARZ
HyBREE A
LU

Provision for
trade receivables

R RE

RMB’000

AR®T R

As at January 1, 2018 201841 A1 H 36,810
Provision for impairment of trade REFFTEROERRTIEREE

receivables recognised in profit or loss #9320 (Bt 5E22(b))

(Note 22 (b)) 11,287
Written-off during the year as uncollectible 7% 4 & % 8 &9 £ 5% 4 [0 /) JiE U 5Kk (12)
As at December 31, 2018 M2018%F12831H 48,085
Provision for impairment of trade REE T8 0 E W AR FIE KB B

receivables recognised in profit or loss #9320 (Bt 5E22(b))

(Note 22 (b)) 7,452
Written-off during the year as uncollectible 78 4F & #% 4 79 4 5% U [@ 9 i U 3k (303)
As at December 31, 2019 2019512 A31H 55,234

For the year ended December 31, 2019, th
for loss allowances were recognised in the ¢

e provision
onsolidated

income statement in “net impairment losses on financial

assets” in relation to impaired trade receivables.

As at December 31, 2019, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables were approximately
and RMB2,471,856,000 (December 31, 2018:
RMB2,496,355,000), and thus the maximum exposure

to loss was RMB2,471,856,000 December
RMB2,496,355,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Other receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

The Group uses four categories for other receivables,
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision
is determined for each of those categories.

B 0F B 5 HR R MY R

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i) Other receivables (Cont’d)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
5l

Group definition of category

FEBSHHRENES

R ERE (&)
31 WXRAKREZE (&)
(b) Z/HEE (&)
(i) HMENKF(E)
B IE SR KB
BRER BB
M

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

BRRREABABENEE

Performing

Underperforming

B

Non-performing

Write-off

%34

Customers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows

WEBRREEGENFREARRS

[k

P
37x

Vil

fein

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayment are
more than 30 days past due

EERRBZFENNERFRE G5 E
R,/ SAESERNBEBEBE30XR - AIRER
EERBRBEELM -

Customers has difficulties in making full
payment despite numerous reminders;
and if interest and/or principal
repayments are 90 days past due

BESERE TEFDAERBEXNZR
FE R/ A ENAHIOKX -

There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery

& R R [

12 months expected losses Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

NREAWIEEER - HRERFEPE
REAZAMEE  FEBEENHE
TEEF B BET 2

Lifetime expected losses

EHFEHEX

Lifetime expected losses

2HEHEX

Asset is written off

ZHEE
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Other receivables (Cont'd)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of other receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

To measure the expected credit losses of other
receivables, other receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing days,
and assessed collectively or individually for likelihood of
recovery. As at December 31, 2019, other receivables
from YCIH Group were performing, the expected loss rate
is around 0.5% (2018: 0.5%) with a carrying amount
of RMB3,891,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB2,302,000),
and the allowance provision was RMB19,000 (December
31, 2018: RMB12,000). As at December 31, 2019,
deposits were performing with a carrying amount of
RMB12,375,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB8,124,000),
and the impact of the expected loss rate for deposits is
assessed to be insignificant. The expected loss rate for
the remaining other receivables as at December 31, 2019
and 2018 is determined as follows:

i
E|v
e

R ERE (&)
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

3

181

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3 UHEREEE)
3.1 KEREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd) (b) =EHEE (&)
(i) Other receivables (Cont’d) (i) BEN (E)
Upto1 1t02 2t03 3tod 4to5 Over 5
year years years years years years Total
December 31, 2019 R20195128318 -EHR  -EZE ZEZf ZEQME MERE EENE @3
Expected loss rate BRERBAER 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 3%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BESR(ARETT) 1,092 1,050 4,185 1,020 - 2,000 9,347
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BXEBE(ARETT) (1) (105) (837) (306) - (16000 (2,859)
1,081 945 3,348 714 — 400 6,488
Upto 1 Tto2 2103 3to4 4105 Over 5
year years years years years years Total
December 31, 2018 R2018E12A31A —ENR -EZfF ZE=f =E@F M@ERE AENE @zt
Expected loss rate BRERAXE 1% 10% 20% 30% 50% 80% 14%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEAEARETT) 3,763 7,430 1,501 28 2,000 = 14,922
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BAEEARETT) (39) (7143) (300 (68 (1,000 - (2,149)
3,725 6,687 1,201 160 1,000 — 12,773

Since the actual loss rates for each type of the other

receivables and the adjusts for forward looking

macroeconomic data did not have significant change

during the year, the directors of the Company consider

that the change in the expected credit loss rate for

provision matrix is insignificant throughout the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i) Other receivables (Cont’d)

A zir =+ EVa
& OF B 75 5 3R M 5
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

MBREEREE)
31 MBEBEZEE)
(b) EHEE (&)
(i) EAEWK(E)
Provision for
other receivables

Hih R R E RS

RMB’000

AR® T

As at January 1, 2018 M2018F1A1H 1,618
Provision for impairment of other NEE T8 0 H th B RIB R BB

receivables recognised in profit or loss #9382 hn (Kt 5223(b))

(Note 23 (b)) 583
As at December 31, 2018 M2018F12A31H 2,201
Provision for impairment of other NFE T8 1 FE GRIB KB B

receivables recognised in profit or loss &9 38 hn (K 5223(b))

(Note 23 (b)) 677
As at December 31, 2019 72019412 A31H 2,878

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the provision for loss allowances were recognised in
the consolidated income statement in “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in relation to impaired other
receivables.

As at December 31, 2019, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately RMB25,614,000 (December
31, 2018: RMB25,348,000), and thus the maximum
exposure to loss was approximately RMB25,614,000
(December 31, 2018: RMB25,348,000).

B E£2019F 12 A 31
BLLFE  HERE
B H 8 UK R G B Y
BREBEERAHNHE
xTHBAREHE
EFREBE] -

M 2019 F 12 A 31
B - H b U R
HEIBOEARE
25,614,000 7T(2018
F12A8318 : AR
# 25,348,000 JT)
P T B A B K IE K
B B 5 B & A R
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25,348,0007T) °
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3

183

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain sufficient cash and sources
of funding through committed credit facility and maintain
flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines.
To manage the liquidity risk, management monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn
banking facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows. All the borrowings are in compliance
with relevant covenant terms if any and the Group expected to
fund the future cash flow needs through internally generated
cash flows from operations and borrowings from financial

institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that
will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Please refer to Note 32 for undrawn bank borrowings facilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

A Zir =+ R
& OF B 75 5 3R M 5
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

3 BKRKMER(E)

31 WXRAKREZE (&)
(c) ZEMHREE &)

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years 5 years Total
-EH0R -E2F —EIEf BENE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR%TR AR%T R ARETR ARETR
As at December 31, 2019 R2019%12A31A
Lease liabilities HEAE 15,000 3,174 8,467 8,562 35,203
Financial liabilities included in JE 1 BR AR R LAt B 1 30 2,039,042 - — - 2,039,042
trade and other payables
Borrowings & 115,675 — — — 115,675
2,169,717 3,174 8,467 8,562 2,189,920
As at December 31, 2018 #2018%12A31A
Lease liabilities HEBE 24,334 8,100 4,995 6,618 44,047
Financial liabilities included in FE T BR 3R R A B A 3K 1,886,551 = = = 1,886,551
trade and other payables
Borrowings B 84,479 = = = 84,479
1,995,364 8,100 4,995 6,618 2,015,077
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 184
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3 MBERERGE)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEBRER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to AEBHEAEERBER  2RE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in EBEEERE  UARERM
order to provide returns for equity holders. The Group manages its 5] R 70 A H T 25 B R & R AR
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes RNH#FRENEREREIN
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital KRB ARKA o BT s AR
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BAGZE AEBAkAEX
equity holders, return capital to equity holders, issue new shares or HFREMRBHRE  MRFRER
sell assets to reduce debt. BEX EOIHRIEEEEIN
AR ET -
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital HERNEMAR—F  XEEF
on basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts AEARBBHLRERAEEAR-
divided by total capital. Net cash is calculated as below. Total capital It Eb R IR BRF B &R A B E RE
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of H - FIBSAENT - BREXRE
financial position plus net debts. [Hem | (ma M BARRERAT])
mEaLE -
As at December 31, 2019, total borrowings are much lower than M2019F 128318 - BEFTREK
cash and cash equivalents, accordingly, management of the Group RAESLBELFEEY  BWAEHR
considers the relevant risk is not significant. EEEZAAEBRRBRIITNEKX
As at December 31,
M®12A31H

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARETF T

Total borrowings (Note 32) 48 15 2 (M 3E32) 114,618 80,000
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 29) S & B (RE29) 28,733 37,220
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25)  Ji : IR & KIR & S B (M :E25) (640,009) (240,026)
Less: Restricted cash (Note 24) B R &R & (M 3E24) (20,772) (15,680)
Net cash (Note 34(b)) JHIB & (B 5E34(b)) (517,430) (138,486)
Total equity R 1,228,348 954,997

Total capital 48 & 7N 710,918 816,511

Gearing ratio AXRBELE N/AT & A N/A i A

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the gearing ratio is not

applicable due to net cash position.

185 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 5 HR R MY R

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a)

#H=z20

Bt % L B2

19F 12431 H IF F /&

EE(E)

AR EEME

The Group adopts the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial (@ AEERRABERMERELE
instruments that are measured in the consolidated statement BIE75R (BTN EES
of financial position at fair value, which requires disclosure of HUBRARPUARLBE
fair value measurements by level of the following fair value FrENERI AR AAEE
measurement hierarchy: HEEBFEUTERX

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . EREEXEELE
assets or liabilities (level 1); BB 5 ) B OCR&

AE)(F1E)

. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for o BRTEIEBMBEN
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or MEIN  ZEENE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and (ELzoE: %30 R =ik )

A A REEEH
(B ) s 5 (BNR
BE®K)(E2E)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on U BEMBEILIEKE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) Al B R T I5 BIE A &
(level 3). A (BIZER B8 A)

(£3[E) -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at by AEBUAALBEHENSE

fair value. BEEBRE

Relationship of
Fair value at  Fair Significant unobservable
December 31,2019  value Valuation technique and unobservable inputs to fair
Financial assets RMB’000 hierarchy key inputs input(s) value
R2019%12A31H
MWAREE 2LAEE MFERGRIE EXFABE TABREBAEN

SREE ARBTT EH BAER WAEH BARBEENBEEZ

Note receivables at 137,202 Level 3 Discounted cash flow Expected future The higher the
aveldl with future cash flows cash flow, future cash

that are estimated discount rates flow, the higher
based on expected that correspond the fair value

recoverable amounts, to the expected discount rate,

discounted at rates that risk level. the higher the
reflect management's fair value.

best estimation of the

expected risk level.

NAnEEFER 137202 %3E ERRASR - ARFLR ARBEHALR X ARELREX
HEHHAEM BB AREEERERE R B 78 BB L B ARBEEMEK:
S E W BB EMat B2 R KA IKERM IR E TREH)
B ETHR - AREBEEEX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2 F2019F 12431 H 1 FJZ

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3 MBERERGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AREEM(E)
()  Fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at (0 LESBRKAFENSHEE
amortised cost. MeMBaBENAIREE
The fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities LTERMEENERBED
approximate their carrying amounts: AREBEEUNEEREE
B :
. Trade receivables; U JE W BR 3R
. Other receivables; o HMEHKRK
. Restricted cash; e XRHIRS
. Cash and cash equivalents; e HeRHALZEWY:
. Lease liabilities; e MEAHE:
. Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables; e SREESFEENMNE
and R E A AR BA
54
. Borrowings. o &R
The fair values of non-current lease liabilities are estimated by FERBDEEABENANEE
discounting the future cash flows at the current market rate AARSEAI AR ESES
available to the Group for similar financial instruments. BT A& & Fi 5 F K 5 R

KR RETHREH -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESE AT RAE
JUDGEMENTS
4.1 Critical accounting estimates 4.1 EEEFEE
Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical M A B & WA - IR
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events Bl AN H At B =T AT
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. B BEEEBEBATHEEYER

REMFEIBIRA -

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. REBERREL A FERF o
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal G gsttatmEESR R
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have THEBRAERER - RAKE
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying BRTEMBFENEENAE
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are BRREEE L E R FAE /A F A
addressed below. BRAWAT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B B 7S ) R B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Cont‘d)

(a)

(b)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for the
Group's property, plant and equipment with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values may differ
from estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation charges in future periods.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different areas in
the PRC. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are
transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred income tax assets and taxation charges in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

B E2019F 1231 H1FFE

4 EEREMEFRHE(F

4.1 EEEFH L (F)

(a)

(b)

TEHE IBRRE
HY 78 &1 A € F F IR &
T 64 18 15
AEEEREETRTD
E ITHRREFESTEA
R - RBEEREBTE
BA - AW RREAE
5 08 P 5 B A TR
AL 2 (5t IR
1B - 776 A 4 IR ERSE AT
fHEEER  AEEES
BEAHERRA - XK RE
ot 5 1 AT 4B % o SR
M RHOR - EHE A
£ IR T 4 8 4t 5 T 62 P 6 R
AR - BB (AR 7N A B
EE RBEETR A%
7 B 9 88 4 A L
fE METEHRED -

FEARBMIAER
A e

EHRELFZH
N AN T B R &
WER  EEBEEEAEE
ERNATEREER - FE
HEE - EREEKRAT
LR G M EFTH kTR
MEETMETETH o 1
HEEHNSEFBERRER
BYZENEETR - 1E
EHEEYEFIHEETH
BEFERMEEMESHE
EMAE-

=B TR JE TR K 2R A AR A
RS A TR e R
BER BEREHEES
WHER - EFRM 2 &SRB R
EMETEEZRE  AIZER
e M ET R 2 B A
FEBELEMFHREEENRA
XHHITER o

ETHERGESERERIKROBR QA 188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Cont‘d)

5

189

(c)

Recoverability of trade receivables

The Group grouped trade receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics, ageing days and applied simplified approach,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the trade receivables. Management
assessed the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables
using the risk parameters including exposure default and
expected credit loss rate, which is determined based on
probabilities of default and default rates.

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance is determined based
on past settlement profiles and the observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted with current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors that affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. In assessing forward-
looking information, the Group considers factors including
economic policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and

changes in customers’ conditions.

SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND
OTHER INCOME

5.1 Operating segment information
Entity-wide disclosures
The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are

mainly derived from the research, development production and sale

of ready-mixed concrete and related products, which is regarded as

a single reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way

in which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior

management for purposes of resource arrangement and performance

assessment. In addition, all the assets employed by the Group are

located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment information

by profit, asset and liability is presented, other than the entity-wide

disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND 5 oHER - Kk=ZRHEAM
OTHER INCOME (Cont'd) L ONE- P,
5.1 Operating segment information (Cont’d) 51 RESHBER (&)
Geographical information 1 B 25 R
All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in AEEMAREEREMAFE
Mainland China, and all of the Group’s external customers and non- AR - B A% B 2 2030
current assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no segment BERIIEGREEEMNDR -
information by geographical segment is presented. b WERME S HE2HRO D F
5.2 Revenue 5.2 WA

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Sales of ready-mixed concrete HEEHRRL 3,542,345 3,294,261
Sales of polycarboxylic admixtures 5 B4 B A1 hn A 36,284 38,336
Sales of aggregates HEDAH 13,440 15,027
Quality and technology management service EE R ERRS 16,006 9,493
3,608,075 3,357,117
(a) The Group is principally engaged in research, development, (a) AEBMEEREEHRREL
production and sale of ready-mixed concrete and related RIEMEROFE - £E -
products and providing quality and technology management HE MR o
service.
The Group’s most senior executive management regularly AEENRSRITHERA
review their consolidated financial information to assess the STEHBZHESHUBER
performance and make resource allocation decisions. NEHERBARIELE RS B
R o
All of the revenue is recognised at the point in time when the PrE M AR & T e
control of goods is transferred to the customers. BEEPRER o
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND 5 oHER - WakHEM
OTHER INCOME (Cont'd) WA (&)
5.2 Revenue (Cont’d) 5.2 WA(#E)
(b) Revenue from major customers is set out below: (b) EFFHRAHIMT :

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARETT

Group A £EA 2,522,396 2,459,814

Group B £EB 241,933 134,835

Group C £ EC 84,518 88,567
2,848,847 2,683,216
The customer portfolio of the Group is concentrated, which is REEBNEFHEGES &
consistent with the industry practice. Group A represents YCIH ETEED - EEARTE
Group (Note 36(b)). If major customers substantially defaults in 2 % & B (M 52 36(b)) °
payment or terminates the business relationship with the Group, WEBRPREZELONLL
it could materially affect the Group’s financial position and BEAEENEKHER  BIE
results of operations. FEHAEBENP MR KL

BEBEENEATE -

(c) Contract liabilities (c) SHEE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related RNEE D HERIA T WA
contract liabilities: WeRAaRE:

As at December 31,

A12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETT

Contract liabilities related to sales of B ETENORR L
ready-mixed concrete FENERAER 14,130 48,146
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND 5 oWMER - WmKkHA

OTHER INCOME (Cont’d) WA (&)

5.2 Revenue (Cont’d) 5.2 WA (&)

(c) Contract liabilities (Cont’d) (c) BlHEE(#E)
() Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities () ®REERAEEH
ORI @N

The following table shows the amount of the revenue TR FE
recognised in the respective year related to carried- ROELEBEERAEE
forward contract liabilities BB ASEE -

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Revenue recognised that was included AAFNARABEESRF

in the contract liabilities balance at FIT B 3R B9 UL A
the beginning of the year
— sales of ready-mixed concrete — HETEHIREL 45,570 38,313
As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price A 40 B8 B B 7 g S
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed, Al 1558 T BT 2t
because the contracts have an original expected duration FoBERERMRE
of one year or less. MEHRR —FHMN
T W EEE S B
ERERBHNERK
RGHEE -

(i) Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received (i) EEBEEREERR
from customers for products that have not yet been NFEFPERMAE
delivered to the customers. As at December 31, 2019 and P UER B B FRIE o
2018, the contract liabilities mainly included the advanced M20194 12 A31H
payments received from related-party customers for sales LA K% 2018 € 12 A 31
of ready-mixed concrete. H 6RAEBEXrER

EHREEEHRRE LT
i [A) B Bk 75 %5 = W ER

B B e

EZHERgEeaHERREIBRMDER R A 192
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5

6

193

SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUE AND 5 oHER - Kk=ZRHEAM
OTHER INCOME (Cont’d) WA (&)
5.3 Other income 5.3 Hftl &=
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARKETT
Government grants (Note (a)) R T 78 Bh (B 3E(a)) 1,718 3,205
Rental income el A 539 1,329
Labour service income B ITRBBA — 687
2,257 5,221
(@)  Government grants mainly represent grants received from the (a) IR EZE I G BT
PRC government authorities for subsidising the Group’s general BEEENAUSHAESR
operation, research and development activities. There are no W—RMREB KA EFHNM®
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these Bh o 57 55 6 B 0 4 B A (e
grants. The Group did not benefit directly from any other forms ARG S A A =
of government assistance. H o AEBTEEEZAH
o BB ATHE B ©
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 6 Hit(B\X) FE— B8

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, plant and

HETBE - TREXH

equipment (&), 58 (144) 550
Others E A (1,066) 264
(1.210) 814
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ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEHMESENER

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Raw materials and purchased goods consumed ERNRMERMES® 2,334,373 2,171,454
Transportation expenses BERAX 273,564 255,700
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) B T 48 7B & (Bt 5E8) 274,447 253,904
Outsourcing costs SN R X 156,629 133,399
Lease expenses HERX 88,433 91,813
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 13(a)) b {5 PR A 8
(Bt 3E13(a)) 500 500

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment T8E - ITHELEBTE

(Note 14(a)) (P 5% 14(a)) 104,302 114,705
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 15) HKEHEHERTE

(Bt 5E15) 213 213

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16(a)) A EEE (W 16@)) 94 34
Net impairment losses on trade receivables JE YRR FOF R E 1B R

(Note 22(b)) (Ff 5£22(b)) 7,452 11,287
Net impairment losses on other receivables Hh e FOF R E B K

(Note 23(b)) (P 5 23(b)) 677 583
Taxes and levies HERHE 20,265 19,012
Utilities and electricity NAEEREE 13,198 14,431
Maintenance expenses HIERX 10,120 10,143
Office expenses NS 5,638 6,959
Travelling expenses ERAX 5,829 6,858
Auditors’ remuneration %2R0 B & 4,100 1,244
Listing expenses WX 3,154 280
Miscellaneous HibFfA X 52,935 45,960
Total cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative HEKRAN - HEBAM

expenses and net impairment losses on financial THRERREREE

assets R E R KA 3,355,923 3,138,479
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8
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS)

BIEMNEAX (BREER

—_
=

=

REEEME)

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARB TR ARETF T

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEREL 194,567 188,702

Contributions to pension plans (Note (a)) IR KA B4 3R (B 5E(a)) 28,303 22,646
Housing fund, medical insurance and other social FTEAES  BERBRRK

insurance (Note (b)) H o4 & R B (Kt 5E(b)) 33,319 26,552

Other benefits H o 48 F| 18,258 16,004

274,447 253,904

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement schemes for its employees in
the PRC. The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to the
schemes at 8% of the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonus, and subject to maximum caps), while the
Group contributes 16% to 19% of such relevant expenses, subject to
certain ceiling and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for the entire post-
retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and
other employee social insurance plan. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on approximately 25% of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each period.
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9 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 9 EEREREEEFTMH
EMOLUMENTS
(a)  Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (@) EZEERFTETHAEFHMN
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments are set out as follows: FEENTETHRAERTANRE
HENHFMEZ AT
Employer's contribution to
EXfEHUATHE
Discretionary Benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses scheme Others Total
he Hé mERL Ay At b

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:

Year ended December 31, 2019 HEZWVENANBLERE

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ma Minchao (5551i8) it Gt - 209 720 87 18 1,034
Mr. Rao Ye (%) (i) B8 5 (i) - 199 495 87 2 783
Mr. Lu Jianfeng (R &152)v) B #l8() - 192 516 87 10 805
Ms. Hu Zhurong (£3%%) BRERt - 209 3N 87 31 699

Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. He Jiangiang ([23%) WERLE - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Guangcan (313¢12) Yits - - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES

Mr. Yu Dingming (F7%) (i) T2 9 5 (i) 9% - - - - 9
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas (£ (vi) TEMEEV) 29 - - - - 29
Mr. Li Hongkun (F4T38) (vil) AR % (i) 19 - - - - 19
Supervisors Bz

Ms. Li Yan (35) FERT - - - - - -
Mr. Chang Hongbing (F4L5) BURGE - - - - - -
Mr. Guo Huan (%) Bl - 132 "2 81 60 385
Ms. Li Na (Z4B) (vii T L L (i) - 132 55 79 10 276
Mr. Wu Xinhe (R377) (vii) R 52 A (vii) — — — — — —

144 1,073 2,270 508 131 4,126
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9
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

9 %%&E%&%EE%F@H

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Cont’d) (@) EZERTEBITHRABHFHE)
Employer's contribution to
EXELANTHRR
Discretionary Benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses scheme Others Total
Be i [zl iR Hit &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARET:H
Year ended December 31, 2018 BZ0BENANALEE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Ma Minchao (% &ti) i b - 204 513 9% 19 831
Mr. Liu Raohua (8I1%) () HEZLA() = 204 513 95 13 825
Mr. Rao Ye (EE) (i) S8 5 () = 163 336 95 ) 605
Ms. Hu Zhurong (4135%) FifE e = 204 24 95 19 542
Non-executive directors Fo1TES
Mr. He Jiangiang ([234) RRLE = = = = = =
Mr. Liu Guangcan (3I3t42) AxpEE = = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Mr. Qian Jueshi (&%) (i B 5 A i) 9% = = = = 9%
Mr. Yu Dingming (FE5) (i) T 5 A i) 9% = = = = 9%
Mr. Na Chaohong (2:) (ii) MR A 9% = = = — 9%
Supervisors Bz
Ms. Lin Tao (%) (v HEZ L) - - = - _ _
Mr. Zou Wekun (BAE) (i) BRE £ E(w) = 102 260 95 15 41
Ms. Li Yan (35) X3 - - - - - -
Mr. Chang Hongbing (F4L5) BAERE = = = = = =
Mr. Guo Huan (BE) ) i = 130 8 79 13 304
288 1,007 1,928 554 90 3,867
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Cont'd)

(@)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Liu Raohua was appointed as an executive director and the
vice chairman of the Board in December 2016. Mr. Liu ceased
being the director and vice chairman of the Board in March
2019.

Mr. Rao Ye was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in December 2016 and the vice chairman of the
Board in February 2018.

Mr. Qian Jueshi, Mr. Yu Dingming and Mr. Na Chaohong were
appointed as independent non-executive directors in December
2017. Mr. Qian and Mr. Na ceased being the independent
non-executive directors in March 2019 and September 2019,
respectively.

Ms. Lin Tao was appointed as the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors in December 2016 and ceased being the chairman
in March 2019. Mr. Zou Weikun ceased being the supervisors in
March 2019.

Mr. Lu Jianfeng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in December 2016 and ceased being the director
in December 2017. Mr. Lu was re-appointed as an executive
director in March 2019.

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in September 2019.

Mr. Li Hongkun was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in September 2019.

Mr. Wu Xinhe was appointed as the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors in March 2019 and Ms. Li Na was appointed as the
supervisor in March 2019.

B FE2019F 12531 H 1 FJE

EERSREEESTMH

(#)

(@ EBEERIBTBAEHFME)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

BB E L A N2016F 12 A
BZARPTEZREES
& o Bl ER2019F3 A H
FEERBEEER -

£ SE A TA20164E 12 A &
ZERADRHNITEE * &
R2018F2 AR EZ T AEE
E S

BEBELLE TEBRLE
BB R 201712
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BZAREFEEEIRN
20193 REHEEE - & &
B R AER2019F3 A HTE
$o
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£ BEER2019F3RE
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9

199

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits
There is no directors’ retirement benefits operated by the Group.

Directors’ termination benefits
There is no directors’ termination benefits operated by the Group.

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected with
directors

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, bodies
corporate controlled by or entities connected with directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

EEREREEEGTMN
(#)

(b)

EERIREN
AN B I R HE ] & F R IR
F) o

IR
7 8 8 36 5 14 1 6] 3 56 B Bk 4
7 o

RRBEERBEIATFE=ZAH
KRE

RELZE2018F F2019F 12 A31H
IEFE BERREESTRER
FE=F X EMARE -

BEHULES EFEHNEER
BEERATSZANER  EE
KR EMRZ 5 HE R
REZ2018F M2019F 128318
IHEE - BMENESE  ZEEH
MEZEXBEERAITANE
K EERREMRZS o

BEERNRS RELARATHE
PN ¥

RERE E2018F F120194 12
A318 (& E AR EA QA ]
BRIV S RAEEEFAARRA
EZRETHFERIMEEX
RENEBEERS  ZHEAR -



9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 9 EERSREEREFM
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’'d) (4&)
(9)  Five highest paid individuals (99 HusSHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group H 22018F K2019%F12A31H &
included 3 directors during the years ended December 31, 2019 FE AEEESHFHOARLMA
(2018: 2), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in THFBRERER=2EF
Note 9(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 individuals 1789 37 BN E M 52 9(a) P R D AT R IR
during the years ended December 31, 2019 (2018: 3), are as follows: B o B £ 20184 20194F 12 A31
HIEFE EBIBRT=Z2RM%E
ALTEFMMT
Year ended December 31,
BZ12B31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR¥TT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERIMEA 1,422 1,542
Contributions to pension plans and other social RIKSEEI R
insurance H ot = R 173 285
Other benefits H 4@ F 19 55
1,614 1,882

The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

BREZEZINESFHMALOF
BEsmT

Number of individuals
A
Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T %= 1,000,000 7T 2 3
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B BT 1% iR R B 5T

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

1"

201

10 BHKRERER

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR TR AREETF T
Interest income: B W Es
— Bank deposits — SRITFER 689 359
— Deposits within a financial institution (Note 36(g)) — & R T 3R (M 5E36(9)) 665 788
Total finance income B 75 W e 4B BR 1,354 1,147
Interest expenses: FEEBR:
— Guaranteed bank borrowings — ERER (1,158) (4,502)
— Unsecured bank borrowings — EEARITER (3,669) —
— Lease liabilities —HEaRE (2,725) (3.619)
Exchange losses FE 5 18 2k (1,367) —
Others Hh (1,439) (617)
Total finance costs 1A B 75 & A (10,358) (8,738)
Finance costs — net F B 15 & A (9,004) (7,591)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

11 FIEBEHR

15

EHFBERAZ OISR E R KA

Year ended December 31,

BEZ12A3MHLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREEF T

Current income tax &SR 30,410 38,405
Deferred income tax (Note 18) IEIEFT 1S R (BT 3E18) (1,901) (772)
Income tax expense et &R 28,509 37,633

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(a)

Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT Law")
and implementation regulations of the CIT Law, the tax rate of the
Group is 25% from January 1, 2008. The income tax rate of 25%
is applicable to the Group during the year, except for the Company
and its subsidiary YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd. which are qualified
as High-tech Enterprise. The Company is qualified as a High-tech
Enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15% as
approved by the local tax authority for the year ended December 31,
2017, 2018 and 2019. YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd. is qualified
as a High-tech Enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax rate
of 15% as approved by the local tax authority for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

A zir =+ EVa
& OF B 75 5 3R M 5
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

11 FMEBHEREF

(@ WBEIBECEMSHIE(EEM
BEREDRCEMBREE A
Bl - ANEBE H2008F1 18 #£H
REAB25% - NiR&HR - A&
ERAARERETARZEMER
B TMEERARZIN - Hik
FREINERMBHEAE25% °
EHZE20174 - 20184 2019412
A3MBLEFE AR A &
BT | = A B R i fE R 8
BRIEREI5%  # Z=2019512
A31BLEFE maTRAEAR
(SN = BB G KA
HEHEEMBMEIS% -

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
Profit before income tax R BT 15 B A AR 244,195 217,082
Tax calculated at the domestic CIT rate REANBERCEMGHETE
applicable B 1 I8 25% 25%
61,049 54,271
Tax effect of: MEXZE
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose Y0k ¢33 858 128
Additional deduction of research and BIMIRE EEMEMS
development expenses incurred (517) (130)
Effect of preferential income tax rate of the AEBEBEAMBHE =
Group (26,880) (15,425)
Effect of change in income tax rate Frisfixgagnre 28 —
Additional expenses allowable for tax A ARENHENEINES
deduction (6,029) (1,211)
Income tax expense FIE 2 28,509 37,633
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 202
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRik=
(@) The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit (a) HATBRUBEREZTBRARQA
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted FrAEEOFE BAFEAD T
average number of ordinary shares issued or deemed to be issued. SR G T BT @ AR 0
HYEFE -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Profit attributable to equity holders of the BERARQTFMAEENFE
Company (RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 203,685 163,748
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETE @R ME T
in issue in thousands (FB&) 334,765 312,390
Basic earnings per share (RMB) EXERKE(ARE) 0.61 0.52
(b)  The diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings per (by WHEGRW=EERNGTRWZENE
share as there was no potential dilutive share issued during the years B REABEHZ2019F K20184F
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. 12ANBIEFENEEED T

RERG -
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& 0 B 75 ok MY T
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

13 LAND USE RIGHTS 13 Lt ERA#E
The Group and Company’s interests in land use rights are recognised as REBRAKNAB T ERE L EE
right-of-use assets and represent prepaid operating lease payments for land REFERAEEE  EATRERNLME
located in the PRC, the net book values of which are analysed as follows: AXMHEMNKEHEER - ERE®EF
BEAFWT

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Cost B A 25,022 25,022
Accumulated amortisation ESE ¥ (4,920) (4,420)
Net book value IR EDFE 20,102 20,602
Opening net book value YR EFE 20,602 21,102
Amortisation charges (Note 7) B (FFE7) (500) (500)
Closing net book value B RER A F 1B 20,102 20,602
(@)  Amortisation of land use rights has been charged to the consolidated (@ THFERBEEENESHIBERN

income statement (Note 7) as follows: S (M7 IR ¢

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMWF T ARETTT

Administration expenses THEA 500 500

THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 204
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B BT 1% iR R B 5T

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

HE2019F12H31HiF F /&

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

205

14 THE IHBEXE

Right-of-
Right-of-  use assets-
use assets-  machinery Machinery
buildings and and  Buildings and and Motor Electronic Other  Construction
facilities  equipment facilities  equipment vehicles  equipment  equipment in progress Total
FRREE— RRAREE-
BFRRE HERRE BFRRE  HSRRE E§ ETRE bR REIR @it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  AR¥TR
At January 1, 2018 R2018%1A18
Cost A 58,322 42,938 243418 202,838 117,297 6,419 1,712 718 673,722
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHFERAE (24901) (18,584) (134,054) (116,657) (78,097) (3,881) (956) = (377,130)
Net book value SEFE 33,421 24,354 109,364 86,181 39,200 2,538 756 718 296,592
Year ended December 31, 2018 HEWNBENANALEE
Opening net book value BNEDFE 33421 24354 109,364 86,181 39,200 2,538 756 718 296,592
Additions WE 3852 15,501 10,117 17,181 640 1,154 117 21,100 76,716
Transfers a5 = = PENLE 309 = 56 = (26950) =
Disposals RE - - (298) (9) (18) (12) - - (424)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 15)  BEAZREEMHE (i15) = = (74 = = = - - (74)
Depreciation (Note 7) FEME) (15072) (25,225) (32,165) (26810) (12,653) (1,436) (1,344) — (114,705)
Closing net book value BREETE 22,001 14,630 110,743 79,551 21,169 2,300 583 928 258,105
At December 31, 2018 R2018%512A31R
Cost A 53,909 58,438 265,194 210,554 117,515 7,465 2,869 928 116,872
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERAE (31,708) (43,808) (154,451) (131,003) (90,346) (5,165) (2,286) = (458,767)
Net book value REFE 22,01 14,630 110,743 79,551 21,169 2,300 583 928 258,105
Year ended December 31, 2019 HEWNENENALEE
Opening net book value BNRETE 2201 14,630 110,743 79,551 27,169 2300 583 928 258,105
Additions hE 12,789 14719 218 3,697 346 445 18 15719 43,359
Transfers & - - 9,464 2,582 - 2 - (12,068) -
Disposals RE - - (1,783) (661) (197) (19) - - (2,660)
Depreciation (Note 7) HE(WE) (13,649) (15123) (38,851) (26,887) (8271) (1.177) (344) - (104,302)
Closing net book value BREETE 21,341 6,986 82,315 58,282 19,047 151 381 4,579 194,502
At December 31, 2019 R2019% 125318
Cost A 51,817 23,09 234,683 208,934 m,791 7,635 3,009 4,579 645,540
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2HNERAE (30,476) (16,106) (152,368) (150,652) (92,744) (6,064) (2,628) - (451,038)
Net book value RHFE 21,341 6,986 82,315 58,282 19,047 1,51 381 4,579 194,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont‘d)

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to
the consolidated income statement as follows:

& 0 B 75 ok MY T
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

14 T"BE -IBREREE)
@ TBE TERRETERAH
FBERHZTHMT :

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Cost of sales % AR 94,028 104,469
Administrative expenses THER 10,274 10,236
104,302 114,705

As at December 31, 2019, the Group is still in the process of
applying for the building ownership certificates of certain of its
buildings and the carrying amounts of those buildings amounted to
approximately RMB22,437,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB21,267,000).
Till the report date of this report, no building ownership certificates of
these building has been acquired.

(b) 20194 12 A 31 H N k2018 F
12A3NB NREBEMERB
EETEFONEEMAEEE
MZEEFNEEES LA
AR #22437,000 T & A R
21,267,0007C - B EAHRE R -
AEBTEFZEEFREEERE
FREHERE -
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/_\ N/ </ =+ %\
AT BHERNE
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 REMEHE

Buildings and
facilities
BFREIE
RMB’000
ARBT R
At January 1, 2018 "2018%1A1H
Cost B AR 5,307
Accumulated depreciation 2iinE (2,157)
Net book value AR EDFE 3,150
Year ended December 31, 2018 HZ2018F 128318 LFEE
Opening net book value B ) BR M SHE 3,150
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 14) EBRERATHE  IHREZEIFE14) 74
Depreciation (Note 7) e (FE7) (213)
Closing net book value HARREFE 3,011
At December 31, 2018 A2018%12A831H
Cost B A 5,404
Accumulated depreciation RN (2,393)
Net book value iR R B 3,011
Year ended December 31, 2019 B Z2019F12831B LFE
Opening net book value B BREFE 3,011
Additions A= 23
Depreciation (Note 7) e (M eE7) (213)
Closing net book value HREREFE 2,821
At December 31, 2019 A2019%F12831H
Cost BN 5,427
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (2,606)
Net book value BREFE 2,821
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B F B 1% ¥ 3k B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

BLE2019F 12431 H1F FE
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 15 REMEME (&)
Amounts recognised in profit and losses for investment properties: KEERMEDEBRANFERHEEE -

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMWT T ARBTTT

Rental income e A 123 117
Direct operating expenses from property that ELXHBRARNKRE Y

generated rental income EHWENEELZER 14 14
Direct operating expenses from property that did TEABRESBAHKEE

not generate rental income EHENEELEER 199 199
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AT BHERNE
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 B EE

Purchased
Computer
software
BETERE Y
RMB’000
ARBT
At January 1, 2018 #®2018F1H1H
Cost B AR 268
Accumulated amortisation REr#H (214)
Net book value BRI F A 54
Year ended December 31, 2018 HZ2018F12A31B LFE
Opening net book value B BR M FE 54
Amortisation (Note 7) B (faE7) (34)
Closing net book value HRREFE 20
At December 31, 2018 A2018%F12H831H
Cost B AR 268
Accumulated amortisation B (248)
Net book value BRE S E 20
Year ended December 31, 2019 BZ2019F12A831BLLEE
Opening net book value Y REEE 20
Additions NE 1,004
Amortisation (Note 7) B8 (M ex7) (94)
Closing net book value HREREFE 930
At December 31, 2019 20194 12A31H
Cost BN 1,272
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (342)
Net book value AR F(E 930
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B F B 1% ¥ 3k B 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1F F &
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d) 16 B EE (&)
(@ Amortisation of intangible assets had been charged to the (a) EREEZHENAHANBERFTX
consolidated income statement (Note 7) as follows: (M7 IR -

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Administrative expenses THE A 94 34

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17 HukERBEE

As at December 31,

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Prepayment for land use rights — T ARETER R 7,150 —
Prepayment for certificate of gravel mining — RARZFHNRK 800 =
7,950 —

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 18 BIESBEE

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMWT T ARET T

Deferred income tax assets: BEMSMEE :
- to be recovered within 12 months — 1218 A Rk [l A

ELEMSEMEE 13,763 11,489
- to be recovered after more than 12 months — BR121E A & e H

BIEFBRHEE 1,028 1,050

14,791 12,539
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B BT 1% iR R B 5T

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

B 2019 1231 HIFFE
AY S — —d
18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (Cont’d) 18 EXEFMSESHEE (&)
Movements in deferred income tax assets, without taking into consideration FRNELEFEBHREECREZEEHT
the offsetting of balance within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: ER—BEa L ERANKE NES
mE
Provision for Difference
dlose down between
Impairment restoration accounting Financial
on property Provision and treatment and assets
plant and Taxlosses  for doubtful ~environmental  Provision for Accrued taxlawon  Accelerated  measured at
equipment  carry forwards debts cost inventories expenses lease contract  depreciation fair value Total
EiEE
RERAR HUALEE
FHE IR BEEER SEFA b 4}
RRBHE KEHEER REBE BRALER FEBE EREX hEg NEFE LBEELD @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Deferred income tax assets BEFEREE ARBTR  AR®TR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
At January 1, 2018 R2018F1518 410 1,191 6,597 768 342 1,888 571 - - 11,767
Recognised in the consolidated REBHBRTERRR
income statement (51) (1,191) 2,104 318 (202) (1,613) (40) 1447 — mn
At December 31, 2018 H2018512A318 359 — 8,701 1,086 140 275 531 1,447 — 12,539
Recognised in the consolidated RABHERPERER
income statement - - 1,458 u©7 (112) (152) (57) 517 - 1,901
Recognised in the consolidated Rafse bzt
statement of comprehensive ERED
income — — — — - - — - 351 351
At December 31, 2019 #20195128318 359 — 10,159 1,333 28 123 474 1,964 351 14,191
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 ST AEDE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Assets per consolidated statement of EOHUBRRAREZINEE
financial position
Financial assets carried at amortised cost LRI AT ENESREE
— Trade receivables (Note 22) — FEUBR 3R (B 5E22) 2,416,622 2,448,270
— Other receivables (Note 23) — HE b B U FR (BT 5E23) 22,736 23,147
— Restricted cash (Note 24) — ZBRHIR & (5E24) 20,772 15,680
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) —RekReFEY (KM E25) 640,009 240,026
Financial assets at fair value through other WARBEFTEBEZESHF AEM
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (Note 21) HRAEKENSBEE(KE21) 137,202 55,637
3,237,341 2,782,760
Liabilities per consolidated statement of EHUBERRR2ZINERE
financial position
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost NESRA AT ENEE
— Lease liabilities (Note 29) — HEaE&ME29) 28,733 37,220
— Financial liabilities included in trade and — FETRR R % H fh FE AT R (B RE31)
other payables (Note 31) 2,039,042 1,886,551
— Borrowings (Note 32) — B (K 32) 114,618 80,000
2,182,393 2,003,771
EZHERgEeaHERREIBRMDER R A 212
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AT BHERNE
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

20 INVENTORIES

20 78

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARET T

Cost: B :

Raw materials R 45,912 44,621

Spare parts (il kikaa 1,672 1,641
47,584 46,262

Provision for impairment loss: WEBKEE

Raw materials R (110) (558)

Inventories — net FEFHE 47,474 45,704

The cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales amounted to
approximately RMB3,200,677,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019

(2018: RMB2,997,649,000).

No provision for inventories has been made during the year ended

December 31, 2019 (2018: Nil).

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21

HE2019F12A31BLEE  FEMK
APBRARBBALI ATHERKEAIH
SRR A AR3,200,677,000 7T
(20184 € : AR#2,997,649,0007T) °

REZE2019F 128318 IEFE » ik
BFEELBEQISE « £) -

UAREBEFTEEHSH
sFAHMGAEREN SR
BE
As at December 31,
A12831H
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMWT T ARBTTT

Notes receivable — related parties (Note 36(1)) fE U E 5 — REEE 5 (B RE36(1) 54,695 29,230
Notes receivable — third parties EWEE —F= 82,507 26,407
Notes receivable e E & 137,202 55,637
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES 22

A zir =+ EVa
& OF B 75 5 3R M 5
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

=
FE UK BR X
As at December 31,
M12A31H8
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Trade receivables — related parties (Note 36(I)) & Us 8 2 — RAEE 5 (FfaE36(1)) 1,604,395 1,753,353

Trade receivables — third parties EWER —F=5H 867,461 743,002

2,471,856 2,496,355

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables B FE AR BORE 2 (B 5E(b)) (55,234) (48,085)
(Note (b))

Trade receivables - net FEWERR — B8 2,416,622 2,448,270

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair values of trade receivables of
the Group approximated their carrying amounts.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, all the carrying amounts of trade
receivables were denominated in RMB.

(@) Ageing analysis of trade receivables at the respective statement of
financial position dates, based on the invoice dates, are as follows:

2019412 431 H LA K% 20184 12 A 31
B AEERKERDABERERLRE
B

K2019F12 A31 A LA K 20185 12 A 31
B BUCEROMBEREENARE
B o

(@ MBEEABRA BUEIE
REZAHMOKREITET :

As at December 31,

®12A31A8
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

— Within one year — —F R 2,181,615 1,942,450
— One to two years — =E=4%E 187,805 450,158
— Two to three years ——FE=F 67,878 71,677
— Three to four years — =—EWNF 18,207 14,916
- Four to five years —UERF 10,832 14,530
— Over five years —RFNRE 5,519 2,624

2,471,856 2,496,355

The Group did not hold any collateral as security over these debtors.

REBTHEEMERERNE
Ran °
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont‘d)

(b)  The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected

credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the life

time expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the

expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on

shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected

credit losses also incorporate forward-looking information. As at

December 31, 2019, provision of approximately RMB55,234,000 was
made against trade receivables (December 31, 2018: RMB48,085,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follow:

22 FEWERR (&)

(b)

AEBEZEERSBEHREEDFE
KRR EFERBEEEREE
BIEELRE HRTHMAERE
AR 2 HATE BRI B AR % 1 o
AFTEEHERABL BREXR
EREGEARBEHKEEHB
oM HEERABRITEEN
BE &R - 20195128318 -
EREFREEES LN BAR
& 55,234,000 7T (2018 £ 12 A 31
B : AR%48,085,0007T) °

EWRFOREEBEBOT

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Beginning of the year F 1) 48,085 36,810
Provision for impairment on trade receivables & WBR R B 1 7,452 11,287
Write-off for impairment on trade receivables JE W AR FRORL (B 1% 8H (303) (12)
End of the year FR 55,234 48,085

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 FE IR R E b WK

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Other receivables — related parties (Note 36(1))  E fib & W 58 — BAEE 75 (B 3E36(1) 3,911 2,322
Other receivables — third parties HthEWRR —F=H 21,703 23,026
25,614 25,348
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables B E R W ORI A ZE 1 (P EE(b))
(Note (b)) (2,878) (2,201)
Other receivables — net Hih W aIE — 58 22,736 23,147
Prepayments — listing expenses ERRIE — EWRX — 11,207
Prepayments — others T RIE — H At 6,746 19,444
Prepayments T8 15 3B 6,746 30,651
Other current assets Hihmeh & E 9,133 5,968
Prepayments and other receivables - net BAREREMERR — F5E 38,615 59,766
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair values of other receivables of 2019412 A31H A X 20184 12 A 31
the Group approximated their carrying amounts. H AEBEHEMEKFEIAREEEE
BREEMRE -
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, all the carrying amounts of 20194 & 2018412 A31 8 @ FER &
prepayments and other receivables were denominated in RMB. H R EMER R 2 BREEAARE
FTE o
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Cont’d)

(@)  Ageing analysis of prepayments and other receivables at the respective
statement of financial position dates, based on the invoice dates, are

23 FEAFRIE R H it B WK
(#)

(a)

REEERBRA  BHERER
H Al UK E R H R A Mo REe

as follows: pa i (N
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARE T T
— Within one year — —F R 27,516 47,014
— One to two years — —Es = 3,446 8,501
— Two to three years ——E=F 5,306 1,687
— Three to four years — =ZENF 1,226 995
— Four to five years —mERF 797 3,201
— Over five years —RFHNUE 3,202 569
41,493 61,967

The Group did not hold any collateral as security over these debtors.

(b)  To measure the expected credit losses, other receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing
days. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information. As at December 31, 2019, provisions for impairment of
approximately RMB2,878,000 were made against other receivables
(December 31, 2018: RMB2,201,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables are

AEBTHEEMERBRNE
Ran o

AFrETEREREE  E4ElK
RERBEEHRR S RE
BRAESE HHEEEBRTE
ERIEMEER - N2019F12 A
318 - EMhEIREREEEAA
R #2,878,0007T (20184 12 A 31
A : AR%2,201,0007T) °

E fts 8 3K B AL (B R £ 4 B f

as follow: T
Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT
Beginning of the year F 4 2,201 1,618
Provision for impairment on other receivables H i fE W RORE 2 677 583
End of the year F R 2,878 2,201

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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24 RESTRICTED CASH 24 ZRFEBRE

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARET T

Restricted cash at banks SRENEITES 20,772 12,270
Restricted cash at a financial institution ZRHemMEERS
(Note 36())) (P 7E36(1)) — 3,410
Total restricted cash 2R & 20,772 15,680
Restricted deposits represented cash set aside for the issuance of notes PR G FRIE R BTN RE R
payable and provision for close down, restoration and environmental cost. ERERREKANBEFEEENR S -
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBEZEEY

As at December 31,

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥ET T

Cash at banks and on hand RITEREFRE 531,999 97,655
Cash at a financial institution S REIEERS

(Notes 25(c), 36(1)) (B 5E25(c) ~ 36(1)) 108,010 142,371
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 640,009 240,026
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont‘d)

(@  All cash and cash equivalents were denominated in RMB, HKD or

25 BERASEEBY(E

(a)

FMERSRBASEEBMWHUAR

usD. ¥ BT ETLEE °
As at December 31,
R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AR F T
RMB AR 309,411 239,875
HKD BT 330,598 —
usb ED — 151
640,009 240,026

(b)  All cash at banks were deposits with original maturity within 3
months. The Group earned interest on cash at banks at bank deposit
rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35% during the year ended December
31, 2019 (2018: 0.3%-0.35%).

(c)  All deposits at a financial institution were deposited in YCIH Financial
Company. It has original maturity within 3 months. The Group earned
interest on deposits at a financial institution at a deposit rate of
0.53% during the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: 0.53%).

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

FASRTRSAINYPRE=MA
AR B FR - RE 220196128
NALEE  ASEENRITES
12 0.01%Z 0.35%H) 8 17 17 7 7
= BEELA B (20185 F : 0.3%E
0.35%) ©

FBSREEFEIEERRASE
ENEa DN B3t i /NI B B
BE=MEARN - RE E2019F12
A31BIEEE  AEEEAAQF
#) & @b 17 ;1K 0.53% (2018
FE 1 0.53%) 8917 ZOF == BREF
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26 IR

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
Registered, issued and fully paid 2t BITRABR
Number of shares (in thousand) &g B (B - FR%) 446,272 312,390
Share capital (in RMB’000) BEAR(EMN : AR¥TIT) 446,272 312,390

(a)

On June 19, 2007, the Company was established by Yunnan

Construction Engineering Concrete Co., Ltd. (“YNJG Concrete”) which

was a subsidiary of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd

("YNJG") under the supervision and regulation of Yunnan SASAC,
with an initial registered capital of RMB10,000,000.

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution on December 15,
2009, the Company’s registered capital was increased to
RMB66,000,000, among which RMB33,660,000 was contributed
by YNJG Concrete, and RMB32,340,000 was contributed
by Kunming Economic-Technological Development Zone
Investment & Development (Group) Co., Ltd. (“"KMEIC"), a
new shareholder. Since then, YNJG Concrete held 51% equity
interest and KMEIC held 49% equity interest in the Company.

On July 28, 2011, pursuant to a shareholder resolution, 51% of
the Company’s equity interest was transferred to YNJG at the
consideration of RMB33,660,000.

On December 27, 2016, pursuant to a shareholder resolution,
YNJG, KMEIC and Yunnan Provincial Overseas Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“YOIC") entered into a capital injection agreement to
increase the share capital of the Company from RMB66,000,000
to RMB312,390,000.

(@ BISEFRAAIEMEZIERT
BRARI(TEmEIRELTDR
20076 A19B K AR Al 4]
5 5 it IR AR & A K %5 10,000,000
T RAREBEXEEBEEZNE
BEREE -

(b) () IRIEBRERZER - 2009
F£12H158 " QA2
FREAREE AR
66,000,000 7T © £ AR
¥ 33,660,000 L A &£ 7 &
ITRBTEE ARE
32,340,0007T 1 7 A% 3 E B
KERMAEREERES
BEERAR(EERER])
FE Bt EEEIRE
T4 BH AR F]51%MAE KL
HEBFF AR D AL49%MK
o

(i) R2011F7AH28H ' BRERK
RORBRR - ARAZ51%MK
1 LA A R #33,660,0007T 2
REEZETEIEE -

(i)  H20165 128270 - R
BFRHER > 2TEE &
NEBREMERINEESR
RAR(NEIMNEELDFT L
EEWE - AR FRRAR
AR #66,000,0007T 1 F A
R #312,390,0007C °
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

26 BRA(4#&)

() On December 22, 2017, the Company was converted from a limited (© M2017F128228 - AR FHEE
liability company into a joint stock limited liability company with a BB ATIKE BIRHDABR AR @ IX
share capital of RMB312,390,000. The Company issued and allotted AAEANRY312,390,0007T ° AA
312,390,000 ordinary shares with par value of RMB1 each to the Al E IR R2017F7H31H
respective then shareholders of the Company in accordance with EERABEME RN Bl AZE
the proportion of their paid-in capital to the Company as at July 31, A% B3R 2% 17 M B %£312,390,000 0% &
2017. BREERARBITHEBER -

(d)  On October 31, 2019, the Company newly issued 133,882,000 H (d) & 1E2019F10A31H 1L ARQ
shares of RMB1.00 each at HKD3.36 per share in connection with AIEEEREERGTERTHK T
the initial listing of H shares of the Company on the Main Board of MEAMBINEEE B RET
HKEX. 133,882,000k I E R 17T AR

B3R SN ETHARFTAR - BRREEITE
& B IT3.367T ©
27 RESERVES 27 f##&
Capital Statutory
surplus reserve Other
(Note 27(a)) (Note 27(b)) reserve Total
ERBH EERE
(Kt &¥27(a)) (B &F27(b)) HitfE 6 @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AR¥ TR ARBT T ARBTR

At January 1, 2018 720181810 239,942 7,653 = 247,595

Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary Ui B 7 — 4= 65 T B F 22 B )

under common control ((a)(i)) - 3R((a)(0) (18,215) = = (18,215)
Appropriation to statutory reserve WRZETE RS (fi28)

(Note 28) — 16,419 — 16,419
At December 31, 2018 #2018 12A31H 221,727 24,072 — 245,799
Increase in share premium upon issue of %17 # A% &0 B AN i B 12 A

H shares (Note 26(d)) (P &26(d)) 195,615 — — 195,615
Appropriation to statutory reserve BERERTERE (M E28)

(Note 28) — 18,987 — 18,987
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI WA BEFEEEES

FFAE MRS W
CREEAAEEEY - — (1,743) (1,743)
At December 31, 2019 R2019F12A31H 417,342 43,059 (1,743) 458,658
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27 RESERVES (Cont'd) 27 fRE (A
(a) Capital surplus (a) EXEL
(i) As at April 28, 2018, YCIH transferred YCIH Aggregate Co., (i) R2018F 4288 r ZE@E
Ltd. and YCIH 14th Metallurgical Green New Material Co., BEEER —ZH THER
Ltd which were under common control to the Company at a ERODANERATIRERS
consideration of RMB18,215,000. BRTMaZENMEHER
ANEIEETARTE  REAR
AFE#18,215,0007T °
(b) Statutory reserve (b) EEREE
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles RIBE(RZE AR KRB R FE)
of association of the PRC companies of the Group (the “PRC EAREEHREQN A (BREIFEA
Companies”), the PRC Companies are required to allocate 10% AIDMER - PEQFRRBEE
of their profits attributable to the respective owners of the PRC BERRTEERTER RS E
Companies as set out in their statutory financial statements, to BNBEFBO10%IRIUVETE BB A
the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of the Be  BEATRBAESRFNE
registered capital of the respective PRC Companies. The appropriation EREFPBEARFEMREARTS0%
to the reserve must be made before any distribution of dividends to B o NI - B M BER
the respective owners of the PRC Companies. The statutory surplus REAFEEAADIKRKE ZA
reserve can be used to offset previous year’s losses, if any, and part REN o A TE BT AR Y
of the statutory surplus reserve can be capitalised as the share capital WA EEBBR(INE) BN EAE
of the respective PRC Companies provided that the amount of such BEHBHHEATUNERNEAEF
reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not be less than 25% BARIZKA  HETEBER
of the share capital of the respective PRC Companies. b1  ZTCEBRBHENCREER
TER & T B R AIRAR25% -
28 RETAINED EARNINGS 28 BREWsmE

Group

rEH

RMB’000

AR® T

At January 1, 2018 "2018%1A1H 174,135
Profit for the year FEFHE 163,748
Appropriation to statutory reserve (Note 27(b)) EBREETERHEPIE27(b)) (16,419)
At December 31, 2018 720186 12H31H 321,464
Profit for the year FEFHE 203,685
Dividends to equity holders of the Company (Note 33) AR 5 A% B (Fff5E33) (243,225)
Appropriation to statutory reserve (Note 27(b)) EEEEERE(HFE27(0)) (18,987)
At December 31, 2019 2019 12831H 262,937
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 222
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LEASE LIABILITIES

29 HESE

As at December 31,

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFTT
Minimum lease payments due NSNS BB R Wil =R S
— Within one year — —FHUR 15,000 24,334
— Between one and two years ——E=F 3,174 8,100
— Between two and five years —Z—FEARF 8,467 4,995
— Later than five years —RFENRE 8,562 6,618
35,203 44,047
Less: future finance charges B AR R B S (6,470) (6,827)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAFBHRE 28,733 37,220
As at December 31,
A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTFT
Within one year — —FHUR 13,132 21,655
Between one and two years ——EF 2,198 6,902
Between two and five years ——FERF 6,345 3,601
Later than five years — hFENE 7,058 5,062
28,733 37,220

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont‘d)

The Group leases various properties and equipment and these lease liabilities
were measured at net present value of the lease payments during the lease
terms that are not yet paid.

Extension options are included in a number of property leases across the
Group. Extension options whether to be exercised are determined by the
actual manufactory period.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to
volume of production. Variable lease payments that depend on volume
of production are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs, excluding minimising the
fixed costs base for the volume of production which is less than the agreed
volume.

The total cash outflows for leases including payments of lease liabilities,
payments of interest expenses on leases for the year ended December 31,
2019 was RMB31,266,000 (2018: RMB42,450,000).

PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COST

29

30

& 0 B 75 ok MY T
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

HE8E(H)
ARBEESEYERRE  KEHR
B Ty 1 RO B BRI O 4 ok 2 0 T R
W2 BEFEE -

AEENZENEENBRSERERE
o mBTRBERESEEAEREED
FIARTE ©

ETHEANRSREESHIBHOR
BIGER - BURR EE /A #7388 & 4 500
ZENFOE B IR EENRRARE
HER  TERENEROEENEER
ERNHEBREKRSE -

KRB ZE2019F 128318 LEFEMHA
EMmBRentABR(REHEAEEEN
FROHEEMNBERAINRDINAAR
¥ 31,266,000 7L (2018 F E : AR ¥
42,450,0007T) ©

%%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ¢ﬁ

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR T T
Provision for close down, restoration and BIEA - 1828 RIRIRAL AN B
environmental cost 11,865 11,653

TERRGERURERLIROBR AR
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30 PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION 30 FARA - BERRREAIE
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COST (Cont’d) 1% (4#&)
As at December 31,
A12A831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARB T
Beginning of the year F 1) 11,653 13,690
Reversals for the year FRE D (1,498) (3,636)
Additions for the year FRRNE 1,414 1,259
Unwinding of interest expense for the year FAMREEOF S ER 612 340
Payment for the year FAZ (316) —
End of the year FR 11,865 11,653
As at December 31, 2019, according to related contract maturity, 201912 A31H - REFEEEE R E
RMB6,454,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB3,234,000) were reclassified W AR #6,454,0007T (2018412 A 31
into current liability respectively. Provision for close down, restoration and H: AR®3,234,0000) EH D EE
environmental cost represented the estimated amount and timing of future MEBEE - B ERRBIEAAEB
closure and restoration projects. EARKREARERIER WG 28 KE
fid ©
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 BENRARHEALENRK

31

225

As at December 31,

R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKEFTT
Notes payable FET R’ 50,080 62,050
Trade payables — related parties (Note 36 (1) JE& 1~ AR 7 — BB 75 (B aE36 (1) 112,643 145,918
Trade payables — third parties ERERER—F=5H 1,806,451 1,470,721
Other payables — related parties (Note 36 (1)) H b FE A5 3R — B 5 (B RE36 (1) 14,871 74,601
Other payables — third parties HihENR —F=7 54,859 50,303
Staff salaries and welfare payable FEFT B T % M &R 48 7 79,262 84,556
Interest payable JE £ F 2 138 148
Dividends payable FETAR B — 82,810
Accrued taxes other than income tax FEEBIE (TR 10,322 31,480
2,128,626 2,002,587
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

B FE2019F 12531 H 1 FJE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 31 ERNBESREMEN
(#&)
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, all trade and other payables of (@) 2019412 A31H A X 20184F
the Group were non-interest bearing, and their fair values, except 128318 * AEE A EMERX
for the staff salaries and welfare payables and accrued taxes other FEMEMNZBEEE  BBRTE
than income tax which are not financial liabilities, approximated their CRABENENETIEHMNET
carrying amounts due to their short maturities. RIEGBE(FTEBBRIN N - fE
NEFREMENRZAERHRA
FEH - HEAREEEAKREEN
3 o
At each of the end of the reporting periods, the Group's trade and by RIFREHR AEENENE
other payables are denominated in RMB. R E A FER RIAAREEHE ©
Ageing analysis of trade and other payables at the respective (€0 MRBEEEEBRH ENEZK
statement of financial position dates is as follows: EmEMNRERE>TTOT
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR T
— Within one year — —F R 1,757,677 1,632,689
— One to two years ——E=F 278,745 294,718
- Two to three years — —E=4 57,968 28,117
— Three to four years — Z=FEMF 23,789 14,753
— Four to five years —UERF 6,863 27,973
— Over five years —RFNRE 3,584 4,337
2,128,626 2,002,587
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 226
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32 BORROWINGS 32 B

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Bank borrowings guaranteed by YCIH HEEEREEEERORITER
(Note (b)) (Fft 5E(b)) — 80,000
Secured bank borrowings (Note (b)) AR 1T 18 K (M &E(b)) 34,618 —
Unsecured bank borrowings EEAEITER 80,000 =
Total borrowings BER 114,618 80,000
(@)  All the borrowings were denominated in RMB. (a) FiEEZHUARKSE-
(b) As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, analysis of secured and (b) 2019512 A31H I k20184
guaranteed borrowings are as follows: 12A318 - BERRBERER
AWT
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETF T
Secured by notes receivable FA FE Uk = R R 34,618 —
Guaranteed by YCIH (i) = 2R () R R — 80,000
34,618 80,000
() All guarantees from YCIH have been released on March 19, () ZEEEREENMEERE
2019. 420193 A19H iRk o
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32 BORROWINGS (Cont‘d)

(@}

(d)

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

A Zir =+ R

& OF B 75 ¥ 3R MY &

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

32 ER(HE
(O HEREOEEHOT :

As at December 31,

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

On demand or within 1 year BRERKsy —F R

114,618 80,000

The weighted average effective interest rates for borrowings at each
statement of financial position date are as follows:

d REEEABXRA  BROME
FHERMEMT

As at December 31,

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Borrowings & 7K

5.66 % 6.68%

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying amounts as
the discounting impact is not significant.

The Group had the following bank borrowing facilities:

() HBMRIWEMFTEAEKXR H FibiR
PERO DA EBEELREER

=

H ATEEETIABDANREE
=3

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Total facilities B85 455,000 275,000
Utilised facilities EBRAEE (110,848) (111,350)
Undrawn facilities TR 56 S 344,152 163,650

Undrawn facilities at December 31, 2019 amounted to
RMB344,152,000 (December 31, 2018: RMB163,650,000).

MR2019F 12 A31A R AMFEE
H|E DR A AR 344,152,000
t(2018F 12 A31H : AR
163,650,0007T) °
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33 DIVIDENDS

(a) Ordinary shares

33 RE
(a) EERERE

As at December 31,

A12A831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTFT

Final dividend for the year ended 31 2018 F EHIRREBFBRARE
December 2018 of RMB0.7785 per 0.77857C(2017/% : #)

fully paid share (2017: nil) 243,225 —

The dividend of RMB243,225,000 was declared to the equity holders
of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2019. The
Company settled RMB243,225,000 during the year ended December
31, 2019. The Group also settled a dividend of RMB60,317,000 in

cash which was declared in previous years.

(b) Dividends not recognised at the end of the

respective reporting period

MEE2019F12831BIEEE
M AR A A B R R AR B AR
243,225,0007C M & * A AR E
F2019F12A31B L EE B &t
AR 243,225,000t ' BA%EE
W EN AR FERAR A RER
IREE A% B A R #560,317,0007T °

(b) THRIBEREEHRE

As at December 31,

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARKETT
In addition to the above dividends, BREMKRE - ARAEFEZ DR
since year end the directors have 019 EARHREBRARK
recommended the payment of a 0.13557L (20185 & : AR
final dividend of RMB0.1355 per 0.77857L) * Ll @ZEMR B #
fully paid ordinary share for the year HE2019F12A31BHHEE
ended December 31, 2019 (2018: WD RETERBFREE -
RMBO0.7785). The aggregate amount FEET 7202058 A26 H AT X 1+ -
of the proposed dividend for 2019 is CREAA
expected to be paid before August
26, 2020 out of the retained earnings
as at December 31, 2019, but not
recognised as a liability at year end,
is 60,473 243,225
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 3 REEENRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) BRABHAUANBAGTH
generated from operations REEENRR

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMWF T ARBT T

Profit for the year before income tax R P15 30 B AR 244,195 217,082
Adjustments for: FHEIEAR
— Depreciation of property, plant and — T HE IRERIHEHNE
equipment (Note 14) (Ktzx14) 104,302 114,705
— Depreciation of investment properties —REUREHENE
(Note 15) (P 5£15) 213 213
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) — %7 & & # 85 (M 5£16) 94 34
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 13)  — = b {8 P4 58 85 (M4 3E13) 500 500
— Finance costs (Note 10) — B ER — FHE(ME10) 9,004 7,591
— Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, —RETHE ITHREZED
plant and equipment (Note 6) &ia(F)E) (M ske) 144 (550)
— Listing expenses — EWRAX 3,154 280
361,606 339,855
Changes in working capital: EEASEE
— Restricted cash (Note 24) — 2R IR (K zE24) (5.092) (4,224)
— Trade and other receivables — FE UGB R % L Aib B UK (111,400) (481,484)
— Inventories (Note 20) — FE(KM20) (1,770) (2,351)
— Trade and other payables — FE SRR R % H M FE TR 177,896 297,074
Cash generated from operations KREEENES 421,240 148,870
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 230
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34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont‘d)

(b) Net cash reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in

net cash for each of the years presented.

34

REELENERE (&)

(b) FREHEHK
AEHHIEFRS TS RAF LT
EFEIALHEEY

As at December 31,

®W12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 640,009 240,026
Restricted cash X PR HIIR & 20,772 15,680
Borrowings [EE (114,618) (80,000)
Lease liabilities HERE (28,733) (37,220)
Net cash IR&F8E 517,430 138,486

As at December 31,

A12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Cash and restricted cash RERFZRHIIRE 660,781 255,706
Gross debt — fixed interest rate REK — BEME (8,000) —
Gross debt — variable interest rate BER — 2B FI R (135,351) (117,220)
Net cash IR & F 5 517,430 138,486
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Cont’d)
(b) Net cash reconciliation (Cont’d)

3 REELENR € (F)
(b) FRESBFHKRA)

Assets Liabilities
§E =L

Lease Lease

Cash Borrowings Liabilities Liabilities

and cash Restricted  due within  due within due after
equivalents cash 1 year 1year 1year Total

BeR -ERES -ERIE  -E435
ReSEY ERHERL 2R ZHEEE HESE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR%TR AR¥Tn AR%Tn ARETz
Amounts as at January 1, 2018 R2018E1A1AMNEE 331,801 11,456 (80,000) (31,130) (23,530) 208,597
Cash flows RemeE (91,775) 4,224 (1,489) 42,450 — (46,590)

Non-cash change FREEH
- Acquisitions of leases —BRHEEN - - - - (21,391) (21,391)
— Interest expenses on lease liabiliies ~ — HEBEZ A ERX = = = = (3,619) (3,619)
- Offset notes receivable —BHENEE = = 1,489 = = 1,489
- Reclassification —EN5E = = — (32,975) 32,975 =
Amounts as at December 31, 2018 R2018F12A31AMNEE 240,026 15,680 (80,000) (21,655) (15,565) 138,486
Amounts as at January 1, 2019 R2019F1R1BREE 240,026 15,680 (80,000) (21,655) (15,565) 138,486
Cash flows Bene 399,983 5,092 (67,368) 31,266 — 368,973
Non-cash change ¥HLED - - - - - -
- Acquisitions of leases —REHRERH - - - - (20,054) (20,054)
- Interest expenses on lease liabiliies ~ —HEEBZFERT - - - - (2.725) (2,725)
- Offset notes receivable —BHEKEER - - 32,750 - - 32,750
- Reclassification — N5 E — — — (22,743) 2,743 —
Amounts as at December 31, 2019 R20195 128310 & 8 640,009 20,772 (114,618) (13,132) (15,601) 517,430
THERGeSHREERLIRDERAA 232

/N
2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A <ZAr =+ 2
& OF 91 15 R R B a
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
B ZE2019F12HA31HIFF/Z

35

36

233

COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of reporting period
but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

35 &S

NEBEBBEXRABTNERMRELEN
EARMHMT

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment THE LITRERE 11,053 —

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to exercise control or significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating decisions. YCIH is the Company's
controlling shareholder.

The Company is controlled by YCIH, which is a government-related
enterprise established in the PRC by Yunnan SASAC. In accordance with IAS
24 (Revised), “Related Party Disclosures”, issued by the IASB, government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the government are defined as
related parties of the Group. On that basis, related parties include YCIH and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group), entities controlled by Yunnan SASAC,
other entities and corporations in which the Group is able to exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of the Company and
as well as their close family members. The Group’s significant transactions
and balances with the PRC government and other entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government mainly include
deposits and borrowings, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and cash and cash equivalents. The directors of the Company
believe that the meaningful information of related party transactions has
been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial statement.

Management believes that all material related party transactions and
balances, of which they are aware of, have been adequately disclosed.
Sales of goods to related parties are at market prices or prices that are
also available to other customers. The Group considers that these sales are
activities in the ordinary course of business. In addition to the transactions
detailed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statement, the Group had
the following material transactions or balances with related parties.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36 A ARG (&

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following (@) ARBEBEEREATER 27

parties/companies were related parties that had transactions or TDEASEFTERZHHBENE

balances with the Group: Bt

List of related parties BE A P&

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

et HEAEENER

YCIH Group, including YCIH and its subsidiaries Controlling shareholder of the Group

THEREE(ZEEERREFAA) REE 2 ZERRER

KMEIC Group, including KMEIC and its subsidiaries A minority shareholder of the Company

KHREE (BRELRKREEFAR]) ZN/NET S 0

Yongchang Investment Group, including Yongchang Investment Co., Ltd Significant non-controlling interest

and its subsidiaries

KEREEE(BERLUTKERERZ(EB)ARARREFAA) BRIFERER

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, during the years ended BRAHRE i WEEI - R

December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group had the following H E2019F K2018F12A31H 1E

significant transactions with related parties. FE O ASEHEBAFAUTE

KRR G °
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ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 36 M- A RZ (&
(b)  Sales and purchase with related parties (by HEHMHINEER
YCIH Group EEERER
Year ended December 31,
HEZ12A3MBLLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR T T
Purchase of raw materials B RME 155,389 166,912
Purchase of construction service BE ITREREXR 5,412 16,933
Purchase of services BB R 3,939 5,775
Purchase of equipment BER 1,531 320
166,271 189,940
Sales of ready-mixed concrete SHEBHRERL 2,520,850 2,457,028
Sales of polycarboxylic admixtures $H 1 B FE EE SN hn A 1,428 —
Sales of aggregates HEY AR 118 2,786
2,522,396 2,459,814
Other related parties H fth B Bk 5
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MALEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR T IT
Sales of ready-mixed concrete HETEHORE -
- Yongchang Investment Group — KBRES 17 20,467
~ KMEIC Group — EREE 251 —
268 20,467

235 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)

(¢)  Leasing
Additions of right-of-use assets

Classification of leasing assets

A Zir =+ R
& OF B 75 ¥ 3R MY &
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

36 BMARS (A
© MmE
EREAFEMGERREE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEEBE AR® T AR F T
YCIH Group Property and land
THEREH B =Mt i 7,022 3,748
Interest expenses relating to lease liabilities HEAEERNEXH

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

YCIH Group
EEERE 608 355
Property rental fee paid XN ERHESR

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBT T

YCIH Group

EHEREER 5,167 5,307

Yongchang Investment Group

KEREEE 18 18
5,185 5,325

Equipment rental fee paid IANREBEHES

Year ended December 31,
HZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

YCIH Group
TREREE

1,719 —
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36 BEEAERS (&
(d)  Guarantees provided by related parties (d) FEE TRz BR

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTF T ARETT

YCIH Group
THEREE — 250,000

KEEBRBRROZHERD R

All guarantees from the controlling shareholder have been released on
20194F3 A 19 R kR o

March 19, 2019.

(e)  Deposits placed in YCIH Financial Company (&) TFAERRFBARMNER
Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

YCIH Group
THEREER 2,047,718 1,590,650
(f)  Deposits withdraw from YCIH Financial Company ) RERNEREUBAANER
Year ended December 31,
BHZ12A3MBLLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
YCIH Group
EHEREE 2,085,489 1,637,526
(g) Interest income and expenses (9 FEWARAS
Interest income from deposits placed in YCIH Financial Company FERERMBARFRHAEL
A
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR T
YCIH Group
THEKREE 665 788
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1F F &
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36 BB AR S (&
(h)  Acquisition of subsidiaries under common control (hy WHER—ZHTHFRAA

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

YCIH Group (Note 27(a))

EHELEE (K27 () — 18,215
(i) Financial services provided by YCIH Financial Company 0) BETREBEATIRENRE
(@)  Service charge on assistance in fund receipt and payment (a) BB RAMEES W
R &M

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

YCIH Group
EERREE 502 58
(b)  Letter of guarantee provided by YCIH Financial Company (b) BEEMBAFTIREORRAE
%
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARKEFT
YCIH Group
THEREE 800 800
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36 EBEAERZ (&
() Borrowings from discounting notes receivable which were not () AR R ERE EL Z 8L IR
derecognised & B 18 7R

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTF T ARETT

YCIH Group
ETHEREE 22,750 1,489
(k) Dividends declared and paid k) BEFIkMRKARS
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MALEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR T T
YCIH Group EMEREH
— Dividends declared —BEEIERKE 218,052 —
— Dividends settled — BIRFARE 278,369 19,752
Yongchang Investment Group KEREEKH
— Dividends declared —BEEERKRE 24,464 8,000
— Dividends settled — BIRFATRE 42,671 —
KMEIC Group BEEE
— Dividends declared —EBEEIRKRE 25,174 =
— Dividends settled — BIRAT AR B 25,174 1,536
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)

0)

Balances arising from related party transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& BRI EE
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1F F &

36 BMARS (A

() HEEHOR S 5%
As at December 31,

MR12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR T T
Receivables from related parties FE W B B 5 K E
Trade receivables JE Wt BR 3K
— YCIH Group — EMEREE 1,602,221 1,727,083
- Yongchang Investment Group —kEREEE 226 21,294
— KMEIC Group —KEREE 1,948 4,976
1,604,395 1,753,353
Other receivables B th JE W 5K
- YCIH Group —ZEERER 3,891 2,302
— Yongchang Investment Group —KEREEH 20 20
3,911 2,322
Notes receivable FE U = &
— YCIH Group — EEERER 54,695 29,230
Deposits placed in YCIH Financial FERERFBAINER
Company
— YCIH Group (Notes 24, 25) — E g 2 E @ (524 - H7E25) 108,010 145,781
Payables to related parties FE A BB 5 B RRIE
Trade payables FEAT R K
- YCIH Group —ZHERER 112,643 145,900
- Yongchang Investment Group —KEBEREEH — 18
112,643 145,918
Other payables H fth JE 5 3k
— YCIH Group — ZEZEERER 14,871 74,601
Dividends payables FE AR B
— YCIH Group —ZHERER — 60,317
- Yongchang Investment Group —kEREERE — 18,207
— 78,524
Contract liabilities AEEE
- YCIH Group — EHEREER 10,806 45,185
Lease liabilities HEEE
— YCIH Group — EHEREHR 6,988 3,511
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

(m)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36 BBEEARS (&
Key management compensation (m) FAREBEEAEMSE
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive), AEEEAESMNEBEES (HT
supervisors and senior management (includes vice presidents, BEREFHPTES) EEREK
chief financial officer, chief engineer and chief economist). The EREEAR(BREIELE UK
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee MBEL - BT IRADAARLCERT) o A

241 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

services is shown below:

MREEABXNERERRY
MENKENMENT

Year ended December 31,

BZEZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTF T ARETT

Salaries, wages and bonuses
Contributions to pension plans and

e TAERMEL 9,875 7,401
MR RS 5T 8 R E A4 & (R At K

other social insurance 1,370 1,314
Other benefits H 1@ F 250 287
11,495 9,002
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SUBSIDIARIES FAF
At the date of this report, the Company had direct interests in the following RAREEAE AR EEFAUNTF
subsidiaries: NAE
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ARAEEESAD L
Place and date of Issue and  December 31, Date of
Directly held establishment paid-up capital 2019 this report  Principle activities Note
BETR 2019
EERE FEM AR L it & B 2R EHER 128318 ABREHE FEEY P
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB 100% 100%  production and sale of (4)
September 30, 23,000,000 construction sand and
1999 stone
EHRRYAHBRAR hE ARY 100% 100% AEREEREVAH @)
199949 430H 23,000,0007T
YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB 100% 100%  research and (4)
September 3, 33,000,000 development,
2013 production and sales
of concrete admixtures
ZEERSD FMRBRAR HE AR 100% 100% H% - £EREEREL )
2013F9A3AR 33,000,007 Sl
YCIH Qujing Building Material Co., Ltd.  PRC, RMB 50% 50%  research and (2), (4)
("Qujing Building Material”) August 19, 2014 40,000,000 development,
production, sale,
transportation
and pumping of
commercial concrete
CHERBEREMABRAA HE - ARE 50% 50% WHEAE HE EH (2.0
(T B # 1) 20148198 40,000,007 RREEmERL
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building PRC, RMB 50% 50%  research and (3), (4)
Material Co., Ltd. (“Baoshan January 21, 2015 26,000,000 development,
Building Material") production, sale,
transportation
and pumping of
commercial concrete
ZEERRIUKERMNBRAR HE - ARKE 50% 50% BRE - AECHECBH ()0
(TR 1L E# ) 2015618218 26,000,000 RREBmERLT
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont‘d)

243

37 FRTR(4E)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
ARAEEESAI L
Place and date of Issue and  December 31, Date of
Directly held establishment paid-up capital 2019 this report  Principle activities Note
BETR 20195
EERE FEA Ak Tt B E EHER 128318 ABREHS FEEY i
YCIH Yuxi Building Material Co., Ltd. PRC, RMB 55% 55% research and (4)
July 10, 2015 12,000,000 development,
production, sale,
transportation
and pumping of
commercial concrete
EHRREEEMERRA hE - AR 55% 55% WEAE #HE -EBE ()
2015674108 12,000,0007T RREEARERL
YCIH 14th Metallurgical Green New PRC, RMB 100% 100%  research and (4)
Material Co., Ltd. January 3, 2014 30,000,000 development,
production, sale,
transportation
and pumping of
commercial concrete
EEER TN &EMMEERRR  HE - ARE 100% 100% #% - £E HE EH 0
201451 438 30,000,0007TC RERZBmERT

Notes:

Q)

All the companies comprising the Group are with limited liability, and
have adopted December 31 as their financial year end date.

Pursuant to agreements with other shareholders who hold 50% in
Qujing Building Material, these shareholders would act in concert
with the Company in exercise of their voting power at the general
meetings. In addition, the Company has power to appoint majority
of the board members. Thus the Company has controlled operational
and financial decision of Qujing Building Material.

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(3)  Pursuant to agreement with the other shareholder who hold 50%
in Baoshan Building Material, the directors nominated by that
shareholder would act in concert with the directors nominated by
the Company in exercise of their voting power at the board meeting.
According to Articles of Association of Baoshan Building Material,
although the percentage of equity interests held by the Company is
50%, general meetings are controlled by the Company unilaterally.
Thus the Company has controlled operational and financial decision of
Baoshan Building Material.

(4)  The statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2019 have been audited by Mazars
Certified Public Accountants LLP Yunnan Yatai Branch.

(5)  None of subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)  Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors dated March 27,
2020, the Company has proposed dividend of RMB0.1355 per share,
which is RMB60,472,800 in total. The proposal is subject to approval

in the annual general meeting.

(b)  Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across China.
The Group paid and will continue to pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the
date on which these consolidated financial statements were authorised
for issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects
on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the COVID-19

outbreak.

37

38

A zir =+ EVa
& OF B 75 5 3R M 5
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ELE201946 1231 A1 F/Z

¥ 2R (&)

(3) RIEEFRH R I 50%A &
HAM R R HE  ZBRRERZDH
E=ERREEEEH LEAR
AREMEEZE -WTH  THEK
ER-BREBERUEMNKRAE
B) #E A DA RBF0%H K
#ARAAETEEZERRAKR
g MARAEERUEMNE
BRMBHREK -

(4) AEBTARREZ=2019F1248
NBLEFESFZEAEMBHRE
BEREPERRG M BB 5%
TREE)EMEADATE °

(5) HEE2019%F12A3181F - KA
MFARABEITEBEIA -

REHESHE

(@) 1RIE2020F3F827R1EEMMES
GrREZ ALPABKERES
BARY013557C * At AR
60,472,800 7T ° #% s B IR X K&
RBFRGHE -

(b)  FEE M F bR Z B 20204
FONAETRGESE  BEHETHE
EFBEBEANFELET AKE
BRI RRBEERBNR ¥
HEHAEBMBMR  LEKX
RETHENTE  BEXRAHH
BRERAIERBE - NEH K
BRHAHYMBRREERTA

B2 4B
o

ETHERGESERERIKROBR QA 244

2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B B 7S 3 R BT 5

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
ELE201946 1231 H1F F /2

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39 ARRHBMRRRRHE
RESERVES MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY - )
Statement of financial position of the Company DT MBEMRRER
As at December 31,
M12A318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights + 5 PR 4 20,101 20,602
Property, plant and equipment THE IHEEE 127,332 163,406
Investment properties REMNEHE 2,821 3,011
Intangible assets EREE 931 20
Investments in subsidiaries RFREZIEE 149,278 149,278
Other non-current assets HtFERBEE 3,600 —
Deferred income tax assets BRIEFIEHEE 8,850 7,843
312,913 344,160
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 37,429 33,969
Financial assets at fair value through other KARBEFEAEEHT AR M
comprehensive income FekarnemEE 112,399 43,137
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 2,084,835 1,898,772
Prepayments and other receivables TR AN TR 3B K Ho A & e 3K 41,214 74,606
Restricted cash Z R R 20,498 15,624
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 585,495 209,723
2,881,870 2,275,831
Total assets s E 3,194,783 2,619,991
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39 ARAMBRRREHE
28 (&

(Cont'd)
Statement of financial position of the Company (Cont‘d) D B B AR R R (4F)
As at December 31,
®12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T AR®EF T
EQUITY =
Share capital % < 446,272 312,390
Reserves (a) f##(a) 538,234 325,192
Retained earnings (a) B2 17 Wz (a) 154,033 214,127
Total equity B 1,138,539 851,709
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kARBARE
Lease liabilities HEEE 11,535 11,233
Provision for close down, restoration and AR - B3R RIRIRAK AN B
environmental cost 5,148 8,165
16,683 19,398
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE A5 BR 5% I EL Ath JE 5 5K 1,887,006 1,620,085
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,228 19,382
Provision for close down, restoration and b ERRIRRKANEE
environmental cost 6,454 3,234
Contract liabilities aRAE 11,295 7,389
Current income tax liabilities EHIMEMAE 7,960 18,794
Borrowings CEN 114,618 80,000
2,039,561 1,748,884
Total liabilities waE 2,056,244 1,768,282
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 3,194,783 2,619,991

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the AABHMBERREER T -—ZTF= 7
“ttHEESESHZ YA TIES

RREZE

Board of Directors on March 27, 2020 and was signed on its behalf.

Director / Rao Ye

BE g

Chairman / Ma Minchao
B2k /BRE

EEHERBZECSHERERIBOHABRAR 246
2019 B &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B BT 1% iR R B 5T

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Bt Z2019F 12531 H 1k F &

39 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

39 ARREEEERRRAE
RESERVES MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY BE(E)
(Cont’d)
(a) Reserves movements of the Company (a) AEIREEERS
Capital Statutory Other Retained
surplus reserve reserve Total earnings
EXRE EE R Hfth At @t Bl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARET:R
At January 1, 2018 RW2018E1H1H 301,120 7,653 — 308,773 82,583
Profit for the year EEAHE - - - - 147,963
Appropriation to statutory reserve BREZEERE = 16,419 = 16,419 (16,419)
At December 31, 2018 H2018%12A31A 301,120 24,072 — 325,192 214,127
Profit for the year FEME — — - - 202,118
Increase in share premium upon BAMBRBRAREEMN
issue of new shares 195,615 — — 195,615 —
Appropriation to statutory reserve EREATHE = 18,987 = 18,987 (18,987)
Changes in the fair value of FVOCI  URALBEFEBEZZEH;A
HtGakanmemiE
ARBEEY — = (1,560) (1,560) =
Dividends to equity holders MARARBRRERERZFRE
of the Company — — — — (243,225)
At December 31, 2019 ®2019612A31A 496,735 43,059 (1,560) 538,234 154,033
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